TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ Form S-1 September 12, 2013 Table of Contents

As filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on September 12, 2013

Registration No. 333-

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

FORM S-1

REGISTRATION STATEMENT

UNDER

THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933

Tri-County Financial Corporation

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Maryland State or other jurisdiction of 6022 (Primary Standard Industrial **52-1652138** (IRS Employer

incorporation or organization

Classification Code Number)

Identification Number)

1

3035 Leonardtown Road

Waldorf, Maryland 20601

(301) 546-5601

(Address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of registrant s principal executive offices)

Michael L. Middleton

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Tri-County Financial Corporation

3035 Leonardtown Road

Waldorf, Maryland 20601

(301) 546-5601

(Name, address, including zip code, and telephone number, including area code, of agent for service)

Copies to:

Gary R. Bronstein, Esq.

Scott A. Brown, Esq. Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP

607 14th Street, N.W., Suite 900 Washington, DC 20005 (202) 508-5800

Raymond A. Tiernan, Esq.

Philip R. Bevan, Esq. Elias, Matz, Tiernan & Herrick L.L.P. 734 15th Street, N.W., 11th Floor Washington, DC 20005 (202) 347-0300

Approximate date of commencement of proposed sale to the public: As soon as practicable after this Registration Statement becomes effective.

If any of the securities being registered on this Form are to be offered on a delayed or continuous basis pursuant to Rule 415 under the Securities Act, check the following box: "

If this Form is filed to register additional securities for an offering pursuant to Rule 462(b) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. "

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(c) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. "

If this Form is a post-effective amendment filed pursuant to Rule 462(d) under the Securities Act, check the following box and list the Securities Act registration statement number of the earlier effective registration statement for the same offering. "

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the definitions of large accelerated filer, accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one)

Large accelerated filer " Accelerated filer " Accelerated filer " Smaller reporting company x

Calculation of Registration Fee

Title of each class of securities to be registered	Amount to be registered(1)	Proposed maximum offering price per share(2)	Proposed maximum Aggregate offering price(2)	Amount of registration fee
Common Stock, \$0.01	1,610,000	\$19.00		8
par value			\$30,590,000	\$4,173

- (1) Include shares of common stock that may be purchased by the underwriters to cover over-allotments, if any.
- (2) Estimated solely for the purpose of calculating the registration fee. Based on the average high and low sales prices reported on the OTCQB Marketplace on September 6, 2013.

The Registrant hereby amends this Registration Statement on such date or dates as may be necessary to delay its effective date until the Registrant shall file a further amendment which specifically states that this Registration Statement shall thereafter become effective in accordance with Section 8(a) of the Securities Act of 1933 or until the Registration Statement shall become effective on such date as the Commission, acting pursuant to Section 8(a), may determine.

The information in this preliminary prospectus is not complete and may be changed. We may not sell these securities until the registration statement filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission is effective. This preliminary prospectus is not an offer to sell these securities and is not soliciting an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Preliminary Prospectus

Subject to completion, Dated [], 2013

1,400,000 Shares of

Common Stock

Investing in our common stock involves risks. For additional information, see the section of this prospectus captioned Risk Factors beginning on page 11 for a discussion of the factors you should consider before you make your decision to invest in our common stock.

	Per	
	Share	Total
Public offering price of common stock	\$	\$
Underwriting discounts and commissions ⁽¹⁾	\$	\$
Proceeds to us before expenses	\$	\$

We have granted the underwriters a 30-day option to purchase up to 210,000 additional shares of our common stock at the public offering price, less underwriting discounts and commissions, to cover over-allotments, if any.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or determined if this prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a

criminal offense.
The securities are not savings accounts, deposits, or other obligations of any bank and are not insured or guaranteed by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or any other governmental agency.
The underwriters expect to deliver the shares of common stock in book-entry form through the facilities of the Depository Trust Company, against payment on or about, 2013.

Sandler O Neill + Partners, L.P.

The date of this prospectus is ______, 2013

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS	1
SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS	i
PROSPECTUS SUMMARY	1
<u>THE OFFERING</u>	7
RISK FACTORS	11
<u>USE OF PROCEEDS</u>	22
<u>CAPITALIZATION</u>	23
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION	24
MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF	
<u>OPERATIONS</u>	26
<u>BUSINESS</u>	53
SUPERVISION AND REGULATION	70
<u>MANAGEMENT</u>	76
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT	79
DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK	80
<u>UNDERWRITING</u>	86
LEGAL MATTERS	89
<u>EXPERTS</u>	89
WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION	89
INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE	89
INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS	91

ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or in any free writing prospectus that we may authorize to be delivered and made available to you. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized anyone to provide you with additional or inconsistent information. If anyone provides you with different or inconsistent information, you should not rely on it. We are offering to sell, and seeking offers to buy, our common stock only in jurisdictions where those offers and sales are permitted. The information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus or any free writing prospectus is accurate only as of their respective dates. Our business, financial condition, results of operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.

This prospectus describes the specific details regarding this offering and the terms and conditions of the common stock being offered hereby and the risks of investing in our common stock. To the extent information in this prospectus is inconsistent with any of the documents incorporated by reference into this prospectus; you should rely on this prospectus. You should read this prospectus, the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus, any free writing prospectus and the additional information about us described in the section entitled *Where You Can Find Additional Information* before making your investment decision.

Neither we, nor any of our officers, directors, agents or representatives or any of the underwriters, make any representation to you about the legality of an investment in our common stock. You should not interpret the contents of this prospectus or any free writing prospectus to be legal, business, investment or tax advice. You should consult with your own advisors for that type of advice and consult with them about the legal, tax, business, financial and other issues that you should consider before investing in our common stock.

No action is being taken in any jurisdictions outside the United States to permit a public offering of our common stock or possession or distribution of this prospectus in those jurisdictions. Persons who come into possession of this prospectus in jurisdictions outside the United States are required to inform themselves about, and to observe, any restrictions that apply in those jurisdictions to this offering or the distribution of this prospectus.

In this prospectus, the terms Tri-County Financial, Company, we, us and our refer to Tri-County Financial Corporation and its consolidated subsidiaries, collectively, unless the context requires otherwise. References in this prospectus to Community Bank and Bank mean Community Bank of Tri-County, the wholly-owned banking subsidiary of Tri-County Financial. The Bank is a Maryland state-chartered commercial bank and a Federal Reserve member bank. The main office of the Bank is located in Waldorf, Maryland.

As used in this prospectus, the term Series C preferred stock refers to the shares of Tri-County Financial s Series C Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock having a liquidation preference of \$1,000 per share, which were issued on September 22, 2011 pursuant to the U.S. Department of Treasury s Small Business Lending Fund.

SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus, as well as other written communications made from time to time by us and oral communications made from time to time by our authorized officers, may contain statements relating to our future results (including certain projections and business trends) that are considered forward-looking statements as defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the PSLRA). Such forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of such words as believe, expect, anticipate, should, planned, estimated, intend and potential. Examples forward-looking statements include, but are not limited to, possible or assumed estimates with respect to our financial condition, expected or anticipated revenue, and results of our operations and business, including earnings growth

determined using generally accepted accounting principles; loan origination volume; competitive products and pricing; demand for loan and deposits;

i

asset quality, loan delinquency rates and levels of non-performing assets; impairment charges with respect to investment securities; current and future capital management programs; non-interest income levels; market share; our ability to control costs and expenses; and other business operations and strategies. For these statements, we claim the protection of the safe harbor for forward-looking statements contained in the PSLRA.

We caution you that a number of important factors could cause actual results to differ materially from those currently anticipated in any forward-looking statement. Such factors include, but are not limited to:

the factors identified below and in this prospectus under the heading Risk Factors;

prevailing economic conditions, either nationally or locally in some or all areas in which we conduct business, or conditions in the banking industry;

interest rate trends, changes in interest rates, deposit flows, loan demand, real estate values and competition, which can materially affect, among other things, loan origination levels and the level of defaults, losses and prepayments on loans we have made and make;

changes in the quality or composition of the loan or investment portfolios;

factors driving impairment charges on investments;

our ability to retain key members of management;

our ability to successfully integrate any assets, liabilities, customers, systems and management personnel we may acquire into our operations and our ability to realize related revenue synergies and cost savings within expected time frames;

our timely development of new and competitive products or services in a changing environment, and the acceptance of such products or services by customers;

operational issues and/or capital spending necessitated by the potential need to adapt to industry changes in information technology systems, on which we are highly dependent;

changes in accounting principles, policies, and guidelines;

changes in any applicable law, rule, regulation or practice with respect to tax or legal issues;

litigation liabilities, including related costs, expenses, settlements and judgments, or the outcome of other matters before regulatory agencies, whether pending or commencing in the future; and

other economic, competitive, governmental, regulatory and technological factors affecting our operations, pricing, products and services.

Additionally, the timing and occurrence or non-occurrence of events may be subject to circumstances beyond our control. Investors in our common stock are cautioned not to place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements, which are made as of the date of this prospectus. Except as may be required by applicable law or regulation, we assume no obligation to update the forward-looking statements or to update the reasons why actual results could differ from those projected in the forward-looking statements.

ii

PROSPECTUS SUMMARY

This summary highlights selected information contained or incorporated by reference in this prospectus and may not contain all of the information that you need to consider in making your investment decision. To understand this offering fully, you should carefully read this summary together with the more detailed information contained in or incorporated by reference into this prospectus. You should carefully consider the section titled Risk Factors in this prospectus, our consolidated financial statements and the documents identified in the section Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference.

The Company

Tri-County Financial Corporation, headquartered in Waldorf, Maryland and organized in 1989, is the bank holding company for Community Bank, a Maryland-chartered commercial bank subject to supervision and regulation by the Federal Reserve and the Maryland Commissioner of Financial Regulation (the Maryland Commissioner). Community Bank was founded in 1950 as Tri-County Building and Loan Association of Waldorf, a mutual savings and loan association. In 1986, the Bank converted to a federal stock savings bank and, in 1997, converted to a Maryland-chartered commercial bank and adopted its current name.

Community Bank provides an array of financial products and services for businesses and retail customers primarily through its ten full-service offices located in Calvert, Charles and St. Mary s Counties in Southern Maryland (the tri-county area) and one full-service branch office in King George County, Virginia. In addition, Community Bank originates loans through loan production offices in La Plata and Prince Frederick, Maryland and Fredericksburg, Virginia. Community Bank focuses its commercial business generation efforts on targeting small and medium sized businesses with revenues between \$5.0 million and \$35.0 million headquartered in Southern Maryland and in King George County and Fredericksburg, Virginia. In addition, Community Bank services the retail banking needs of the communities surrounding its 11 full-service branch locations with a full array of retail deposit and loan products. Community Bank s deposit accounts are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (the FDIC) to the maximum permitted by law.

Effective October 18, 2013, Community Bank will change its name to Community Bank of the Chesapeake. This new name reflects Community Bank s recent expansion into the Northern Neck of Virginia and will align the Bank s name with its strategy of being the premier community banking institution throughout the Chesapeake Bay region. In addition, Tri-County Financial will change its name to The Community Financial Corporation, to better align the parent company name with the bank name.

As of June 30, 2013, Tri-County Financial had consolidated assets of \$980.1 million, consolidated deposits of \$784.7 million and consolidated stockholders equity of \$81.1 million. Shares of our common stock are traded on the OTCQB Marketplace under the trading symbol TCFC. Following the name change described above, shares of our common stock will continue to trade under the trading symbol TCFC. As of [], 2013, there were [] shares of our common stock outstanding.

Our Recent Growth and Performance

With the efforts of our strong management team, we were able to continue our growth in loans and maintain our strong track record of performance through the recent economic recession. From December 31, 2008 through June 30, 2013, net loans grew 37.3%, from \$543.0 million to \$745.3 million. This growth was driven by our ability to provide superior service to our targeted small and medium sized business customers as compared to our larger, regional and national banking competition and our financial stability versus our locally-based competition. This loan growth was

achieved while maintaining our focus on our strong underwriting standards, which has been reflected in our low net charge-off levels. Additionally, we have improved our net interest margin from 3.13% for the year ended December 31, 2008 to 3.50% for the six months ended June 30, 2013 (on an

1

annualized basis) and our return on average common equity from 7.59% to 10.47% over the same time period. Our profitability has been positively impacted by our continued focus on lowering our cost of deposits, maintaining our yield on earning assets and controlling our credit costs. During the recent recession, we were able to achieve positive profitability in each quarter and, further, have achieved positive net income to our common shareholders each year for 27 consecutive years.

Our Strategy

Our strategies center on our approach as a full-service, community-oriented bank and the expansion of our market share. To realize these objectives, we are pursuing the following strategies:

Continue to Grow Our Market Share. We employ a community banking strategy that emphasizes providing high-quality, responsive and personalized service to our business and retail customers. We believe there is a significant opportunity for us as a locally-managed, community-focused bank capable of providing a full-range of financial services to continue expanding our market share for both loans and deposits. By offering quicker decision making in the delivery of banking products and services, offering customized products where appropriate, and providing customer access to our senior decision makers, we distinguish ourselves from the larger, regional and national banks operating in our market areas, while our larger capital base and product mix enable us to compete effectively against smaller banks. As a result, according to the FDIC s website, as of June 30, 2012 (the latest date as of which such information was available), we held 20.0% of the deposits in Calvert, Charles and St. Mary s counties, Maryland, which represented the largest market share of deposits of the thirteen banking institutions in the tri-county area. Our goal is to continue to leverage on our excellent reputation and brand recognition to build market share in our existing Maryland markets and also to use the same, proven approach to build market share in King George County, Virginia, where we opened a branch office in June 2012.

Improve Asset Quality. We have relied on the expertise of our lending and credit administration staff, executive officers, and our disciplined underwriting and credit monitoring processes to lower our level of non-performing assets, performing non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructurings (TDRs) from 4.58% of total assets at December 31, 2010 to 2.87% of total assets at June 30, 2013. We have achieved this decrease in non-performing assets without incurring significant charge-offs as net charge-offs to average loans was 0.16% (annualized), 0.27%, 0.61%, and 0.61% for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, respectively. While overall credit losses and problem assets still remain elevated as compared to historic levels primarily due to tumultuous economic conditions, credit quality remains a primary focus. We are vigilant in rapidly responding to changing economic conditions and to specific problem credits, as well as working to minimize losses.

Emphasize Commercial Lending. Net loans have increased \$90.8 million, or 13.9%, from \$654.5 million at December, 2010 to \$745.3 million at June 30, 2013. During that time, we have focused on increasing our origination and retention of commercial loans (commercial real estate, commercial business loans and commercial equipment loans), which have increased from \$458.8 million, or 69.2% of the loan portfolio, at December, 2010 to \$537.0 million, or 71.2% of the total loan portfolio, at June 30, 2013. We believe the continuing transition of our balance sheet to resemble that of a commercial bank will improve our net interest margin and differentiate us in our marketplace, which contains few locally-based community banks

with a commercial lending focus. To accelerate our loan growth, we operate three loan production offices, the most recent of which was opened in August 2013 in Fredericksburg, Virginia.

Increase Transaction Accounts. A key part of our business strategy is focusing on the growth of transaction accounts, which include checking, money market and savings accounts. These deposits allow us to increase our banking relationships with our customers and provide a stable, low-cost funding source for our asset growth. Our level of transaction accounts has increased from 39.5% of

2

total deposits at December 31, 2010 to 49.7% at June 30, 2013. This has contributed to the decrease in the average cost of funds from 1.78% for the year ended December 31, 2010 to 0.93% for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Our Competitive Advantages

We believe the following competitive advantages will allow us to successfully execute our business strategies:

Superior Customer Relationship Focus. We offer high-quality service by having locally-based lending teams in each of the counties we serve, minimizing personnel turnover, allowing customer access to senior decision makers and by providing more direct, personal attention than we believe is offered by competing financial institutions. The majority of our commercial lending competition is from banks headquartered outside of our market area, many of whom attempt to serve the market area through out-of-market loan production officers. By emphasizing the need for a professional, responsive and knowledgeable staff, we offer a superior level of service to our customers.

Few Locally-Based, Commercial Focused Community Banking Competitors. Within our primary market area, there are few similarly sized, commercial lending focused institutions which can compete directly with us for lending relationships. The majority of our in-market competition comes from government sponsored credit unions or smaller commercial banking institutions that are not able to serve all of the loan and deposit needs of our targeted small and medium sized business customers. Additionally, we compete against larger banking institutions headquartered out of our market area. We believe our size combined with our legal lending limit of approximately \$14.9 million provides us with a competitive advantage over smaller local institutions and our superior customer service provides us with a competitive advantage over larger out-of-market institutions competing for lending relationships in our market area.

Experienced Management Team and Personnel. Our executive management team brings an average of nearly 30 years of experience in the banking industry. Additionally, our management team was responsible for guiding the Company through the recent economic recession without sustaining a single quarter of losses to common shareholders. In addition to their experience with the Company and the Bank, several members of our management team have a long history of banking experience in the Southern Maryland market with the former leading institution in the market, Mercantile Bankshares Corporation, which was acquired by PNC Financial Services Group, Inc. in 2007. Prior to and following the acquisition we were able to make several strategic hires within our executive management and locally-based lending teams. We believe the significant local banking experience of our employees throughout our organization provides us with a significant advantage over other competitors within the markets we serve.

Market Reputation. We believe that our market reputation has become and will remain a competitive advantage within our historical markets in the tri-county area of Southern Maryland. During the recent economic recession, many of our competitors actively reduced lending to our targeted small and medium sized business customers. Our financial strength during this time allowed us to continue to expand our loan portfolio and service these customers, which enhanced our reputation as a lender and customer-focused banking institution. Accordingly, we have been able to focus our attention on building upon our strong relationships with these businesses and leveraging this reputation into additional relationships with new

customers. We expect to continue to take advantage of the strong reputation and relationships that have been forged by our management team and our frontline lending staff in our legacy tri-county area, while leveraging our reputation to expand our market share in contiguous markets.

3

Our Market Area

The Bank considers its principal lending and deposit market area to consist of the tri-county area in Southern Maryland and King George County in Virginia. In addition, as a result of the Bank s expansion into the greater Fredericksburg market in 2013, it is expected that Stafford County will become part of the Bank s principal leading and deposit market area. One of the fastest growing regions in the country, this area is home to a mix of federal facilities, industrial and high-tech businesses. The 2010 U.S. Census estimates place King George County as the third fastest growing locality in Virginia with population growth of 40.36% since 2000. In addition, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, St. Mary s County s population has grown 22% over the past decade, the highest growth rate in Maryland between 2000 and 2010. According to St. Mary s County Department of Economic & Community Development, St. Mary s County was the third fastest growing county in Maryland from 2011 to 2012.

Helping to spur this growth is the influence of several major federal facilities located both within the Bank s footprint and within adjoining counties. Major federal facilities include the Patuxent River Naval Air Station in St. Mary s County, the Indian Head Division, Naval Surface Warfare Center in Charles County and the Naval Surface Warfare Naval Support Facility in King George County. Collectively, these facilities employ over 33,000 people. According to the St. Mary s County Comprehensive Plan, the Patuxent Naval Air Station alone employs approximately 22,000 people and provides an approximate annual economic impact of \$2.3 billion. In addition, there are several major federal facilities located in adjoining markets including Andrews Air Force Base and Defense Intelligence Agency & Defense Intelligence Analysis Center in Prince Georges County, Maryland and the U.S. Marine Base Quantico, Drug Enforcement Administration Quantico facility and Federal Bureau of Investigation Quantico facility in Prince William County, Virginia.

The economic health of the region, while stabilized by the influence of the federal government, is not solely dependent on this sector. Calvert County is home to the Dominion Power Cove Point Liquid Natural Gas Terminal, which is one of the nation slargest liquefied natural gas terminals and Dominion Power is currently constructing liquefaction facilities for exporting liquefied natural gas. According to Dominion Power, the construction of these liquefaction facilities is expected to create 4,000 jobs in the state of Maryland during the construction phase and would support another 14,600 jobs once the facility is operational with approximately \$1 billion annually of additional federal, state and local government revenues being generated. In addition, King George County has finalized an agreement with Columbia Gas to bring a high-pressure, steel pipe natural gas line into the county to service the King George Industrial Park in 2014.

Even though Southern Maryland is generally considered to have more affordable housing than many other Washington and Baltimore area suburbs, during the recession, growth in the Bank s market area was dampened as the demand for new housing in the tri-county area fell in conjunction with the overall housing market. According to the Maryland Department of Planning, new housing unit starts fell from 2006 through 2010. However, after 2010, real estate values stabilized and there were positive trends in housing during 2012. According to Real Estate Business Intelligence, LLC, St. Mary s, Charles and Calvert Counties saw an increase in the average price of residential homes sold from 2011 to 2012 of 4.21%, 3.30% and 0.47%, respectively.

Based on information from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, unemployment rates at July 2013 remained well below the national average (not seasonally adjusted) of 7.7% at 6.6%, 6.7% and 6.5% for St. Mary s County, Charles County and Calvert County, respectively, and 6.6% in King George County, Virginia. According to a University of Maryland study, projected job growth within the tri-county area from 2005 through 2030 is 31%, 28% and 45% in St. Mary s, Charles and Calvert Counties, respectively. Similarly, according to the King George County Comprehensive Plan, employment in King George County is projected to increase by 33% from 2010 to and 2020.

The Bank is currently in the process of expanding in the greater Fredericksburg market and opened a loan production office in Fredericksburg, Virginia in August 2013. According to the Fredericksburg Regional

4

Alliance, the Fredericksburg Region, including the City of Fredericksburg and the counties of Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania, and Stafford, Virginia, has been the fastest growing region in the Commonwealth of Virginia for the past eight years. Based on information from the Fredericksburg Regional Alliance, this region boasts an impressive array of over 10,000 small businesses and a highly skilled labor force of over one million within a 40-mile commute.

The Bank s primary market area also boasts a strong median household income relative to the median household income of their respective states. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the median household income from 2007 to 2011 was \$82,529, \$92,981, and \$92,135 for St. Mary s, Calvert and Charles Counties, Maryland, respectively, compared to \$72,149 for the State of Maryland. Similarly, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, the median household income from 2007 to 2011 was \$82,173 and \$94,658 for King George and Stafford Counties, Virginia, respectively, compared to \$63,302 for the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Management

Risk Factors

One of our key strengths is our executive management team, as this group of six executives brings an average of nearly 30 years in banking experience, including an average of 16 years with the Company. Further, our executive team s experience provides a beneficial mix of experience not only within the Company and the Bank, but also experience with larger institutions. Supported by our strong credit culture, the executive management team has successfully managed our credit risks through the recent challenging economic conditions. We also benefit from an involved board of directors, which is composed of accomplished local business executives with a wide array of leadership skills and experience beneficial to our organization.

The interests of our executive management team and directors are aligned with those of our shareholders through common stock ownership. At _______, 2013, our directors and officers beneficially owned approximately []% of our outstanding common stock, excluding [] shares that may be acquired upon the exercise of options.

The table below highlights the key members of our management team and their positions with the Company and the Bank:

Name	Positions
Michael L. Middleton	Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Tri-County Financial and
	Community Bank
William J. Pasenelli	President and Chief Financial Officer of Tri-County Financial and
	President of Community Bank
James M. Burke	Executive Vice President and Chief Risk Officer of Tri-County Financial
	and Community Bank
Todd L. Capitani	Executive Vice President and Senior Financial Officer of Tri-County
	Financial and Community Bank and Chief Financial Officer of
	Community Bank
Gregory C. Cockerham	Executive Vice President and Chief Lending Officer and Corporate
	Secretary of Tri- County Financial and Community Bank
James F. DiMisa	Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of Tri-County
	Financial and Community Bank

An investment in our common stock involves certain risks. You should carefully consider the risks described in the section entitled *Risk Factors*, as well as other information included or incorporated by reference into this prospectus, including our consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto, before making an investment decision.

Corporate Information

Our principal executive offices are located at 3035 Leonardtown Road, Waldorf, Maryland 20604 and our telephone number is (301) 645-5601. We maintain an Internet website at www.cbtc.com. Neither this website nor the information on this website is included or incorporated in, or is a part of, this prospectus.

Additional information about us and our subsidiaries is included in documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus. See *Where You Can Find Additional Information* on page ___.

6

THE OFFERING

1,400,000 shares of common stock (1,610,000 shares if the underwriters Shares offered by us exercise their over-allotment option in full). Shares to be outstanding after this [] shares ([] shares if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in $offering^{(1)(2)}$ full). The common stock to be issued in this offering represents approximately []% of the total number of currently outstanding shares of common stock ([]% if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full). The actual number of shares issued will vary depending on the sales price under this offering. Net proceeds(3) The net proceeds of this offering to us will be approximately \$[] million after deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and the offering expenses payable to us. The amount of net proceeds will be approximately \$[] million if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full. Use of proceeds We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, including but not limited to, contributing capital to Community Bank and supporting organic growth and opportunistic acquisitions of whole banking institutions or branch locations, should appropriate acquisition opportunities arise. Currently, we do not have any agreements, arrangements or understandings regarding any possible acquisitions. See Use of Proceeds at page ___. Ticker symbol **TCFC** Proposed NASDAQ Listing We have applied to list our common stock on the NASDAQ Capital Market under the symbol TCFC. Dividends and distributions We currently pay a quarterly cash dividend on our common stock of \$0.10 per share. Before 2013, we paid an annual cash dividend on our common stock which was \$0.40 per share for 2012. We expect to maintain our current cash dividend rate after the offering. However, in determining the amount

per share. Before 2013, we paid an annual cash dividend on our common stock which was \$0.40 per share for 2012. We expect to maintain our current cash dividend rate after the offering. However, in determining the amount and timing of any dividends, the board of directors will take into account our financial condition and results of operations, tax considerations, capital requirements and alternative uses for capital and economic conditions. See *Price Range of Common Stock and Dividend Information* at page ___.

Investing in our common stock involves risks. You should carefully consider the information under *Risk Factors* beginning on page __ and the other information included in this prospectus before investing in our common stock.

The underwriters have reserved for sale at the offering price being paid by investors up to [] shares of common stock being offered by this prospectus

Risk factors

Directed share program

for sale to our shareholders as of _______, 2013. We do not know if these persons will choose to purchase all or any portion of

(footnotes on following page)

7

______, 2013.

these reserved shares, but any purchases they do make will reduce the number of shares available to the general public. Please see **Underwriting* at page ___.

(1) The number of shares of common stock shown above to be outstanding after this offering is based on [] shares outstanding as of ________, 2013.

(2) Unless otherwise indicated, the number of shares of common stock presented in this prospectus excludes:

[] shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options at a weighted average exercise price of \$[] per share;

[] shares of common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to future grants under our incentive compensation plans; and

[] shares of common stock issuable pursuant to the exercise of the underwriters over-allotment option.

(3) Unless otherwise stated, all information contained in this prospectus reflects an assumed public offering price of \$[] per share, which was the last reported sale price of our common stock on the OTCQB Marketplace on

8

At or For the Six

SUMMARY OF SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following table shows selected historical consolidated financial data for the Company as of and for each of the five years ended December 31, 2012, which has been derived from our audited consolidated financial statements. The financial data as of and for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 are derived from our unaudited financial statements. The unaudited financial statements have been prepared on the same basis as our audited financial statements, and include, in the opinion of management, all adjustments, consisting only of normal recurring adjustments, necessary to present fairly the data for such period. You should read this table together with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. The results of operations for the six-month period ended June 30, 2013 do not necessarily indicate the results which may be expected for any future period or the full year.

	Mon										
	Ended,				At	or for the	Yea	rs Ended	Dec	ember 31,	
	2013	2012		2012		2011		2010		2009	2008
			(In	thousands	, ex	cept per sl	are	amounts))		
FINANCIAL CONDITION DATA											
Total assets	\$ 980,102	\$ 975,875	\$	981,639	\$	983,480	\$	885,936	\$	815,043	\$ 716,685
Loans receivable, net Investment	745,252	734,415		747,641		710,089		654,450		616,593	542,977
securities	154,000	167,581		159,825		195,344		161,935		144,214	122,934
Deposits	784,681	815,774		820,231		827,253		724,582		640,419	525,168
Borrowings	94,502	63,552		61,527		60,577		71,440		88,750	106,486
Junior subordinated debentures	12,000	12,000		12,000		12,000		12,000		12,000	12,000
Stockholders equity preferred	20,000	20,000		20,000		20,000		16,317		16,317	16,317
Stockholders equity common	61,072	56,362		59,047		55,454		54,788		51,873	50,797
OPERATING DATA											
Interest and dividend											
income	\$ 19,590	\$ 20,211	\$	40,293	\$	39,959	\$	39,537	\$	37,887	\$ 37,258
Interest expenses	4,042	5,789		10,604		13,121		13,580		16,166	18,035
Net interest											
income	15,548	14,422		29,689		26,838		25,957		21,721	19,223
	355	778		2,529		4,087		3,933		3,473	1,301

Provision for loan losses

Net interest							
income after							
provision for	1 7 100	10.511	2= 4.60	22 = 21	22.024	10.010	45.000
loan losses	15,193	13,644	27,160	22,751	22,024	18,248	17,922
Noninterest .	2.250	1 742	4 410	4 102	2.500	2.010	2.510
income	2,258	1,743	4,410	4,193	3,580	2,810	2,519
Noninterest	12 240	12,261	23,804	22,249	18,195	16,580	14,582
expenses	12,249	12,201	23,804	22,249	18,193	10,380	14,382
Income before							
income taxes	5,202	3,126	7,766	4,695	7,409	4,478	5,859
Income taxes	1,899	1,080	2,776	1,534	2,643	1,611	2,044
meome tanes	1,000	1,000	2,770	1,551	2,013	1,011	2,011
Net income	3,303	2,046	4,990	3,161	4,766	2,867	3,815
Preferred stock							
dividends							
declared and							
discount							
accretion	100	100	200	672	847	847	26
Income							
available to							
common shares	\$ 3,203	\$ 1,946	\$ 4,790	\$ 2,489	\$ 3,919	\$ 2,020	\$ 3,789
COMMON							
SHARE							
DATA							
Basic earnings							
per common							
share	\$ 1.06	\$ 0.64	\$ 1.57	\$ 0.83	\$ 1.31	\$ 0.68	\$ 1.29
Diluted							
earnings per	4.05	0.64		0.00	4.20	0.60	
common share	1.05	0.64	1.57	0.82	1.30	0.68	1.24
Dividends							
declared per							
common share ⁽¹⁾	0.20	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40
Book value per	0.20	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40	0.40
common							
share ⁽²⁾	20.05	18.49	19.34	18.32	18.25	17.43	17.23
Common shares	20.03	10.47	17.54	10.32	10.23	17.43	17.23
outstanding at							
end of period	3,045,543	3,048,084	3,052,416	3,026,557	3,002,616	2,976,046	2,947,759
Basic weighted	2,010,010	2,010,001	2,022,110	2,020,007	2,002,010	_,,,,,,,,,,,	_,,,,,,,,,
average							
common shares	3,026,651	3,041,679	3,043,039	3,016,286	2,985,080	2,961,293	2,943,002
	3,049,248	3,056,520	3,055,362	3,052,810	3,008,279	2,987,901	3,053,690

Diluted weighted average common shares

9

At or For the Six Months

	Ended June 30, 2013 2012		At o	l ,			
		(In t	housands, e	xcept per sh	are amount	s)	
KEY OPERATING							
RATIOS	0.5044						
Return on average assets ⁽³⁾	0.69%	0.43%	0.52%	0.35%	0.57%	0.38%	0.59%
Return on average total	0.14	5 0.1	6.40	4.22	6.76	4.10	5 .50
equity ⁽³⁾	8.14	5.31	6.42	4.33	6.76	4.19	7.58
Return on average common	10.45	6.02	0.20	4 45	7.24	2.00	7. 50
equity ⁽³⁾	10.47	6.82	8.29	4.47	7.24	3.88	7.59
Interest rate spread	3.37	3.07	3.18	3.05	3.12	2.72	2.77
Net interest margin ⁽³⁾	3.50	3.22	3.31	3.21	3.32	3.02	3.13
Efficiency ratio ⁽⁴⁾	68.79	75.85	69.81	71.70	61.60	67.59	67.07
Dividend payout ratio ⁽¹⁾	19.05	62.50	25.48	48.78	30.77	58.82	31.04
Non-interest expense to	2.56	2.56	2.45	2.46	2.16	0.17	2.26
average assets	2.56	2.56	2.47	2.46	2.16	2.17	2.26
Average interest-earning							
assets to average	112.26	111 14	111.56	110 11	111.00	112.20	110.45
interest-bearing liabilities	113.26	111.14	111.56	110.11	111.80	113.28	112.45
SELECTED ASSET							
QUALITY RATIOS							
Average total equity to							
average total assets	8.48	8.03	8.07	8.06	8.39	8.96	7.80
Allowance for loan losses to							
total loans receivable at end of							
period	1.07	1.01	1.09	1.07	1.16	1.20	0.94
Allowance for loan losses to							
non-performing loans	65.29	68.03	94.78	80.49	56.73	38.74	104.25
Net charge-offs to average							
outstanding loans receivable							
during the years ⁽³⁾	0.16	0.27	0.27	0.61	0.61	0.20	0.13
Non-performing loans to total							
loans ⁽⁵⁾	1.63	1.48	1.15	1.32	2.04	3.09	0.90
Non-performing assets to total							
assets ⁽⁶⁾	1.96	1.69	1.59	1.48	2.71	2.48	0.69
Non-performing assets,							
performing non-accrual loans							
and TDRs to total assets ⁽⁷⁾	2.87	2.73	2.50	2.61	4.58	3.90	0.69
OTHER DATA							
Number of:							
Full-time equivalent							
employees	162	157	160	143	131	121	119
Full-service offices	11	11	11	10	10	10	10

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

REGULATORY CAPITAL							
RATIOS (consolidated)							
Tier 1 to average assets	9.77%	9.16%	9.39%	9.17%	9.44%	10.03%	11.54%
Tier 1 to risk weighted assets	12.03	11.57	11.76	11.65	11.84	12.30	13.82
Total risk-based capital	13.07	12.55	12.84	12.69	12.94	13.46	14.73

- (1) Beginning in 2013, we began paying a \$0.10 per share quarterly dividend. Before 2013, we paid a \$0.40 annual cash dividend on our common stock in the first quarter of each year.
- (2) The Company had no intangible assets as of the dates indicated. Thus, tangible book value per share is the same as book value per share for each of the periods indicated.
- (3) Six-month data has been annualized.
- (4) Efficiency ratio is noninterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.
- (5) Non-performing loans includes all loans that are 90 days or more delinquent. TDRs that are performing in accordance with their modified terms and performing non-accrual loans are not considered non-performing loans.
- (6) Non-performing assets include non-performing loans and foreclosed real estate.
- (7) There were \$292,000, \$800,000 and \$297,000 of non-performing TDRs at June 30, 2012, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, which appear as both TDRs and non-performing loans. The ratio of non-performing assets, performing non-accrual loans and TDRs to total assets for these periods were adjusted to avoid duplicative counting of such amounts.

10

RISK FACTORS

An investment in our common stock involves various risks. Before making an investment decision, you should carefully read and consider the risk factors described below as well as the other information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus. Any of these risks, if they are realized, could materially adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that we currently deem to be immaterial may also materially and adversely affect us. In any such case, you could lose all or a portion of your original investment.

Risks Related to Our Business

Our increased emphasis on commercial lending may expose us to increased lending risks.

At June 30, 2013, our loan portfolio consisted of \$434.6 million, or 57.6%, of commercial real estate loans, \$85.0 million, or 11.3%, of commercial business loans and \$17.3 million, or 2.3%, of commercial equipment loans. We intend to maintain our emphasis on these types of loans. These types of loans generally expose a lender to greater risk of non-payment and loss and require a commensurately higher loan loss allowance than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans because repayment of the loans often depends on the successful operation of the property and the income stream of the borrowers. Such loans typically involve larger loan balances compared to one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Commercial business and equipment loans expose us to additional risks since they typically are made on the basis of the borrower s ability to make repayments from the cash flows of the borrower s business and are secured by non-real estate collateral that may depreciate over time. Also, many of our commercial borrowers have more than one loan outstanding with us. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to a one- to four-family residential mortgage loan. At June 30, 2013, \$9.3 million, or 75.8%, of our non-performing loans consisted of non-performing commercial loans.

While lower in 2013, our provision for loan losses has been elevated during the last four years and we may be required to make further increases in our provision for loan losses and to charge-off additional loans in the future. Further, our allowance for loan losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses in our loan portfolio.

For the first six months of 2013 and for the year ended December 31, 2012, we recorded a provision for loan losses of \$355,000 and \$2.5 million, respectively. We also recorded net loan charge-offs of \$568,000 and \$1.9 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and the year ended December 31, 2012, respectively. Our non-performing assets, performing non-accrual loans and TDRs aggregated \$28.2 million, or 2.87% of total assets, at June 30, 2013. Additionally, loans that were classified as either special mention and substandard were \$62.3 million at June 30, 2013. We had no loans classified as doubtful or loss at June 30, 2013. If the economy and/or the real estate market continue to weaken, more of our classified loans may become non-performing and we may be required to take additional provisions to increase our allowance for loan losses for these assets as the value of the collateral may be insufficient to pay any remaining net loan balance, which could have a negative effect on our results of operations. We maintain an allowance for loan losses to provide for loans in our portfolio that may not be repaid in their entirety. We believe that our allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level adequate to absorb probable losses inherent in our loan portfolio as of the corresponding balance sheet date. However, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover actual loan losses, and future provisions for loan losses could materially adversely affect our operating results.

In evaluating the adequacy of our allowance for loan losses, we consider numerous quantitative factors, including our historical charge-off experience, growth of our loan portfolio, changes in the composition of our loan portfolio and the volume of delinquent and classified loans, TDRs and foreclosed real estate. In addition, we use information about

specific borrower situations, including their financial position and estimated collateral values, to estimate the risk and amount of loss for those borrowers. Finally, we also consider many qualitative factors, including general and economic business conditions, anticipated duration of the current business cycle,

11

current general market collateral valuations, trends apparent in any of the factors we take into account and other matters, which are, by nature, more subjective and fluid. Our estimates of the risk of loss and amount of loss on any loan are complicated by the significant uncertainties surrounding our borrowers—abilities to successfully execute their business models through changing economic environments, competitive challenges and other factors. Because of the degree of uncertainty and susceptibility of these factors to change, our actual losses may vary from our current estimates.

Our regulators, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review our allowance for loan losses and may require us to increase our allowance for loan losses by recognizing additional provisions for loan losses charged to expense, or to decrease our allowance for loan losses by recognizing loan charge-offs. Any such additional provisions for loan losses or charge-offs, as required by our regulators, could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.

If we do not effectively manage our credit risk, we may experience increased levels of non-performing loans, charge-offs and delinquencies, which would require additional increases in our provision for loan losses.

There are risks inherent in making any loan, including risks inherent in dealing with individual borrowers, risks of nonpayment, risks resulting from uncertainties as to the future value of collateral and cash flows available to service debt and risks resulting from changes in economic and market conditions. Our credit risk approval and monitoring procedures may not reduce these credit risks, and they cannot be expected to completely eliminate our credit risks. If the overall economic climate in the United States, generally, or our market areas, specifically, fails to improve, or even if it does improve, our borrowers may experience difficulties in repaying their loans, and the level of non-performing loans, charge-offs and delinquencies could rise and require further increases in the provision for loan losses, which would cause our net income and return on equity to decrease.

Non-performing and classified assets take significant time to resolve and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition, and could result in further losses in the future.

At June 30, 2013, our non-performing loans totaled \$12.3 million, or 1.63% of our loan portfolio, and our non-performing assets (which include non-performing loans plus foreclosed properties) totaled \$19.2 million, or 1.96% of total assets. Our non-performing assets adversely affect our net income in various ways. We do not accrue interest income on non-accrual loans or foreclosed properties, thereby adversely affecting our net income and returns on assets and equity, increasing our loan administration costs and adversely affecting our efficiency ratio. When we take collateral in foreclosure and similar proceedings, we are required to mark the collateral to its then fair market value, less estimated selling costs, which may result in a loss. These non-performing loans and foreclosed properties also increase our risk profile and the amount of capital our regulators believe is appropriate to maintain in light of such risks. The resolution of non-performing assets requires significant time commitments from management and can be detrimental to the performance of their other responsibilities. If we experience increases in non-performing loans and non-performing assets, our net interest income may be negatively impacted and our loan administration costs could increase, each of which could have an adverse effect on our net income and related ratios, such as return on assets and equity.

At June 30, 2013 our total classified assets were \$61.2 million. While we continue to accrue interest income on classified assets that are performing, these assets may negatively impact profitability by requiring additional management attention and regular monitoring. Increased monitoring of these assets by management may impact our management s ability to focus on opportunistic growth, potentially adversely impacting future profitability.

Our residential mortgage loans and home equity loans expose us to a risk of loss due to declining real estate values.

At June 30, 2013, \$165.4 million, or 21.9%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of one- to four-family residential mortgage loans, and \$21.8 million, or 2.9%, of our total loan portfolio consisted of home equity loans and lines of credit. Declines in the housing market could result in declines in real estate values in our market

12

area. A decline in real estate values could cause some of our mortgage and home equity loans to be inadequately collateralized, which would expose us to a greater risk of loss if we seek to recover on defaulted loans by selling the real estate collateral.

A return of recessionary conditions could result in increases in our level of non-performing loans and/or reduce demand for our products and services, which would lead to lower revenue, higher loan losses and lower earnings.

A return of recessionary conditions and/or continued negative developments in the domestic and international credit markets may significantly affect the markets in which we do business, the value of our loans and investments, and our ongoing operations, costs and profitability. Declines in real estate values and sales volumes and increased unemployment levels may result in higher than expected loan delinquencies, increases in our levels of non-performing and classified assets and a decline in demand for our products and services. These negative events may cause us to incur losses and may adversely affect our capital, liquidity, and financial condition.

Changes in interest rates could reduce our net interest income and earnings.

Our largest component of earnings is net interest income, which could be negatively affected by changes in interest rates. Changing interest rates impact customer actions and may limit the options available to the Company to maximize earnings or increase the costs to minimize risk. We do not have control over market interest rates and the Company s focus to mitigate potential earnings risk centers on controlling the composition of our assets and liabilities.

Our net interest income is the interest we earn on loans and investments less the interest we pay on our deposits and borrowings. Our net interest margin is net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets. Changes in interest rates could adversely affect our net interest margin and, as a result, our net interest income. Although the yield we earn on our assets and our funding costs tend to move in the same direction in response to changes in interest rates, one can rise or fall faster than the other, causing our net interest margin to increase or decrease. Our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than our assets, so they may adjust faster in response to changes in interest rates. As a result, when interest rates rise, our funding costs may rise faster than the yield we earn on our assets, causing our net interest margin to contract until the yield catches up. Changes in the slope of the yield curve or the spread between short-term and long-term interest rates could also reduce our net interest margin. Normally, the yield curve is upward sloping, meaning short-term rates are lower than long-term rates. Because our liabilities tend to be shorter in duration than our assets, when the yield curve flattens or inverts, we could experience pressure on our net interest margin as our cost of funds increases relative to the yield we can earn on our assets. Our procedures for managing exposure to falling net interest income involve modeling possible scenarios of interest rate increases and decreases to interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

Monetary policies and regulations of the Federal Reserve could adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.

In addition to being affected by general economic conditions, our earnings and growth are affected by the policies of the Federal Reserve. An important function of the Federal Reserve is to regulate the money supply and credit conditions. Among the instruments used by the Federal Reserve to implement these objectives are open market operations in U.S. government securities, adjustments of the discount rate and changes in reserve requirements against bank deposits. These instruments are used in varying combinations to influence overall economic growth and the distribution of credit, bank loans, investments and deposits. Their use also affects interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits. The monetary policies and regulations of the Federal Reserve have had a significant effect on the operating results of commercial banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The effects of

such policies upon our business, financial condition and results of operations cannot be predicted.

13

Our financial condition and results of operations could be negatively affected if we fail to effectively execute our strategic plan or manage the growth called for in our strategic plan.

Among other things, our strategic plan currently calls for reducing the amount of our non-performing assets and generating transaction deposit accounts to reduce our funding costs and improve our net interest margin. Our ability to increase profitability in accordance with this plan will depend on a variety of factors including the identification of desirable business opportunities, competitive responses from financial institutions in our market area and our ability to manage liquidity and funding sources. While we believe we have the management resources and internal systems in place to successfully manage our strategic plan, opportunities may not be available and that the strategic plan may not be successful or effectively managed.

Although we do not have any current definitive plans to do so, in implementing our strategic plan we may expand into additional communities or attempt to strengthen our position in our current markets through opportunistic acquisitions of whole banks or branch locations. To the extent that we undertake acquisitions, we are likely to experience the effects of higher operating expenses relative to operating income from the new operations, which may have an adverse effect on our levels of reported net income, return on average equity and return on average assets. Other effects of engaging in such growth strategies may include potential diversion of our management s time and attention and general disruption to our business. We may be able to adequately and profitably manage anticipated growth.

We are a community bank and our ability to maintain our reputation is critical to the success of our business and the failure to do so may materially adversely affect our performance.

We are a community bank, and our reputation is one of the most valuable components of our business. As such, we strive to conduct our business in a manner that enhances our reputation. This is done, in part, by recruiting, hiring and retaining employees who share our core values of being an integral part of the communities we serve, delivering superior service to our customers and caring about our customers and associates. If our reputation is negatively affected, by the actions of our employees or otherwise, our business and, therefore, our operating results may be adversely affected.

Our asset valuation may include methodologies, estimations and assumptions that are subject to differing interpretations and could result in changes to asset valuations that may materially adversely affect our results of operations or financial condition.

We must use estimates, assumptions, and judgments when financial assets and liabilities are measured and reported at fair value. Assets and liabilities carried at fair value inherently result in a higher degree of financial statement volatility. Fair values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based on quoted market prices and/or other observable inputs provided by independent third-party sources, when available. When such third-party information is not available, we estimate fair value primarily by using cash flows and other financial modeling techniques utilizing assumptions such as credit quality, liquidity, interest rates and other relevant inputs. Changes in underlying factors, assumptions, or estimates in any of these areas could materially impact our future financial condition and results of operations.

During periods of market disruption, including periods of significantly rising or high interest rates, rapidly widening credit spreads or illiquidity, it may be difficult to value certain of our assets if trading becomes less frequent and/or market data becomes less observable. There may be certain asset classes that were in active markets with significant observable data that become illiquid due to the current financial environment. In such cases, certain asset valuations may require more subjectivity and management judgment. As such, valuations may include inputs and assumptions that are less observable or require greater estimation.

The cost of the capital we received from Series C preferred stock we issued under the Small Business Lending Fund will increase significantly if the level of our Qualified Small Business Lending does not represent an increase from our baseline level.

The dividend rate on the Series C preferred stock we issued to the United States Department of Treasury (the Treasury) under the Small Business Lending Fund can fluctuate on a quarterly basis during the first 10 quarters during which the Series C preferred stock is outstanding, based upon changes in the level of Qualified Small Business Lending or QSBL by the Bank. Based upon the increase in the Bank s level of QSBL over a baseline level, the current dividend rate is one percent (1%). If the level of the Bank s qualified small business loans declines so that the percentage increase in QSBL as compared to the baseline level is less than 10%, then the dividend rate payable on the Series C preferred stock would increase to five percent (5%) per annum. For the tenth calendar quarter through four and one half years after issuance, the dividend rate will be fixed between one percent (1%) and seven percent (7%) based upon the increase in QSBL as compared to the baseline. After four and one half years from issuance, the dividend rate will increase to nine percent (9%).

Strong competition within our market area could hurt our profits and slow growth.

We face intense competition both in making loans and attracting deposits. Our competition for loans and deposits includes banks, savings institutions, mortgage banking companies, credit unions and non-banking financial institutions. We compete with regional and national financial institutions that have a substantial presence in our market area, many of which have greater liquidity, higher lending limits, greater access to capital, more established market recognition and more resources and collective experience than us. Furthermore, tax-exempt credit unions operate in our market area and aggressively price their products and services to a large portion of the market. This competition may make it more difficult for us to originate new loans and may force us to offer higher deposit rates than we currently offer. Price competition for loans and deposits might result in lower interest rates earned on our loans and higher interest rates paid on our deposits, which would reduce net interest income. Our profitability depends upon our continued ability to compete successfully in our market area.

Regulatory changes allowing the payment of interest on commercial accounts may negatively impact our deposit strategy and our net interest income.

Our current deposit strategy includes continuing to increase our noninterest-bearing commercial accounts to lower our cost of funds. Recent changes effected by the Dodd-Frank Act, however, permit the payment of interest on such accounts, which was previously prohibited. If our competitors begin paying interest on commercial deposit accounts, this may increase competition from other financial institutions for these deposits and negatively affect our ability to continue to increase commercial deposit accounts, may require us to consider paying interest on such accounts, or may otherwise require us to revise our deposit strategy, any of which could increase our interest expense and therefore our cost of funds and, as a result, decrease our net interest income, which would adversely impact our results of operations.

If the value of real estate in Southern Maryland were to decline, a significant portion of our loan portfolio could become under-collateralized, which could have a material adverse effect on us.

Declines in local economic conditions could adversely affect the value of the real estate collateral securing our loans. A decline in property values would diminish our ability to recover on defaulted loans by selling the real estate collateral, making it more likely that we would suffer losses on defaulted loans. Additionally, a decrease in asset quality could require additions to our allowance for loan losses through increased provisions for loan losses, which would hurt our profits. Real estate values are affected by various factors in addition to local economic conditions, including, among other things, changes in general or regional economic conditions, governmental rules or policies and natural disasters.

We may be adversely affected by economic conditions in our market area, which is significantly dependent on federal government and military employment, as well as national and international economic conditions.

Our marketplace is primarily in the counties of Charles, Calvert and St. Mary s, Maryland and neighboring communities, and to a lesser extent the Northern Neck region of Virginia. Many, if not most, of our customers

15

live and/or work in those counties or in the greater Washington, DC metropolitan area. Because our services are concentrated in this market, we are affected by the general economic conditions in the greater Washington, DC and Southern Maryland area. Changes in the economy may influence the growth rate of our loans and deposits, the quality of the loan portfolio and loan and deposit pricing. A significant decline in economic conditions caused by inflation, recession, unemployment or other factors beyond our control could decrease the demand for banking products and services generally and/or impair the ability of existing borrowers to repay their loans, which could negatively affect our financial condition and performance.

A significant portion of the population in our market area is affiliated with or employed by the federal government or at military facilities located in the area. As a result, a downturn in federal government or military employment could have a negative impact on local economic conditions and real estate collateral values, and could also negatively affect the Company s profitability. The impact on the Southern Maryland economy has been moderated by the presence of federal government agencies and defense facilities. However, the possibility of large cuts to the defense budget hampered economic expansion in 2012 and the effect of the sequestration could negatively impact employment and potentially the ability of borrowers to make their required payments on a timely basis.

We operate in a highly regulated environment and we may be adversely affected by changes in laws and regulations.

The Company and the Bank are subject to extensive regulation, supervision and examination as noted in the *Supervision and Regulation* section of this prospectus. The regulation and supervision by the Maryland Commissioner, the Federal Reserve and the FDIC are not intended to protect the interests of investors in Tri-County Financial common stock. Regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on our operations, the classification of our assets and determination of the level of our allowance for loan losses. Any change in such regulation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulations, legislation or supervisory action, may have a material impact on our operations.

Regulation of the financial services industry is undergoing major changes and future legislation could increase our cost of doing business or harm our competitive position.

In 2010 and 2011, in response to the financial crisis and recession that began in 2008, significant regulatory and legislative changes resulted in broad reform and increased regulation impacting financial institutions. The Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (the Dodd-Frank Act) has created a significant shift in the way financial institutions operate. The Dodd-Frank Act also creates a new federal agency to administer consumer protection and fair lending laws, a function that was formerly performed by the depository institution regulators. The Dodd-Frank Act contains various other provisions designed to enhance the regulation of depository institutions. The full impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our business and operations will not be known for years until regulations implementing the statute are written and adopted. The Dodd-Frank Act may have a material impact on our operations, particularly through increased regulatory burden and compliance costs. Any future legislative changes could have a material impact on our profitability, the value of assets held for investment or collateral for loans. Future legislative changes could require changes to business practices or force us to discontinue businesses and potentially expose us to additional costs, liabilities, enforcement action and reputational risk.

In addition to the enactment of the Dodd-Frank Act, the federal regulatory agencies have taken stronger supervisory actions against financial institutions that have experienced increased loan losses and other weaknesses as a result of the recent economic crisis. The actions include entering into written agreements and cease and desist orders that place certain limitations on operations. Federal bank regulators have also been using with more frequency their ability to impose individual minimum capital requirements on banks, which requirements may be higher than those required

under the Dodd-Frank Act or that would otherwise qualify a bank as being well capitalized under applicable prompt corrective action regulations. If we were to become

16

subject to a regulatory agreement or higher individual minimum capital requirements, such action may have a negative impact on our ability to execute our business plan, as well as our ability to grow, pay dividends or engage in mergers and acquisitions and may result in restrictions in our operations.

Additionally, in early July 2013, the Federal Reserve approved revisions to their capital adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action rules that implement the revised standards of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision, commonly called Basel III, and address relevant provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. Basel III and the regulations of the federal banking agencies require bank holding companies and banks to undertake significant activities to demonstrate compliance with the new and higher capital standards, Compliance with these rules will impose additional costs on the Company and the Bank.

We are periodically subject to examination and scrutiny by a number of banking agencies and, depending upon the findings and determinations of these agencies, we may be required to make adjustments to our business that could adversely affect us.

Federal and state banking agencies periodically conduct examinations of our business, including compliance with applicable laws and regulations. If, as a result of an examination, a federal banking agency was to determine that the financial condition, capital resources, asset quality, asset concentration, earnings prospects, management, liquidity, sensitivity to market risk or other aspects of any of our operations has become unsatisfactory, or that we or our management is in violation of any law or regulation, it could take a number of different remedial actions as it deems appropriate. These actions include the power to enjoin unsafe or unsound practices, to require affirmative actions to correct any conditions resulting from any violation or practice, to issue an administrative order that can be judicially enforced, to direct an increase in our capital, to restrict our growth, to change the asset composition of our portfolio or balance sheet, to assess civil monetary penalties against our officers or directors, to remove officers and directors and, if it is concluded that such conditions cannot be corrected or there is an imminent risk of loss to depositors, to terminate our deposit insurance. If we become subject to such regulatory actions, our business, results of operations and reputation may be negatively impacted.

The Company is a bank holding company and its sources of funds necessary to meet its obligations are limited.

The Company is a bank holding company, and its operations are primarily conducted by the Bank, which is subject to significant federal and state regulation. Cash available to pay dividends to our common and preferred stockholders, pay our obligations and meet our debt service requirements is derived primarily from our existing cash flow sources, dividends received from the Bank, or a combination thereof. Future dividend payments by the Bank to us will require generation of future earnings by the Bank and are subject to certain regulatory guidelines. If the Bank is unable to pay dividends to us, we may not have the resources or cash flow to pay or meet all of our obligations.

If and when the Bank becomes subject to increased internal control reporting under FDIC regulations, if it cannot favorably assess the effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting or if its independent registered public accounting firm is unable to provide an unqualified attestation report on the Bank s internal controls, we may be subject to additional regulatory scrutiny.

If and when the Bank s total assets exceed \$1.0 billion, it will be subject to further reporting requirements under the rules of the FDIC as of for the fiscal year in which it exceeds such threshold. Pursuant to these rules, management will be required to prepare a report that contains an assessment by management of the Bank s effectiveness of internal control structure and procedures for financial reporting as of the end of such fiscal year. The Bank will also be required to obtain an independent public accountant s attestation report concerning its internal control structure over financial reporting. The rules that must be met for management to assess the Bank s internal controls over financial

reporting are complex, and require significant documentation, testing and possible remediation. The effort to comply with regulatory requirements relating to internal controls will likely cause us to incur increased expenses. We also may encounter problems or delays in completing the

17

implementation of any changes necessary to make a favorable assessment of the Bank s internal controls over financial reporting. In addition, in connection with the attestation process, the Bank may encounter problems or delays in completing the implementation of any requested improvements or receiving a favorable attestation from its independent registered public accounting firm. If the Bank cannot favorably assess the effectiveness of its internal controls over financial reporting, or if its independent registered public accounting firm is unable to provide an unqualified attestation report on the Bank s internal controls, investor confidence and the price of our common stock could be adversely affected and we may be subject to additional regulatory scrutiny.

Provisions of our articles of incorporation, bylaws and Maryland law, as well as state and federal banking regulations, could delay or prevent a takeover of us by a third party.

Provisions in our articles of incorporation and bylaws and Maryland corporate law could delay, defer or prevent a third party from acquiring us, despite the possible benefit to our shareholders, or otherwise adversely affect the price of our common stock. These provisions include: supermajority voting requirements for certain business combinations; the election of directors to staggered terms of three years; and advance notice requirements for nominations for election to our board of directors and for proposing matters that shareholders may act on at shareholder meetings. In addition, we are subject to Maryland laws, including one that prohibits us from engaging in a business combination with any interested shareholder for a period of five years from the date the person became an interested shareholder unless certain conditions are met. These provisions may discourage potential takeover attempts, discourage bids for our common stock at a premium over market price or adversely affect the market price of, and the voting and other rights of the holders of, our common stock. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for shareholders to elect directors other than the candidates nominated by our Board.

We rely on other companies to provide key components of our business infrastructure.

Third party vendors provide key components of our business infrastructure such as core data processing systems, internet connections, network access and fund distribution. While we have selected these third party vendors carefully, we cannot control their actions. Any problems caused by these third parties, including those which result from their failure to provide services for any reason or their poor performance of services, could adversely affect our ability to deliver products and services to its customers and otherwise to conduct its business. Replacing these third party vendors could also entail significant delay and expense.

We are dependent on our information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party servicers, and systems failures, interruptions or breaches of security could have a material adverse effect on us.

Our business is dependent on the successful and uninterrupted functioning of our information technology and telecommunications systems and third-party servicers. The failure of these systems, or the termination of a third-party software license or service agreement on which any of these systems is based, could interrupt our operations. Because our information technology and telecommunications systems interface with and depend on third-party systems, we could experience service denials if demand for such services exceeds capacity or such third-party systems fail or experience interruptions. If significant, sustained or repeated, a system failure or service denial could compromise our ability to operate effectively, damage our reputation, result in a loss of customer business, and/or subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny and possible financial liability, any of which could have a material adverse effect on us.

In addition, we provide our customers with the ability to bank remotely, including over the Internet and the telephone. The secure transmission of confidential information over the Internet and other remote channels is a critical element of remote banking. Our network could be vulnerable to unauthorized access, computer viruses, phishing schemes and other security breaches. We may be required to spend significant capital and other resources to protect against the

threat of security breaches and computer viruses, or to alleviate problems caused by security breaches or viruses. To the extent that our activities or the activities of our customers involve the

18

storage and transmission of confidential information, security breaches and viruses could expose us to claims, regulatory scrutiny, litigation and other possible liabilities. Any inability to prevent security breaches or computer viruses could also cause existing customers to lose confidence in our systems and could materially and adversely affect us.

Additionally, financial products and services have become increasingly technology-driven. Our ability to meet the needs of our customers competitively, and in a cost-efficient manner, is dependent on the ability to keep pace with technological advances and to invest in new technology as it becomes available. Many of our competitors have greater resources to invest in technology than we do and may be better equipped to market new technology-driven products and services. The ability to keep pace with technological change is important, and the failure to do so could have a material adverse impact on our business and therefore on our financial condition and results of operations.

Risks Related to this Offering and Ownership of Our Common Stock

The price of our common stock may fluctuate significantly, which may make it difficult for investors to sell shares of common stock at a time or price they find attractive.

Our stock price may fluctuate significantly as a result of a variety of factors, many of which are beyond our control. In addition to those described in *Special Note Regarding Forward Looking Statements*, These factors include:

Actual or anticipated quarterly fluctuations in our operating results and financial condition;

Changes in financial estimates or publication of research reports and recommendations by financial analysts with respect to us or other financial institutions;

Reports in the press or investment community generally or relating to our reputation or the financial services industry;

Strategic actions by us or our competitors, such as acquisitions, restructurings, dispositions, or financings;

Fluctuations in the stock price and operating results of our competitors;

Future sales of our equity or equity-related securities;

Proposed or adopted regulatory changes or developments;

Domestic and international economic factors unrelated to our performance; and

General market conditions and, in particular, developments related to market conditions for the financial services industry.

In addition, in recent years, the stock market in general has experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. This volatility has had a significant effect on the market price of securities issued by many companies, including for reasons unrelated to their operating performance. These broad market fluctuations may adversely affect our stock price, notwithstanding our operating results. We expect that the market price of our common stock will continue to fluctuate and there can be no assurances about the levels of the market prices for our common stock.

The trading history of our common stock is characterized by low trading volume and volatility, which may make it difficult to sell shares of our common stock and may negatively affect the price of our common stock.

Although our common stock currently trades on the OTCQB Marketplace, it has not been regularly traded. We have applied to list our common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol TCFC upon completion of the common stock offering. We cannot predict the extent to which investor interest in us will lead to a more active trading market in our common stock or how liquid that market might become. A public trading

19

market having the desired characteristics of depth, liquidity and orderliness depends upon the presence in the marketplace of willing buyers and sellers of our common stock at any given time, the presence of which is dependent upon the individual decisions of investors, over which we have no control.

We may issue additional equity securities, or engage in other transactions that could dilute our book value or affect the priority of the common stock, which may adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

Our board of directors may determine from time to time that we need to raise additional capital by issuing additional shares of our common stock or other securities, including issuing shares to fund the repayment of the Series C preferred stock. Except as described under *Underwriting*, we are not restricted from issuing additional shares of common stock, including securities that are convertible into or exchangeable for, or that represent the right to receive, common stock. Because our decision to issue securities in any future offering will depend on market conditions and other factors beyond our control, we cannot predict or estimate the amount, timing, or nature of any future offerings, or the prices at which such offerings may be affected. Additional equity offerings may dilute the holdings of our existing shareholders or reduce the market price of our common stock, or both. Holders of our common stock are not entitled to preemptive rights or other protections against dilution. New investors also may have rights, preferences and privileges that are senior to, and that adversely affect, our then-current common shareholders. Additionally, if we raise additional capital by making additional offerings of debt or preferred equity securities, upon liquidation of the Company, holders of our debt securities and shares of preferred stock, and lenders with respect to other borrowings, will receive distributions of our available assets before the holders of our common stock.

As a result of the ownership of directors and officers of the Company, it could be more difficult to obtain approval for some matters submitted to shareholder vote, including acquisitions of the Company. The results of the vote may be contrary to the desires or interests of the public shareholders.

Directors and executive officers of the Company and their affiliates currently own approximately []% of the outstanding shares of common stock, excluding shares which may be acquired upon the exercise of options. By voting against a proposal submitted to shareholders, the directors and officers, as a group, may be able to make approval more difficult for proposals requiring the vote of shareholders, such as some mergers, share exchanges, asset sales, and amendments to the articles of incorporation.

Substantial regulatory limitations on changes of control and anti-takeover provisions of Maryland law may make it more difficult for shareholders to receive a change in control premium.

With certain limited exceptions, federal regulations prohibit a person or company or a group of persons deemed to be acting in concert from, directly or indirectly, acquiring more than 10% (5% if the acquiror is a bank holding company) of any class of the Company s voting stock or obtaining the ability to control in any manner the election of a majority of its directors or otherwise direct the management or policies of the Company without prior notice or application to and the approval of the Federal Reserve. Also, Maryland corporate law contains several provisions that may make it more difficult for a third party to acquire control of the Company without the approval of its board of directors, and may make it more difficult or expensive for a third party to acquire a majority of its outstanding common stock.

Our management team may invest or spend the net proceeds of this offering in ways with which you may not agree or in ways that may not yield a significant return.

Our management will have broad discretion over the use of net proceeds from this offering. We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, including but not limited to, contributing capital to Community Bank, supporting organic growth and for opportunistic acquisitions of whole banking institutions or

branch locations, should appropriate acquisition opportunities arise. Currently, we do not have any agreements, arrangements or understandings regarding any possible acquisitions. As a result, our management

20

will have considerable discretion in the use of the net proceeds, and you will not have the opportunity, as part of your investment decision, to assess whether the proceeds are being used appropriately. The net proceeds may be used for corporate purposes that do not increase our operating results or enhance the value of our common stock.

Reduction or elimination of our quarterly cash dividend could have an adverse impact on the market price of our common stock.

Holders of our common stock are only entitled to receive such dividends as our board of directors may declare out of funds legally available for such payments. Furthermore, holders of our common stock are subject to the prior dividend rights of any holders of our preferred stock. Although we have historically declared cash dividends on our common stock, we are not required to do so. In the future, we may reduce or eliminate our common stock dividend. This could adversely affect the market price of our common stock.

We have issued Series C preferred stock under the Small Business Lending Fund, the holders of which have rights that are senior to and in addition to those of our common shareholders.

We have issued Series C preferred stock, which ranks senior to our common stock. Therefore, we must pay dividends on the Series C preferred stock before we can pay any dividends on our common stock. In the event of our bankruptcy, dissolution, or liquidation, the holders of our Series C preferred stock must be satisfied before we can make any distributions to our common shareholders. If we do not remain current in the payment of dividends on the Series C preferred stock, no dividends may be paid on our common stock.

We are required to pay quarterly dividends on our Series C preferred stock. If we fail to make six dividend payments, the holders of our Series C preferred stock may appoint two directors to our board without the approval of existing board members or our shareholders. These board members would have voting rights and, as members of the board, would have the ability to influence the management and control of the Company and its operations.

The laws that regulate our operations are designed for the protection of depositors and the public, not our shareholders.

The federal and state laws and regulations applicable to our operations give regulatory authorities extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement responsibilities, and generally have been promulgated to protect depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund and not for the purpose of protecting shareholders. These laws and regulations can materially affect our future business. Laws and regulations now affecting us may be changed at any time, and the interpretation of such laws and regulations by bank regulatory authorities is also subject to change. We can give no assurance that future changes in laws and regulations or changes in their interpretation will not adversely affect our business. Legislative and regulatory changes may increase our cost of doing business or otherwise adversely affect us and create competitive advantages for non-bank competitors.

An investment in our common stock is not an insured deposit and, thus, any investment is subject to loss.

Our common stock is not a bank deposit and, therefore, is not insured against loss by the FDIC, any other deposit insurance fund or by any other public or private entity. As a result, if you invest in our common stock, you could lose some or all of your investment.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Assuming an offering price of \$_____ per share (based solely for purposes of this presentation on the closing price on _____, 2013), we estimate that the net proceeds to us from the sale of our common stock in the offering with be \$[] million (or \$[] million if the underwriters exercise in full their option to purchase additional shares of common stock from us), after deducting estimated underwriting discounts and offering expenses.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering for general corporate purposes, including but not limited to, contributing capital to Community Bank and supporting organic growth and opportunistic acquisitions of whole banking institutions or branch locations, should appropriate acquisition opportunities arise. Currently, we do not have any agreements, arrangements or understandings regarding any possible acquisitions.

22

CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of June 30, 2013. Our capitalization is presented on an actual basis and on an as adjusted basis as if the offering had been completed as of June 30, 2013 and assumes:

the net proceeds of the offering at an assumed offering price of \$_____ per share (based solely for purposes of this presentation on the closing price on _____, 2013), after deducting the estimated underwriting discount and commissions and estimated offering expenses; and

the underwriters over-allotment option is not exercised.

The data should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in this prospectus.

June 30, 2013⁽¹⁾
As
Actual Adjusted⁽²⁾
(In thousands,

	ex	cept per sh	are a	mounts)
Long term debt:				
Junior subordinated debentures ⁽³⁾	\$	12,000	\$	12,000
Stockholders equity:				
Preferred Stock, Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual, Series C, \$1,000 par value;				
20,000 shares authorized, 20,000 shares issued or outstanding		20,000		20,000
Common stock, \$0.01 par value; 15,000,000 shares authorized; [] shares issued and				
outstanding; [] shares issued and outstanding as adjusted)		30		
Additional paid-in capital		18,223		
Retained earnings		44,284		44,284
Accumulated other comprehensive loss		(680)		(680)
Unearned ESOP shares		(785)		(785)
Total stockholders equity		81,072		
Total long-term debt and stockholders equity	\$	93,072		
Book value per common share ⁽⁵⁾⁽⁶⁾	\$	20.05		

⁽¹⁾ The number of shares of our common stock outstanding immediately after this offering is based on the number of shares outstanding as of June 30, 2013. This number does not take into account:

[] shares of common stock reserved for issuance upon the exercise of outstanding options at a weighted
average exercise price of \$[] per share; and
[] shares of common stock reserved for issuance pursuant to future grants under our incentive compensation
plans.

- (2) If the underwriters over-allotment option is exercised in full, common stock, additional paid-in capital and total shareholders equity would be \$, \$, and \$, respectively.
- (3) Consists of debt issued in connection with the issuance of our trust preferred securities.
- (4) If the underwriters over-allotment option is exercised in full, the as adjusted number of shares outstanding would be [].
- (5) Actual book value per common share equals total shareholders equity of \$[], divided by [] shares outstanding at June 30, 2013. Book value per share as adjusted equals total shareholders equity of \$ (assuming net proceeds to us from this offering of \$ million), divided by shares outstanding (assuming issuance and sale by us of 1,400,000 shares in this offering).
- (6) The Company had no intangible assets as of June 30, 2013. Thus, tangible book value per share is the same as book value per share at June 30, 2013.

23

PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK AND DIVIDEND INFORMATION

Our common stock is currently quoted on the OTCQB Marketplace under the symbol TCFC. We have applied to list our common stock on the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbol TCFC upon completion of the common stock offering. On ______, 2013, the last reported sale price of our common stock was \$[] per share. Over the three-month period ended September ______, 2013, the average daily trading amounted to approximately [] shares. No assurance can be given that an active trading market will develop in the foreseeable future or can be maintained. As of ______, 2013, there were [] shares of common stock outstanding, held by approximately [] shareholders of record. Certain shares of common stock are held in nominee or street name. The number of beneficial owners of these shares is not included in the foregoing number.

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sales prices per share as reported on the OTCQB Marketplace and the dividends declared per share for the common stock.

				idends Per
	High	Low	\mathbf{S}	hare
Quarter Ended:				
September 30, 2013 (through, 2013)	\$	\$	\$	0.10
June 30, 2013	18.68	16.71		0.10
March 31, 2013	18.50	15.98		0.10
December 31, 2012	16.87	14.31		
September 30, 2012	15.85	13.35		
June 30, 2012	18.50	14.75		
March 31, 2012	17.00	13.60		0.40
December 31, 2011	18.50	15.00		
September 30, 2011	19.05	16.50		
June 30, 2011	17.25	16.10		
March 31, 2011	20.00	16.10		0.40

Dividends. We currently pay a quarterly cash dividend on our common stock of \$0.10 per share, which equals \$0.40 per share on an annualized basis. Before 2013, we paid an annual cash dividend on our common stock which was \$0.40 for 2012. We expect to retain our current dividend rate after the offering. However, in determining the amount and timing of any dividends, the board of directors will take into account our financial condition and results of operations, tax considerations, capital requirements and alternative uses for capital and economic conditions.

The Company s ability to pay dividends may depend, in part, on its receipt of dividends from Community Bank. Maryland banks may only pay dividends from undivided profits or, with the prior approval of the Maryland Commissioner, their surplus in excess of 100% of required capital stock. Maryland banks are further prohibited from declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus fund equals the amount of required capital stock or, if the surplus fund does not equal the amount of capital stock, in an amount in excess of 90% of net earnings. In addition, Federal regulations impose limitations upon all capital distributions by a state member bank, such as cash dividends, payments to repurchase its shares and payments to shareholders of another institution in a cash-out merger. Under the regulations, an application to and the prior approval of the Federal Reserve is required before any capital distribution if the institution does not meet the criteria for expedited treatment of applications under applicable

regulations (*i.e.*, generally examination ratings in the top two categories), the total capital distributions for the calendar year exceed net income for that year plus the amount of retained net income for the preceding two years, the institution would be undercapitalized following the distribution or the distribution would otherwise be contrary to a statute, regulation or agreement with the Federal Reserve or the Maryland Commissioner. If an application is not required, the institution must still provide prior notice to the Federal Reserve of the capital contribution since it is a subsidiary of a holding company. If Community Bank s capital falls below its regulatory requirements or the Maryland Commissioner notified it that

24

it is in need of more than normal supervision, Community Bank sability to make capital distributions could be restricted. In addition, the Maryland Commissioner could prohibit a proposed capital distribution by any institution, which would otherwise be permitted by the regulation, if the Maryland Commissioner determines that such distribution would constitute an unsafe or unsound practice.

The Federal Reserve also has the power to prohibit dividends by bank holding companies, such as the Company, if their actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statement on the payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies, which expresses the Federal Reserve s view that a bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the company s net income for the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the company s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve also indicated that it would be inappropriate for a bank holding company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay dividends. Under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve, the Federal Reserve may prohibit a bank holding company from paying any dividends if the holding company s bank subsidiary is classified as undercapitalized. As an insured depository institution, Community Bank may not pay dividends or distribute any of its capital assets while it remains in default on any assessment due the FDIC. Community Bank currently is not in default under any of its obligations to the FDIC.

25

MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this prospectus. This discussion and analysis may contain forward-looking statements that involve risks, uncertainties and assumptions. Certain risks, uncertainties and other factors, including but not limited to those set forth under Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements, Risk Factors and elsewhere in this prospectus, may cause actual results to differ materially from those projected in the forward-looking statements. We assume no obligation to update any of these forward-looking statements.

Overview

The Bank has sought to increase assets through loan production. The Bank believes that its ability to offer fast, flexible, local decision-making will continue to attract significant new business relationships and enhance asset growth. The Bank s marketing is also directed towards increasing its balances of both consumer and commercial transaction deposit accounts. The Bank believes that increases in these deposit account types will lessen the Bank s dependence on higher-cost funding, such as certificates of deposit and borrowings. Although management believes that this strategy will increase financial performance over time, increasing the balances of certain products, such as commercial loans and transaction deposit accounts, may also increase the Bank s noninterest expense. We recognize that certain lending and deposit products increase the possibility of losses from credit and other risks.

The Bank conducts business through its 11 branch locations including its main office in Waldorf, Maryland, and branch offices in Waldorf, Bryans Road, Dunkirk, Leonardtown, La Plata, Charlotte Hall, Prince Frederick, Lusby, California, Maryland; and King George, Virginia. The Bank has the largest deposit market share in the tri-county area, which includes Charles, Calvert and St. Mary s Counties, according to the June 2012 FDIC Summary of Deposit Survey the most recent survey available.

The U.S. economy continued to experience slow growth throughout 2013 and 2012. Locally, real estate values appear to have stabilized and there were positive trends in housing during 2012. However, uncertainty for small and medium size businesses lessened the demand for lending. The impact on the Southern Maryland economy has been moderated by the presence of federal government agencies and defense facilities, but the possibility of large cuts to the defense budget hampered economic expansion. Even through the difficult economic environment, the Bank s capital levels and asset quality remained strong. Net income for the six months ended June 30, 2013 increased \$1.3 million to \$3.2 million, or \$1.05 per common share compared to \$1.9 million, or \$0.64 per common share for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased \$2.3 million to \$4.8 million, or \$1.57 per common share compared to \$2.5 million, or \$0.82 per common share for the year ended December 31, 2011.

On September 22, 2011, the U.S. Department of Treasury purchased \$20.0 million of the Company s preferred stock under the Small Business Lending Fund (the SBLF). The Company utilized \$16.4 million of the proceeds to redeem the preferred stock that it sold to the Treasury under the Troubled Asset Relief Program Capital Purchase Program (TARP). The net proceeds, after redeeming the TARP securities, were invested by the Company in the Bank. SBLF dividend rates can fluctuate between 1% and 7% during the first four and one half years, depending on the level of the Bank s qualified small business lending. During 2012, the Company qualified for a 1% dividend rate, which decreased annual preferred dividends by \$646,930 to \$200,000 compared with previously paid annual TARP preferred dividends of \$846,930. The Company has continued to qualify for a 1% dividend rate throughout the first half of 2013.

Comparison of Results of Operations For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012

General. Consolidated net income available to common shareholders for the six months ended June 30, 2013 increased \$1.3 million, or 64.6%, to \$3.2 million, or \$1.05 per common share (fully diluted), compared to \$1.9 million, or \$0.64 per common share (fully diluted), for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The year to date increase in diluted earnings per share of \$0.41 was attributable to increases in net interest income of \$1.1 million and noninterest income of \$514,921 and decreases in the provision for loan losses of \$422,905, partially offset by increased income tax expense of \$818,880. Noninterest expense remained stable at \$12.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, an \$11,861 decrease or 0.10%, from the comparable six month period in 2012.

Net Interest Income.

	Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2013	2012	\$ Change	% Change
		(Dollars in	Thousands)	
Interest and Dividend Income				
Loans, including fees	\$ 18,364	\$ 18,511	\$ (147)	(0.8)%
Taxable interest and dividends on investment				
securities	1,221	1,697	(476)	28.0
Interest on deposits with banks	5	3	2	66.7
Total Interest and Dividend Income	19,590	20,211	(621)	(3.1)
Interest Expenses				
Deposits	2,968	4,609	(1,641)	(35.6)
Short-term borrowings	38	32	6	18.8
Long-term debt	1,036	1,148	(112)	(9.8)
Total Interest Expenses	4,042	5,789	(1,747)	(30.2)
Net Interest Income	15,548	14,422	1,126	7.8
Provision for loan losses	355	778	(423)	(54.4)
Net Interest Income After Provision for Loan Losses	\$ 15,193	\$ 12 <i>6</i> / /	\$ 1.549	11.4
Luan Lusses	\$ 13,193	\$ 13,644	\$ 1,549	11.4

Net interest income increased from the comparable six months in 2012 due primarily to reduced funding costs and the Company s ability to maintain its loan yields in the current low rate environment due to its customer relationship focus. An important component of lowering the Company s cost of funds was the increase in average noninterest-bearing deposits of \$15.7 million for the first six months of 2013 to \$83.1 million compared to \$67.4 million for the first six months of 2012. The Company s 2013 year to date cost of funds, which includes debt and interest and noninterest-bearing deposits, decreased 39 basis points to 0.93% from 1.32% for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The positive trend in interest expense is currently expected to continue during the third quarter of 2013 due to re-pricing of maturing time deposits to current market rates which are significantly lower than original rates. During

the same comparable period average loan yields decreased 15 basis points from 5.20% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to 5.05% for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Net interest income increased to \$15.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$14.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Net interest margin was 3.50% for the six months ended June 30, 2013, a 28 basis point increase from 3.22% for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase was largely the result of a rapid decrease in the Company s cost of interest-bearing deposits that began during 2012 as certificates of deposit re-priced downward and rates declined on money market accounts. The average cost of total interest-bearing liabilities decreased 40 basis points from 1.43% for the first six months of 2012 to 1.03%

for the first six months of 2013. This decrease in funding costs was partially offset by declining yields on assets. During the comparable period average loan yields decreased 15 basis points from 5.20% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to 5.05% for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Interest and dividend income decreased by \$620,856 to \$19.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$20.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Decreases in yields on loans and investments were partially offset by the \$15.1 million of growth in the average balance of loans. A reduction in average yields on interest-earning assets resulted in a decrease in interest income of \$832,456 as the average yield on earning assets decreased from 4.51% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to 4.40% for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The Company has been successful over the last several years in limiting the effect of the lower interest rate environment on loan rates through pricing and interest rate floors. Interest and dividend income was further reduced \$170,237 as average interest-earning investment balances decreased \$22.5 million from \$184.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to \$162.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013. These reductions were partially offset by an increase in interest income of \$381,837 due to growth of \$15.1 million in the average balance of loans from \$712.6 million to \$727.7 million.

Interest expense decreased \$1.7 million to \$4.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$5.8 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 due primarily to a reduction in the average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Interest expense decreased \$1.6 million due to a decrease in rates. This was principally achieved by a decrease in the average rates paid on certificates of deposits and money market accounts, which declined from 1.67% and 0.68%, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to 1.26% and 0.32%, respectively, for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The Company has been successful in increasing its core deposits and reducing its cost of funds in the low interest rate environment existing during the last several years. In addition, the average rate paid on long-term debt decreased from 3.26% for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to 2.61% for the comparable period in 2013. Interest expense also decreased \$253,126 due to a decline in average interest-bearing deposit balances of \$27.3 million from \$728.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012 to \$700.7 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013. These reductions in interest expense were partially offset by an \$86,141 increase in interest expense due to a \$5.8 million increase in average debt balances. The positive trend in net interest income is expected to continue in the third quarter as funding costs are expected to decrease at a faster rate than asset yields.

28

The following table presents information on the average balances of the Company s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and interest earned or paid thereon for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. There are no tax equivalency adjustments.

		For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 2012				
	Average Balance	Interest	Average Yield/ Cost (Dollars in T	Average Balance Thousands)	Interest	Average Yield/ Cost
Assets						
Interest-earning assets:						
Loan Portfolio ⁽¹⁾	\$727,732	\$18,364	5.05%	\$712,597	\$ 18,511	5.20%
Investment securities, federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits	161,980	1,226	1.51	184,477	1,700	1.84
Total interest-earning assets	889,712	19,590	4.40	897,074	20,211	4.50
Cash and cash equivalents	10,936			8,393		
Other assets	57,073			53,564		
Total Assets	\$ 957,721			\$ 959,031		
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity						
Interest-bearing liabilities:						
Savings	\$ 36,859	\$ 19	0.10%	\$ 31,716	\$ 38	0.24%
Interest-bearing demand and money						
market accounts	263,521	419	0.32	252,889	860	0.68
Certificates of deposit	400,292	2,530	1.26	443,425	3,711	1.67
Long-term debt	67,424	879	2.61	59,870	977	3.26
Short-term debt	5,459	38	1.39	7,228	32	0.89
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest						
in junior subordinated debentures	12,000	157	2.62	12,000	171	2.85
Total interest-bearing liabilities	785,555	4,042	1.03	807,128	5,789	1.43
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits	83,133			67,434		
Other liabilities	7,834			7,421		
Stockholders equity	81,199			77,048		
Total Liabilities and Stockholders	Φ.057.731			Φ.0.50, 0.2.1		
Equity	\$ 957,721			\$959,031		
Net interest income		\$ 15,548			\$ 14,422	
Interest rate spread			3.37%			3.07%

Net yield on interest-earning assets (net interest margin) ⁽²⁾	3.50%	3.22%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest bearing liabilities	113.26%	111.14%
Weighted average cost of funds (including deposits)	0.93%	1.32%
Weighted average cost of deposits	0.76%	1.16%

⁽¹⁾ Average balance includes non-accrual loans.

⁽²⁾ Represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

The table below sets forth certain information regarding changes in interest income and interest expense of the Bank for the periods indicated. For each category of interest earning asset and interest bearing liability, information is provided on changes attributable to (1) changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by old rate); and (2) changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by old volume). Changes in rate-volume (changes in rate multiplied by the change in volume) have been allocated to changes due to volume.

	Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 Compared to Six Months Ended June 30, 2012 Due to				
	Volume	Rate	Total		
	(Da	ollars in Thousa	ends)		
Interest income:					
Loan portfolio ⁽¹⁾	\$ 382	\$ (529)	\$ (147)		
Investment securities, federal funds sold and interest					
bearing deposits	(170)	(304)	(474)		
Total interest-earning assets	\$ 212	\$ (833)	\$ (621)		
Interest-bearing liabilities:					
Savings	\$ 3	\$ (22)	\$ (19)		
Interest-bearing demand and money market accounts	17	(458)	(441)		
Certificates of deposit	(273)	(908)	(1,181)		
Long-term debt	98	(196)	(98)		
Short-term debt	(12)	18	6		
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in junior					
subordinated debentures		(14)	(14)		
Total interest-bearing liabilities	\$ (167)	\$ (1,580)	\$ (1,747)		
Net change in net interest income	\$ 379	\$ 747	\$ 1,126		

(1) Average balance includes non-accrual loans.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses decreased \$422,905 from the comparable period in 2012 to \$354,600 for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and reflected a decrease in the allowance for specific non-performing loans and a decrease in net charge-offs. The specific allowance is based on management s estimate of realizable value of the expected cash flows of the loans. The provision for loan losses was impacted by increasing average loan balances, economic conditions that affected the qualitative loss factors used to compute the allowance, the increased level of delinquencies and reduced net charge-offs. Overall delinquency, which included all loans greater than 30 days past due, increased from 1.57% at December 31, 2012 to 1.81% at June 30, 2013.

Non-performing loans (which exclude performing non-accrual loans and TDRs), as a percentage of total loans were 1.63% at June 30, 2013 compared to 1.15% at December 31, 2012. Net charge-offs decreased \$400,405 from \$968,409 for the six months ended June 30, 2013 to \$568,004 for the six months ended June 30, 2013.

Noninterest Income. The following table shows the components of noninterest income and the dollar and percentage changes for the periods presented.

	Six Mon Jun			
	2013	2012 (Dollars in	\$ Change Thousands)	% Change
Loan appraisal, credit, and miscellaneous charges	\$ 319	\$ 383	\$ (64)	(16.7)%
Gain on sale of asset	11		11	NM
Net losses on sale of OREO		(97)	97	(100.0)
Income from bank owned life insurance	308	319	(11)	(3.4)
Service charges	1,104	1,003	101	10.1
Gain on sale of loans held for sale	516	135	381	282.2
Total Noninterest Income	\$ 2,258	\$ 1,743	\$ 515	29.5

The increase in noninterest income was principally due to an increase in gains on loans held for sale. Gains on loan sales increased to \$516,050 on sales of \$17.6 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$135,341 on sales of \$3.3 million for the same period in 2012. The lower margin in 2013 was reflective of the changing interest rate environment. Noninterest income for the first quarter of 2012 included net losses on the sale of other real estate owned (OREO) compared to none for the comparable period in 2013. During the six months ended June 30, 2012, the Company disposed of three OREO properties resulting in proceeds of \$299,032 and recognized net losses of \$96,917. The increase in service charge income for the six months ended June 30, 2013 was principally the result of the combination of an increase in revenue from its affiliation with Community Wealth Advisors during 2013 with the Company s waiver of certain service charge fees during its conversion to a new data processing system during the second quarter of 2012. The decline in loan fees for the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the same period for 2012 was primarily the result of an increase in deferred loan fees classified as interest income.

Noninterest Expense. The following table shows the components of noninterest expense and the dollar percentage changes for the periods presented.

	Six Months Ended June 30,			
	2013	2012	\$ Change	% Change
		(Dollars in	Thousands)	
Noninterest Expense				
Salary and employee benefits	\$ 7,147	\$ 6,490	\$ 657	10.1%
Occupancy expense	1,052	902	150	16.6
Advertising	273	259	14	5.4
Data processing expense	730	790	(60)	(7.6)
Professional fees	462	569	(107)	(18.8)
Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and				
equipment	390	297	93	31.3
Telephone communications	103	92	11	12.0

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Office supplies	109	134	(25)	(18.7)
FDIC insurance	574	891	(317)	(35.6)
Valuation allowance on OREO	330	626	(296)	(47.3)
Other	1,079	1,211	(132)	(10.9)
Total Noninterest Expense	\$ 12,249	\$12,261	\$ (12)	(0.1)

	Six Montl June			
	2013	2012	\$ Change	% Change
		(Dollars in	(Thousands	
Compensation and Benefits	\$ 7,147	\$ 6,490	\$ 657	10.12%
OREO Valuation Allowance and Expenses	394	657	(263)	(40.02)
Other Operating Expenses	4,708	5,114	(406)	(7.93)
Total Noninterest Expense	\$ 12,249	\$ 12,261	\$ (12)	(0.10)

For the six months ended June 30, 2013, noninterest expense decreased \$11,861, or 0.1%, to \$12.2 million from \$12.2 million for the comparable period in 2012. Year to date increases in compensation and benefits were offset by decreases in FDIC insurance premiums, OREO expenses and other operating expenses. Employee compensation and data processing continue to be impacted by greater regulatory compliance costs for both existing regulation and the initial impact of the Dodd-Frank Act. The increase in employee compensation also reflects an increase in loan production staff. Other operating expenses for the six months ended June 30, 2013 decreased from the comparable period in 2012 due to one-time conversion costs for a change of our data processing system in the first six months of 2012 and reductions in FDIC insurance premiums due to a combination of changes in the manner in which FDIC-insured institutions calculate deposit insurance assessments and a decrease in our assessment base. Depreciation and occupancy expense increased primarily due to the Company s opening during the second half of 2012 a new operations center in Waldorf, Maryland and its 11th branch in King George, Virginia. OREO expenses declined for the six months ended June 30, 2013 as compared to the same period in 2012 as a result of the stabilization of real estate values in our market area, which resulted in reduced valuation expense on our OREO properties.

Increased revenues and a moderate decrease in noninterest expenses have improved the efficiency ratio to 68.79% for the six months ended June 30, 2013 from 75.85% for the six months ended June 30, 2012.

Income Tax Expense. The Company recorded income tax expense of \$1.9 million, or 36.5% of pretax earnings of \$5.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared with \$1.1 million, or 34.5% of pretax earnings of \$3.1 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The increase in the effective tax rate was the result of tax exempt income being a smaller percentage of total income in 2013 than the comparable period in 2012.

Comparison of Results of Operations For the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

General. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company reported consolidated net income of \$5.0 million (\$1.57 basic and diluted earnings per common share) compared to consolidated net income of \$3.2 million (\$0.83 basic and \$0.82 diluted earnings per common share) for the year ended December 31, 2011. Diluted earnings per share of \$1.57 represented an increase in 89.2% over 2011. Consolidated net income available to common shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2012 increased \$2.3 million, or 92.5%, to \$4.8 million compared to \$2.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. Reduced funding costs, improved asset quality and increased average interest-earning asset balances were the primary reasons for the increase in net income available to common shareholders for 2012 compared to 2011. These positive impacts to income were partially offset by increased noninterest expense, largely for salary and employee benefits as new individuals were hired to support organic growth. Return on common equity increased 382 basis points from 4.47% for 2011 to 8.29% for 2012.

Increases in net interest income of \$2.9 million and noninterest income of \$216,987 and decreases in the provision for loan losses of \$1.6 million and preferred stock dividends paid of \$472,488 were partially offset by increases in noninterest expense of \$1.6 million and income tax expense of \$1.2 million. The decrease in preferred dividends was

due to our participation in the SBLF and repayment of TARP securities during the third quarter of 2011. (See Notes 1 and 18 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus).

Net Interest Income. The primary component of the Company s revenue is its net interest income, which is the difference between income earned on assets and interest paid on the deposits and borrowings used to fund them. Net interest income is affected by the difference between the yields earned on the Company s interest-earning assets and the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, as well as the relative amounts of such assets and liabilities. Net interest income, divided by average interest-earning assets, represents the net interest margin.

Net interest income for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$29.7 million compared to \$26.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The \$2.9 million increase was due to an increase in interest income of \$333,487 and a decrease in interest expense of \$2.5 million. Changes in the components of net interest income due to changes in average balances of assets and liabilities and to changes caused by changes in interest rates are presented in the rate volume analysis included below.

The net interest margin was 3.31% for the year ended December 31, 2012, a 10 basis point increase from 3.21% in 2011. The increase was largely the result of the decrease in the cost of funds during 2012, which more than offset declines in yields on average interest-earning assets. Net interest margin and net interest income increased in every quarter during 2012. Average deposit costs decreased 38 basis points from 1.43% for 2011 to 1.05% for 2012 as the Company s maturing certificates of deposit re-priced at market rates that were lower than the rates being paid. At December 31, 2012, \$242.0 million of certificates of deposits were scheduled to mature in 2013. The Company has been successful in increasing its core deposits and reducing the cost of funds in the low interest rate environment over the last several years. The Company has limited the effect of the lower interest rate environment on loan rates through pricing and the use of interest rate floors.

Interest and dividend income increased \$3.5 million to \$40.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$40.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The increase in interest and dividend income was attributable to growth in the average balances of interest-earning assets partially offset by a reduction in average yields. Average balances of interest-earning assets increased \$59.9 million from \$836.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$896.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012, primarily as a result of an increase of \$48.6 million in the average balance of loans. Average yields on interest-earning assets decreased from 4.78% for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 4.50% for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Loan interest income increased \$762,773 due to additional interest earned of \$2.5 million as a result of larger average loan balances offset by a decrease of \$1.7 million due to a reduction in average loan yields from 5.42% for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 5.16% for the year ended December 31, 2012. The average balance of loans increased \$48.6 million from \$671.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$719.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Since 2008, the average balance of loans has increased 46.6% or \$228.7 million from \$491.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2008 to \$719.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Interest and dividends earned on investments decreased \$429,286 primarily due to a \$630,976 reduction attributable to falling average yields from 2.17% for the year ended December 31, 2011 to 1.79% for fiscal 2012. The decrease due to rates was offset by additional investment interest of \$201,690 due to an increase of \$11.3 million in average invested balances to \$176.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Interest expense decreased \$2.5 million to \$10.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$13.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 due to reductions in interest paid on deposits and debt service of \$2.3 million and \$194,976, respectively. The decrease in interest expense was primarily due to a reduction in the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities from 1.73% for the year end December 31, 2011 to 1.32% for the year ended December 31, 2011.

The \$2.3 million reduction in deposit interest expense was primarily due to a decrease in interest rates paid on certificates of deposit and money market accounts, which declined from 1.94% and 1.00% to 1.60% and 0.54%, respectively. The reduction in deposit rates represented \$2.5 million, or 93.6% of the total interest-bearing liability rate variance of \$2.7 million. Decreased interest expense on deposit accounts was partially offset by \$209,984 in

increased interest expense due to higher average balances of deposits. Average interest-bearing deposits increased by \$44.0 million from \$683.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$727.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2012.

Interest expense also decreased \$194,976 due to a reduction in interest rates paid on average outstanding debt. Total outstanding debt remained stable averaging approximately \$75.8 million for 2012. The average rate paid on long-term, short-term and junior subordinated debentures decreased 25 basis points to 2.91% from 3.16% for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The following table presents information on the average balances of the Company s interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities and interest earned or paid thereon for the past three fiscal years. There are no tax equivalency adjustments.

		2012			2011			2010	
	Average Balance	Interest	Average Yield/ Cost	Average Balance (Dollar	Interest rs in Thous	Average Yield/ Cost ands)	Average Balance	Interest	Average Yield/ Cost
Assets									
Interest-earning assets									
Loan portfolio ⁽¹⁾	\$719,798	\$ 37,146	5.16%	\$671,242	\$ 36,383	5.42%	\$615,887	\$ 34,995	5.68%
Investment securities, federal funds sold and interest-bearing deposits	176,277	3,147	1.79	164,969	3,576	2.17	165,753	4,542	2.74
Total									
interest-earning assets	896,075	40,293	4.50	836,211	39,959	4.78	781,640	39,537	5.06
Cash and cash equivalents	12,267			15,148			13,709		
Other assets	54,719			54,324			45,107		
Total Assets	\$ 963,061			\$ 905,683			\$ 840,456		
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity									
Interest-bearing liabilities									
Savings	\$ 32,577	55	0.17	\$ 31,446	109	0.35	\$ 30,355	123	0.41
Interest-bearing demand and money	262,331	1,423	0.54	217,183	2,162	1.00	161,494	1,510	0.94

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

market accounts									
Certificates of									
deposit	432,487	6,918	1.60	434,811	8,447	1.94	421,525	9,305	2.21
Long-term debt	60,206	1,819	3.02	61,421	2,037	3.32	70,823	2,278	3.22
Short-term	2.620	£ 1	1.40	2.5(2	40	1.01	2.072	40	1 41
borrowings Guaranteed	3,639	51	1.40	2,563	49	1.91	2,973	42	1.41
preferred beneficial interest in junior subordinated	4.5.000						40.000		
debentures	12,000	338	2.82	12,000	317	2.64	12,000	322	2.68
Total									
interest-bearing									
liabilities	803,240	10,604	1.32	759,424	13,121	1.73	699,170	13,580	1.94
Noninterest-bearing									
demand deposits	74,161			66,105			65,041		
Other liabilities	7,910			7,168			5,772		
Stockholders equity	y 77,750			72,986			70,473		
Total Liabilities									
and Stockholders									
Equity	\$ 963,061			\$ 905,683			\$ 840,456		
Net interest income		\$ 29,689			\$ 26,838			\$ 25,957	
Interest rate spread			3.18%			3.05%			3.12%
Net yield on interest-earning assets (net interest									
margin) ⁽²⁾			3.31%			3.21%			3.32%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets to average interest-bearing									
liabilities			111.56%			110.11%			111.80%

⁽¹⁾ Average balance includes non-accrual loans

⁽²⁾ Represents net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

The table below sets forth certain information regarding changes in interest income and interest expense of the Company for the periods indicated. For each category of interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability,

information is provided on changes attributable to (1) changes in volume (changes in volume multiplied by old rate); and (2) changes in rate (changes in rate multiplied by old volume). Changes in rate-volume (changes in rate multiplied by the change in volume) have been allocated to changes due to volume.

	Year ended December 31, 2012 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2011 Due to			Year en Compai Dece	Ended	
	Volume	Rate	Total	Volume	Rate	Total
		(Dollars in	Thousands)		
Interest-Earning Assets						
Loan portfolio ⁽¹⁾	\$ 2,506	\$ (1,743)	\$ 763	\$3,000	\$ (1,612)	\$1,388
Investment securities, federal funds sold and						
interest bearing deposits	202	(631)	(429)	(17)	(949)	(966)
Total Interest-Earning Assets	\$ 2,708	\$ (2,374)	\$ 334	\$ 2,983	\$ (2,561)	\$ 422
Interest-Bearing Liabilities						
Savings	\$ 2	\$ (56)	\$ (54)	\$ 4	\$ (18)	\$ (14)
Interest-bearing demand and money market						
accounts	245	(984)	(739)	554	98	652
Certificates of deposit	(37)	(1,492)	(1,529)	258	(1,116)	(858)
Long-term debt	(37)	(181)	(218)	(312)	71	(241)
Short-term debt	15	(13)	2	(8)	15	7
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in junior						
subordinated debentures		21	21		(5)	(5)
Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities	\$ 188	\$ (2,705)	\$ (2,517)	\$ 496	\$ (955)	\$ (459)
Net Change in Net Interest Income	\$2,520	\$ 331	\$ 2,851	\$ 2,487	\$ (1,606)	\$ 881

(1) Average balance includes non-accrual loans.

Provision for Loan Losses. The provision for loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2012 was \$2.5 million, compared to \$4.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. The decrease of \$1.6 million reflected improved loan quality, the resolution of non-performing and classified loans and a decrease in net charge-offs and delinquent loans.

Noninterest Income.

Years	Ended		
Decem	ber 31,	\$ Change	% Change
2012	2011	2012 vs. 2011	2012 vs. 2011

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

(Dollars in Thousands)

		Dona	S III IIIO	usarias	
Loan appraisal, credit, and miscellaneous					
charges	\$ 968	\$ 790	\$	178	22.5%
Gain on sale of asset		23		(23)	(100.0)
Net gains on sale of OREO	88	454		(366)	(80.6)
Net losses on sale of investment securities	(4)			(4)	NM
Income from bank owned life insurance	632	650		(18)	(2.8)
Service charges	2,097	1,989		108	5.4
Gain on sale of loans held for sale	629	287		342	119.2
Total Noninterest Income	\$4,410	\$4,193	\$	217	5.2

The increase in noninterest income was due to the growth of service charges, loan fees and gains on loans held for sale partially offset by a decrease in net gains on the sale of OREO and a decrease in other revenues. The

reduction in gains on the sale of OREO was primarily the result of the sale of one commercial property in 2011 for \$1.7 million, which resulted in a gain of \$428,000. Service charges and fees are primarily generated by our ability to attract and retain transaction-based deposit accounts and by loan servicing fees. In 2012, service charges increased primarily due to increased cash management and brokerage services. These increases were partially offset by decreased fees due to new regulatory guidance that limits the amount of customer fees on certain customer transactions. Gains on loan sales increased as loans sales increased from \$9.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 to \$14.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2012. Gross gains on loan sales increased 152 basis points from 2.95% in 2011 to 4.47% in 2012. The higher margin in 2012 was reflective of the changing interest rate environment.

Noninterest Expense.

	Years Ended December 31,			Change	% Change
	2012	2011		2 vs. 2011	2012 vs. 2011
		(Dollars	in Tho	usands)	
Salary and employee benefits	\$ 13,486	\$ 11,082	\$	2,404	21.7%
Occupancy expense	1,894	1,833		61	3.3
Advertising	542	492		50	10.2
Data processing expense	1,551	1,306		245	18.8
Professional fees	1,010	997		13	1.3
Depreciation of furniture, fixtures and					
equipment	680	436		244	56.0
Telephone communications	184	175		9	5.1
Office supplies	257	185		72	38.9
FDIC insurance	1,257	1,429		(172)	(12.0)
Valuation allowance on OREO	674	1,963		(1,289)	(65.7)
Other	2,269	2,351		(82)	(3.5)
Total Noninterest Expense	\$ 23,804	\$ 22,249	\$	1,555	7.0

Noninterest expense increased primarily due to growth in employee compensation, increased data processing and increased depreciation, partially offset by decreases in OREO valuation allowance expense and FDIC insurance premiums. The increases in salary and employee benefits and data processing costs reflect growth in our workforce and processing needs to fully staff branches, an increasing need for highly skilled employees due to the increasing complexity of our business and increased regulatory compliance requirements, including the initial impact of the Dodd-Frank Act, and continued increases in benefit costs. Data processing also increased from the comparable period in 2011 due to conversion-related costs for a change of the data processing system during the first six months of 2012. Depreciation increased due to additions during 2012 to premises and equipment, primarily for its new operations center in Waldorf, Maryland and its 11th branch in King George, Virginia.

The Company completed 2012 with an efficiency ratio of 69.81% compared to 71.70% for fiscal 2011. During the third and fourth quarters of 2012, the efficiency ratio decreased to 64.75% and 64.00%, respectively. The ratio improved as net interest income and noninterest income increased and operating expenses declined after the impact of one-time conversion expenses in connection with the change of the data processing system.

Income Tax Expense. For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recorded income tax expense of \$2.8 million compared to \$1.5 million in the prior year. The effective tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 were 35.75% and 32.67%, respectively. The increase in the effective tax rate was the result of tax exempt income comprising a smaller percentage of total income in 2012 than in fiscal 2011.

36

Comparison of Financial Condition at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012

Assets.

	June 30, 2013	2	mber 31, 2012	\$ Change	% Change
			Pollars in T	· ·	
Cash and due from banks	\$ 10,769	\$	10,697	\$ 72	0.7%
Federal funds sold	3,470		190	3,280	1,726.3
Interest-bearing deposits with banks	1,337		409	928	226.9
Securities available for sale, at fair value	54,104		47,206	6,898	14.6
Securities held to maturity, at amortized cost	99,896		112,619	(12,723)	(11.3)
FHLB and FRB stock at cost	6,667		5,476	1,191	21.7
Loans held for sale	320			320	NM
Loans receivable net of ALLL of \$8,034 and \$8,247	745,252		747,641	(2,389)	(0.3)
Premises and equipment, net	19,290		19,782	(492)	(2.5)
Other real estate owned	6,932		6,891	41	0.6
Accrued interest receivable	2,903		2,904	(1)	
Investment in bank owned life insurance	19,039		18,731	308	1.6
Other assets	10,123		9,093	1,030	11.3
Total Assets	\$ 980,102	\$	981,639	\$ (1,537)	(0.2)

Total assets at June 30, 2013 of \$980.1 million decreased by \$1.5 million compared to total assets of \$981.6 million at December 31, 2012 and reflect a stable loan portfolio. The decrease in total assets was primarily attributable to a decrease in the loan portfolio and securities portfolios, partially offset by an increase in cash and cash equivalents. The differences in allocations between the different cash and investment categories reflect operational needs.

Loans.

Details of the Bank s loan portfolio are presented below:

	June 30,		December 31,	
	2013	%	2012	%
		(Dollars in	Thousands)	
Commercial real estate	\$ 434,617	57.63%	\$ 419,667	55.47%
Residential first mortgages	165,434	21.93	177,663	23.48
Construction and land development	29,119	3.86	31,819	4.21
Home equity and second mortgage	21,769	2.89	21,982	2.91
Commercial loans	84,993	11.27	88,158	11.65
Consumer loans	937	0.12	995	0.13
Commercial equipment	17,347	2.30	16,268	2.15
	754,216	100.00%	756,552	100.00%

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Less:			
Deferred loan fees	930	664	
Allowance for loan loss	8,034	8,247	
	8,964	8,911	
	\$ 745,252	\$ 747,641	

Loans decreased \$2.4 million from \$747.6 million at December 31, 2012 to \$745.3 million at June 30, 2013, due to net decreases in residential mortgages, construction and land development loans and commercial loans partially offset by increases in commercial real estate and commercial equipment loans.

Principal Loan Categories.

Commercial Real Estate. The permanent financing of commercial and other improved real estate projects, including office buildings, retail locations, churches, and other special purpose buildings is the largest component of our loan portfolio. The primary security on a commercial real estate loan is the real property and the leases or businesses that produce income for the real property. Commercial real estate loans amounted to \$434.6 million, or 57.6% of the loan portfolio, at June 30, 2013 as compared to \$419.7 million, or 55.5% of the portfolio at December 31, 2012. This portfolio has increased in both absolute size and as a percentage of the loan portfolio in each of the last four years and for the six months ended June 30, 2013. The increase in the size of our commercial real estate loan portfolio reflects our success in servicing the needs of our targeted small and medium sized businesses within our market area.

Residential First Mortgages. Residential first mortgage loans made by us are generally long-term loans, amortized on a monthly or bi-weekly basis, with principal and interest due each payment. The initial contractual loan payment period for residential loans typically ranges from ten to 30 years. The Bank s experience indicates that real estate loans remain outstanding for significantly shorter time periods than their contractual terms. Borrowers may refinance or prepay loans at their option, without penalty. The Bank originates both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential first mortgages. As of June 30, 2013, residential first mortgages were \$165.4 million, or 21.9% of the loan portfolio as compared to \$177.7 million, or 23.5% of the loan portfolio, as of December 31, 2012. First and second quarter 2013 residential loan production was focused on loans originated for sale in the secondary market.

Commercial. We offer commercial loans to our business customers, which primarily consist of demand loans and lines of credit. Such loans can be made for terms of up to five years. However, most of these loans are originated for a term of two years or less. We offer both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans under these product lines. When making commercial business loans, the Bank considers the financial condition of the borrower, the borrower s payment history of both corporate and personal debt, the projected cash flows of the business as well the borrower s global cash flows, the viability of the industry in which the consumer operates, the value of the collateral, and the borrower s ability to service the debt. As of June 30, 2013, commercial loans were \$85.0 million, or 11.3% of total loans, as compared to \$88.2 million, or 11.7% of total loans, as of December 31, 2012. The decline in commercial loans was primarily the result of normal fluctuations in cash needed by borrowers to fund customer operations. We have experienced significant competition in our market area for commercial loans in recent years as many competing financial institutions have aggressively pursued increased commercial lending.

Allowance for Loan Losses.

The allowance for loan losses decreased from 1.09% of loans at December 31, 2012 to 1.07% of loans at June 30, 2013 due to a decrease in loan balances, changes to certain general allowance factors that reflect changes in historical loss and delinquency rates and general economic conditions and a reduction in specific reserves on impaired loans. Management s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on a periodic evaluation of the portfolio with consideration given to: the overall loss experience; current economic conditions; size, growth and composition of the loan portfolio; financial condition of the borrowers; current appraised values of underlying collateral; and other relevant factors that, in management s judgment, warrant recognition in determining an adequate allowance. Management believes that the allowance is adequate.

The allowance for loan losses decreased \$213,404 from \$8.2 million at December 31, 2012 to \$8.0 million at June 30, 2013. The decrease in the allowance reflects a decrease in specific reserves partially offset by an increase in the general allowance.

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

		% of Gross			% of Gross
	June 30, 2013	Loans	Decem	ber 31, 2012	Loans
		(Dollar	s in Thous	sands)	
General Allowance	\$6,800	0.90%	\$	6,699	0.89%
Specific Allowance	1,234	0.17		1,548	0.20%
Total Allowance	\$ 8,034	1.07%	\$	8,247	1.09%

The aggregate amount of specific allowances has decreased principally due to a trend in the overall improvement in asset quality over the past two years in the commercial portfolio, which includes commercial real estate, commercial, commercial equipment and construction and land development loans. Classified loans in these portfolios decreased from \$62.8 million at December 31, 2011 to \$44.8 million at December 31, 2012 and \$47.9 million at June 30, 2013 (see Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus). The \$3.1 million increase since December 31, 2012 in classified loans in the commercial portfolio is primarily related to a line of credit on one residential real estate development project, the construction of which has been stalled. The line of credit was paid current in July 2013.

Asset Quality.

	June 30,	December 31,		
	2013	2012	\$ Change	% Change
		(Dollars in The	ousands)	
Total assets	\$ 980,102	\$ 981,639	\$ (1,537)	(0.2)%
Gross loans	754,216	756,552	(2,336)	(0.3)
Allowance for loan loss (ALLL)	8,034	8,247	(213)	(2.6)
Foreclosed real estate (OREO)	6,932	6,891	41	0.6
Past due loans (PDLs) 31-89 days	1,346	3,175	(1,829)	(57.6)
Non-performing loans >= 90 days				
delinquent (NPLs)	12,304	8,717	3,587	41.1
Non-performing assets (NPLs + OREO)	19,236	15,608	3,628	23.2
Performing non-accrual loans	4,332	4,424	(92)	(2.1)
Troubled debt restructures (TDRs)	4,582	4,515	67	1.5
NPLs and performing non-accrual loans	16,636	13,141	3,495	26.6
NPLs, performing non-accrual loans and				
TDRs	21,218	17,657	3,561	20.2
Non-performing assets, performing				
non-accrual loans and TDRs	28,150	24,547	3,602	14.7
ALLL to total loans	1.07%	1.09%		
PDLs to total loans	0.18%	0.42%		
NPLs to total loans (>=90 days)	1.63%	1.15%		
NPLs and performing non-accrual loans to				
total loans	2.21%	1.74%		
NPLs, performing non-accrual loans and				
TDRs to total loans	2.81%	2.33%		
Loan delinquency (PDLs + NPLs) to total				
loans	1.81%	1.57%		
ALLL to NPLs	65.30%	94.61%		
Non-performing assets to total assets	1.96%	1.59%		
Non-performing assets to gross loans +				
OREO	2.53%	2.04%		
Non-performing assets, performing				
non-accrual loans + TDRs to total assets	2.87%	2.50%		

Non-performing loans (90 days or greater delinquent) were \$12.3 million or 1.63% of total loans at June 30, 2013 compared to \$8.7 million or 1.15% of total loans at December 31, 2012. We consider all non-performing loans 90

days or greater delinquent to be non-accrual loans and in accordance with the Company spolicy all interest accrued but not collected from loans that are placed on non-accrual is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. (See Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus.)

We had 30 non-performing loans at June 30, 2013 compared to 34 non-performing loans at December 31, 2012. The net increase of \$3.6 million was due to increases of 90 days or greater delinquency in commercial real estate of \$1.6 million and commercial loans of \$2.2 million, partially offset by reductions in non-performing residential first mortgages of \$189,870, home equity and second mortgages of \$71,296 and commercial

39

equipment loans of \$64,590. Non-performing loans at June 30, 2013 included \$6.0 million, or 49%, attributed to three customer relationships, of which \$3.3 million related to a line of credit (which was paid current during July 2013) on a residential real estate development project, the construction of which has been stalled. Non-performing loans increased from 1.28% to 1.63% of total loans from the first quarter of 2013 to the second quarter of 2013 due primarily to the \$3.3 million line of credit.

We categorized as non-accrual loans six performing loans totaling \$4.3 million and \$4.4 million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. These six loans represent one well-secured commercial relationship with no specific allowances in the allowance for loan losses due to the Bank s superior credit position with underlying collateral, which consists primarily of commercial real estate and, to a lesser extent, one-to four-family residential real estate. As of June 30, 2013, we had received all interest and principal payments on this relationship. It is management s belief that there is no current risk of loss to the Company for this relationship. These loans were classified as non-accrual loans due to the customer s operating results. In accordance with the Company s policy, interest income is recognized on a cash-basis for these loans.

Non-accrual loans (including performing non-accrual loans) on which the accrual of interest has been discontinued, which did not have a specific allowance for impairment, amounted to \$14.5 million and \$11.4 million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Interest due but not recognized on these balances at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was \$518,722 and \$443,856, respectively. Non-accrual loans with a specific allowance for impairment on which the recognition of interest has been discontinued amounted to \$2.1 million and \$1.8 million at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively. Interest due but not recognized on these balances at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was \$207,561 and \$182,106, respectively. Specific allowances on these balances at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 were \$642,960 and \$732,189, respectively, and are based on management s evaluation of the underlying collateral and utilization of credit evaluation criteria.

The overall delinquency rate (loans past due 31-89 days and 90 days or greater) improved 45 basis points from 2.26% at March 31, 2013 to 1.81% at June 30, 2013 and was 24 basis points higher than the December 31, 2012 delinquency rate of 1.57%.

We consider all TDRs to be impaired and define TDRs as loans whose terms have been modified to provide for a reduction or a delay in the payment of either interest or principal because of deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower. A loan extended or renewed at a stated interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk is not considered a TDR. Once an obligation has been classified as a TDR it continues to be considered a TDR until paid in full or until the loan both returns to performing status and yields a market interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk. TDRs are evaluated for impairment on a loan by loan basis in accordance with our impairment methodology. At June 30, 2013, we had 11 TDRs totaling \$4.6 million compared to 10 TDRs totaling \$4.5 million as of December 31, 2012. All TDRs were performing according to the terms of their restructured agreements with no specific reserves in the allowance for loan losses at June 30, 2013 and at December 31, 2012, respectively.

The OREO balance was \$6.9 million at June 30, 2013 an increase of \$40,824 compared to \$6.9 million at December 31, 2012. This increase consisted of additions of \$370,800 offset by valuation allowances of \$329,976 to adjust properties to current appraised values. OREO carrying amounts reflect management s estimate of the realizable value of these properties incorporating current appraised values, local real estate market conditions and related costs.

Loans classified as substandard, doubtful or loss, OREO assets and classified securities, have decreased \$18.5 million from \$79.6 million at December 31, 2011 to \$61.2 million at June 30, 2013. See *Business Asset Classification*.

At June 30, 2013, 98%, or \$145.4 million, of the asset-backed securities portfolio was rated AAA by Standard & Poor s or an equivalent credit rating from another major rating agency compared to 97%, or \$150.3

40

million, at December 31, 2012. Debt securities are evaluated quarterly to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary (OTTI). No OTTI charges were recorded for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and the year ended December 31, 2012. Classified securities decreased \$318,026 to \$2.7 million at June 30, 2013 from \$3.0 million at December 31, 2012. The Company considers noninvestment grade securities rated BB+ or lower as classified assets for regulatory and financial reporting.

Liabilities.

	June 30, 2013	December 2012	2 Change	% Change
		(Dollar	rs in Thousands)	
Deposits				
Non-interest-bearing deposits	\$ 89,566	\$ 102	,320 \$ (12,754)	(12.5)%
Interest-bearing deposits	695,115	717	,911 (22,796)	(3.2)
Total deposits	784,681	820	,231 (35,550)	(4.3)
Short-term borrowings	24,000	1	,000 23,000	2,300.0
Long-term debt	70,502	60	,527 9,975	16.5
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in				
junior subordinated debentures	12,000	12	,000	
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	7,847	8	,834 (987)	(11.2)
•			,	. ,
Total Liabilities	\$899,030	\$ 902	,592 \$ (3,562)	(0.4)

Total liabilities decreased \$3.6 million, or 0.4%, primarily due to a \$35.5 million decrease in deposits offset by a \$33.0 million increase in borrowings.

Deposits.

Details of the Bank s deposit portfolio are presented below:

	June 30,		Dec	ember 31,	
	2013	%		2012	%
		(Dollars in	Thoi	usands)	
Noninterest-bearing demand	\$ 89,566	11.41%	\$	102,320	12.47%
Interest-bearing:					
Demand	65,618	8.36		67,352	8.21
Money market deposits	197,029	25.11		209,813	25.58
Savings	37,556	4.79		35,292	4.30
Certificates of deposit	394,912	50.33		405,454	49.43
-					
Total interest-bearing	695,115	88.59		717,911	87.53
_					
Total deposits	\$ 784,681	100.00%	\$	820,231	100.00%

Deposits decreased \$35.5 million, or 4.3%, to \$784.7 million at June 30, 2013 compared to \$820.2 million at December 31, 2012. The decrease in deposits was driven primarily by seasonal customer deposit activity consistent with normal fluctuations of customer accounts.

During the last two years, our focus has been on increasing transaction deposits, especially noninterest bearing deposits, to lower its overall cost of funds. As of June 30, 2013, transaction accounts amounted to 49.7% of total deposits compared to 46.4% at June 30, 2012 and 50.6% at December 31, 2012. Average noninterest bearing deposits increased \$15.7 million for the first six months of 2013 to \$83.1 million from \$67.4 million for the first six months of 2012. During the same timeframe, average time deposits decreased \$43.1 million from \$443.4 million to \$400.3 million.

The most recent FDIC Annual Summary of Deposit Survey for deposits held on June 30, 2012 indicated that, at such date, the Bank held the largest deposit market share with a market share of 20.0% in the tri-county area which includes Charles, St. Mary s and Calvert Counties. Increasing core deposit relationships contributed significantly to the Bank s reduction of funding costs.

Borrowings.

The Bank uses advances from the FHLB of Atlanta to supplement the supply of funds it may lend and to meet deposit withdrawal requirements. Advances from the FHLB are secured by the Bank s stock in the FHLB, a portion of the Bank s loan portfolio and certain investments. Generally, the Bank s ability to borrow from the FHLB of Atlanta is limited by its available collateral and also by an overall limitation of 30% of assets. Further, short-term credit facilities are available at the Federal Reserve Bank of Richmond and other commercial banks. Long-term debt consists of adjustable-rate advances with rates based upon LIBOR, fixed-rate advances, and convertible advances. Long-term debt increased \$10.0 million from \$60.5 million at December 31, 2012 to \$70.5 million at June 30, 2013. During the first quarter of 2013, the Company added \$10.0 million in Federal Home Loan Bank advances with a four-year maturity and an interest rate of 0.87%.

The table below sets forth information about borrowings for the years indicated.

	At or for the Six Months Ended June 30,		or the Year Ei December 31,	nded	
	2013	2012 (Dollars in T	2011 Thousands)	20	010
Long-term debt					
Long-term debt outstanding at end of period	\$70,502	\$ 60,527	\$60,577	\$ 70	0,624
Weighted average rate on outstanding long-term debt at end of period	2.52%	2.80%	3.33%		3.24%
Maximum outstanding long-term debt of any month end	\$ 70,519	\$ 60,573	\$ 60,620	\$ 70	0,666
Average outstanding long-term debt, during period	67,424	60,206	61,421	70	0,823
Approximate average rate paid on long-term debt during period	2.61%	3.02%	3.32%		3.22%
Short-term borrowings					
Short-term borrowings outstanding at end of period at end of period	\$ 24,000	\$ 1,000	\$	\$	816
Weighted average rate on short-term borrowings at end of period	0.36%	0.36%	%		%
Maximum outstanding short-term borrowings at any month end during period	\$ 24,000	\$ 14,000	\$ 15,703	\$1	1,322
Average outstanding short-term borrowings	5,459	3,639	2,168	1	2,973
Approximate average rate paid on short-term borrowings ⁽¹⁾	1.39%	1.40%	1.91%		1.41%

(1) Short-term borrowing balances and interest expense include escrow deposits. For more information regarding the Bank s borrowings, see Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus.

42

Stockholders Equity.

	June 30,	Dec	ember 31,	Φ. ΟΙ	ø ø
	2013		2012	\$ Change	% Change
			(Dollars in T	Thousands)	
Preferred Stock at par of \$1,000	\$ 20,000	\$	20,000	\$	%
Common Stock at par of \$0.01	30		31	(1)	(3.2)
Additional paid in capital	18,223		17,874	349	2.0
Retained earnings	44,284		41,986	2,298	5.5
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss)					
gain	(680)		139	(819)	(589.2)
Unearned ESOP shares	(785)		(983)	198	(20.1)
Total Stockholders Equity	\$81,072	\$	79,047	\$ 2,025	2.6

During the six months ended June 30, 2013, stockholders equity increased \$2.0 million to \$81.1 million. The increase in stockholders equity was due to net income of \$3.3 million and activities related to equity plans of \$249,385 partially offset by common dividends paid of \$609,238, preferred stock dividends of \$100,000 and adjustments to other comprehensive income of \$818,778. Other comprehensive losses increased during the six months ended June 30, 2013 primarily due to market valuation adjustments of the Company s available for sale asset-backed securities portfolio as a result of increases in long-term interest rates. The Company believes that available for sale securities with unrealized losses will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed. The Company intends to, and has the ability, to hold these securities to maturity. The increase in common stockholders equity to \$61.1 million at June 30, 2013 resulted in a book value of \$20.05 per common share. The Company remained well-capitalized at June 30, 2013 with a Tier 1 capital to average asset ratio of 9.77% and a total risk-based capital ratio of 13.07%.

The Company had paid annual cash dividends on common stock since 1994. During the first quarter of 2013, the Board of Directors annual dividend and that the expected total dividend to be paid in 2013 will be \$0.40 per share.

Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2012 and 2011

Assets.

	December 31,		\$ Change	% Change	
	2012	2011	2012 vs. 2011	2012 vs. 2011	
		(Dollars i	in Thousands)		
Cash and due from banks	\$ 10,697	\$ 13,074	\$ (2,377)	(18.2)%	
Federal funds sold	190	5,040	(4,850)	(96.2)	
Interest-bearing deposits with banks	409	1,004	(595)	(59.3)	
Securities available for sale (AFS), at fair value	47,206	41,828	5,378	12.9	
Securities held to maturity (HTM), at amortized					
cost	112,619	153,517	(40,898)	(26.6)	
	5,476	5,587	(111)	(2.0)	

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal Reserve

Bank stock

Loans receivable net of allowance for loan losses				
of \$8,247 and \$7,655	747,641	710,089	37,552	5.3
Premises and equipment, net	19,782	16,441	3,341	20.3
Other real estate owned	6,891	5,029	1,862	37.0
Accrued interest receivable	2,904	3,028	(124)	(4.1)
Investment in bank owned life insurance	18,731	18,098	633	3.5
Other assets	9,093	10,745	(1,652)	(15.4)
Total Assets	\$ 981,639	\$ 983,480	\$ (1,841)	(0.2)

Total assets changed little in 2012 as compared to 2011. The increases in loans receivable reflected our continuing efforts to build market share in Southern Maryland. Net loan growth of \$37.6 million was due to net new loans of \$49.3 million in commercial real estate and \$13.1 million in residential mortgages partially offset by decreases of \$13.8 million in commercial loans, \$4.9 million in construction and land development loans, \$3.5 million in commercial equipment loans and a net decrease in other loan categories of \$2.2 million. Additionally, the allowance for loan losses increased by \$591,916 and deferred loan fees decreased by \$131,749 from the comparable period end.

The majority of commercial real estate loan growth was amortizing loans secured by owner occupied commercial real estate. The Bank has deemphasized construction and land development lending since 2009 with balances falling from \$62.5 million at December 31, 2009 to \$31.8 million at December 31, 2012.

The securities portfolio decreased a net of \$35.5 million as principal repayments funded loan growth during 2012. The differences in allocations between the different cash and investment categories reflect operational needs.

Premises and equipment expense increased primarily due to the construction of an operations center in Waldorf, Maryland and a branch in King George, Virginia. Both projects were completed during the second quarter of 2012.

Asset Quality, Allowance for Loan Losses and Provision for Loan Losses.

The allowance for loan losses and the provision for loan losses are determined based upon an analysis of individual loans and the application of certain loss factors to different loan categories. Individual loans are analyzed for impairment as the facts and circumstances warrant. In addition, a general component of the loan loss allowance is added based on a review of the portfolio s size and composition. See *Critical Accounting Policies Allowance for Loan Losses* and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus. At December 31, 2012, the ratio of the allowance for loan losses to non-performing loans was 95% compared to 80% at December 31, 2011.

The Company s allowance for loan losses increased from \$7.7 million or 1.07% of total loans at December 31, 2011 to \$8.2 million or 1.09% of total loans at December 31, 2012 principally due to loan growth, particularly in commercial real estate. At December 31, 2012, the allowance for specific loans was \$1.5 million or 18.77% of the total allowance compared to \$2.0 million or 26.09% of the allowance at December 31, 2011. The reduction in the specific allowance was principally due to the overall improvement in asset quality in the Bank s commercial portfolios, which include commercial real estate, commercial loans commercial equipment and construction and land development. Classified loans in these portfolios decreased \$18.0 million from \$62.8 million at December 31, 2011 compared to \$44.8 million at December 31, 2012. (See Note 5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus).

Net charge-offs decreased \$2.2 million from \$4.1 million (0.61% of average loans) for 2011 to \$1.9 million for 2012 (0.27% of average loans). The Company s delinquency rate improved from 2.09% at December 31, 2011 to 1.57% at December 31, 2012, as problem loans were charged-off, transferred to OREO or resolved. Non-performing loans (90 days or greater delinquent) were \$8.7 million or 1.15% of total loans at December 31, 2012 compared to \$9.5 million or 1.32% of total loans at December 31, 2011. We had 34 non-performing loans at December 31, 2012 compared to 35 non-performing loans at December 31, 2011. The net decrease of \$793,600 was due to reductions of 90 days or greater delinquency in commercial real estate of \$1.3 million, construction and land development of \$1.4 million and other loan categories of \$240,162, partially offset by increases in non-performing commercial loans of \$1.5 million and residential first mortgages of \$730,633. Non-performing commercial loans totaled \$3.7 million at December 31, 2012 of which \$3.5 million, or 93.60%, were attributed to two well-secured customer relationships.

44

We categorized six performing loans totaling \$4.4 million as non-accrual loans at December 31, 2012. These six loans represent one well-secured commercial relationship with no specific reserves in the allowance due to our superior credit position with underlying collateral, which consists primarily of commercial real estate and, to a lesser extent, one-to-four-family residential real estate. It is management s belief that there is no current risk of loss to the Company for this relationship. These loans were classified as non-accrual loans due to the customers operating results. In accordance with the Company s policy, interest income is recognized on a cash-basis for these loans. There were no performing non-accrual loans at December 31, 2011.

At December 31, 2012, we had 10 TDRs totaling \$4.5 million compared to 15 TDRs totaling \$11.9 million as of December 31, 2011. At the most recent year-end,100% of TDRs were performing according to the terms of their restructured agreements compared to 93.3% at December 31, 2011. Non-performing TDRs were included in non-accrual loans as of December 31, 2011. There were no specific reserves in the allowance for loan losses relative to TDR impaired loans at December 31, 2012 compared to \$300,000 at December 31, 2011. Interest income in the amount of \$220,326 and \$524,397 was recognized on these loans for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

The OREO balance was \$6.9 million at December 31, 2012, an increase of \$1.9 million compared to December 31, 2011, consisting of additions of \$4.0 million offset by valuation allowances of \$674,205 to adjust properties to current appraised values and disposals of \$1.5 million. At December 31, 2012, OREO consisted of 15 properties with commercial and residential lots totaling \$6.1 million and commercial and residential real estate totaling \$742,500. OREO carrying amounts reflect management sestimate of the realizable value of these properties incorporating current appraised values, local real estate market conditions and related costs.

At December 31, 2012, 97% or \$150.3 million of the asset-backed securities portfolio was rated AAA by Standard & Poor s or an equivalent credit rating from another major rating agency compared to 96% or \$182.0 million at December 31, 2011. Debt securities are evaluated quarterly to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. No other-than-temporary impairment charge was recorded for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Classified securities decreased \$3.0 million from \$6.1 million at December 31, 2011 to \$3.0 million at December 31, 2012 due to sales of classified securities and principal reductions.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recognized net losses on the sale of securities of \$3,736. The Company sold one AFS security with a carrying value of \$1.5 million and three held to maturity securities with carrying values of \$3.8 million, recognizing a gain of \$153,417 and losses of \$157,153, respectively. The sale of held to maturity securities was permitted under ASC 320 Investments Debt and Equity Securities. ASC 320-10-25-6 permits the sale of held to maturity securities for certain changes in circumstances. The Company sold the held to maturity positions due to a significant deterioration in the issuer s creditworthiness and the increase in regulatory risk weights mandated for risk-based capital purposes. There were no sales of available for sale or held to maturity securities for the year ended December 31, 2011.

45

Liabilities.

	December 31,		\$ Change		% Change	
	2012	2011	2012	2 vs. 2011	2012 vs. 2011	
		(Dollars i	in Thoi	isands)		
Deposits						
Noninterest-bearing	\$ 102,320	\$ 81,098	\$	21,222	26.2%	
Interest-bearing	717,911	746,155		(28,244)	(3.8)	
Total deposits	820,231	827,253		(7,022)	(0.8)	
Short-term borrowings	1,000			1,000	NM	
Long-term debt	60,527	60,577		(50)	(0.1)	
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in junior						
subordinated debentures	12,000	12,000				
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	8,834	8,196		638	7.8	
•						
Total Liabilities	\$ 902,592	\$ 908,026	\$	(5,434)	(0.6)	

We increased our non-interest bearing deposits through marketing efforts focused on small and medium-sized businesses in the Southern Maryland area. Average noninterest-bearing deposits increased \$8.1 million from \$66.1 million in 2011 to \$74.2 million in 2012.

Transaction accounts increased \$43.0 million, or 11.6%, from \$371.7 million at December 31, 2011 to \$414.8 million at December 31, 2012. Transaction accounts increased from 44.94% of deposits at December 31, 2011 to 50.57% of deposits at December 31, 2012. Total deposits decreased slightly during 2012 as we focused on reducing our cost of funds. The Company s average deposit costs decreased 38 basis points from 1.43% for 2011 to 1.05% for 2012. The increase in average deposits as a percentage of funding was a critical factor in decreasing funding costs due to their lower rates compared with other sources of funding. Average deposits as a percentage of average interest-bearing funding liabilities have increased from 84.28% in 2009 to 90.80% in 2011 and 91.36% in 2012.

Total outstanding debt remained stable at \$73.5 million at December 31, 2012. During the year ended December 31, 2012, we extended the maturities of two \$5.0 million fixed-rate convertible advances totaling \$10.0 million to mature in 2017 and a \$10.0 million fixed-rate advance to mature in 2022. The next scheduled maturity of long-term debt is \$5.0 million in November 2013.

Stockholders Equity.

	Decem	ber 31,	\$ Change	% Change	
	2012	2011	2012 vs. 2011	2012 vs. 2011	
		(Dollar	s in Thousands)		
Preferred Stock, Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual,					
Series C par value \$1,000; authorized 20,000; issued					
20,000	\$ 20,000	\$ 20,000	\$	%	

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Common stock par value \$.01; authorized 15,000,000

shares; issued 3,052,416 and 3,026,557 shares,

,,,				
respectively	31	30	1	3.3
Additional paid in capital	17,874	17,367	507	2.9
Retained earnings	41,986	38,712	3,274	8.5
Accumulated other comprehensive gain	139	290	(151)	(52.1)
Unearned ESOP shares	(983)	(945)	(38)	4.0
Total Stockholders Equity	\$ 79,047	\$ 75,454	\$ 3,593	4.8

During the year ended December 31, 2012, stockholders equity increased \$3.6 million to \$79.0 million. The increase in stockholders equity was due to net income of \$5.0 million and activities related to equity plans

of \$175,235, partially offset by payments of common stock dividends of \$1.2 million, preferred stock dividends of \$205,001 and adjustments to other comprehensive income of \$150,415. Common stockholders equity increased to \$59.0 million at December 31, 2012 from \$55.5 million at December 31, 2011. Book value increased \$1.02 per common share to \$19.34 at December 31, 2012 from \$18.32 at December 31, 2011. The Company remains well-capitalized at December 31, 2012 with a Tier 1 capital to average asset ratio of 9.39%.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

The Company has no business other than holding the stock of the Bank and does not currently have any material funding requirements, except for the payment of dividends on preferred and common stock, and the payment of interest on subordinated debentures.

The Company s principal sources of liquidity are cash on hand and dividends received from the Bank. The Bank is subject to various regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends.

The Bank s principal sources of funds for investment and operations are net income, deposits, sales of loans, borrowings, principal and interest payments on loans, principal and interest received on investment securities and proceeds from the maturity and sale of investment securities. Its principal funding commitments are for the origination or purchase of loans, the purchase of securities and the payment of maturing deposits. Deposits are considered the primary source of funds supporting the Bank s lending and investment activities. The Bank also uses borrowings from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta (the FHLB) to supplement deposits. The amount of FHLB advances available to the Bank is limited to the lower of 30% of Bank assets or the amount supportable by eligible collateral including FHLB stock, loans and securities. In addition, the Bank has established lines of credit with the Federal Reserve Bank and commercial banks. For a discussion of these agreements including collateral see Note 10 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Bank s most liquid assets are cash, cash equivalents and federal funds sold. The levels of such assets are dependent on the Bank s operating, financing and investment activities at any given time. The variations in levels of cash and cash equivalents are influenced by deposit flows and anticipated future deposit flows.

As of or for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013.

Cash, federal funds sold, and interest-bearing deposits with banks as of June 30, 2013 totaled \$15.6 million, an increase of \$4.3 million, or 37.9%, from the December 31, 2012 total of \$11.3 million. The increase in cash was primarily due to cash generated from net income, net proceeds received from maturing investment securities, an excess of principal collected on loans over the amount of loan originations and increases in short-term and long-term borrowings, partially offset by a net decrease in deposits.

During the first six months of 2013, all financing activities used \$3.3 million in cash compared to \$9.9 million in cash used for the same period in 2012. The Company used \$6.6 million less cash for financing activities in the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to the six months ended June 30, 2012, primarily due to an increase in borrowings partially offset by a net decrease in deposits. The Company borrowed \$33.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$3.0 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Customer deposits for the six months ended June 30, 2013 decreased \$35.5 million compared to a decrease in deposits of \$11.5 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. The Company moved to a quarterly dividend in 2013 and as a result used \$612,333 less cash to pay dividends of \$709,238 during the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$1.3 million for the six months ended June 30, 2012. Other financing activities provided \$80,611 of increased cash.

Operating activities provided cash of \$3.1 million for six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$5.2 million of cash provided in the same period of 2012, a decrease in cash of \$2.0 million from the comparable period in 2012. Cash decreased primarily due to decreases in other assets and the provision for loan losses and a decrease in accrued expenses partially offset by an increase in net income.

47

Investing activities provided cash of \$4.4 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013 compared to \$2.3 million of cash used for the same period of 2012. The increase in cash of \$6.8 million was primarily due to the excess of principal payments collected over the amount of loan originations. For the six months ended June 30, 2012, loans originated exceeded principal collected by \$26.6 million compared to the six months ended June 30, 2013, in which loans originated were less than principal collected by \$1.5 million. Additionally, net cash provided increased \$3.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2013, as costs were expended in 2012 for premises and equipment related to acquisition and construction costs for the operations center in Waldorf, Maryland and the King George, Virginia branch. These increases to cash were offset by a decrease in net cash provided from investment transactions from \$27.4 million of cash provided for the six months ended June 30, 2013. Additionally cash decreased \$288,302 due to a reduction in net proceeds from sales of OREO and asset disposals.

At June 30, 2013, the Company had outstanding loan commitments and standby letters of credit \$21.8 million and \$24.5 million, respectively. Certificates of deposit due within one year of June 30, 2013 totaled \$242.0 million, representing 61.3% of certificates of deposit at June 30, 2013. If these maturing deposits do not remain, the Bank will be required to seek other sources of funds, including other certificates of deposit and borrowings. Depending on market conditions, we may be required to pay higher rates on such deposits or other borrowings than we currently pay on the certificates of deposit due on or before June 30, 2014. We believe, however, based on past experience that a significant portion of our certificates of deposit will remain with us. We have the ability to attract and retain deposits by adjusting the interest rates offered.

Federal banking regulations require the Company and the Bank to maintain specified levels of capital. At June 30, 2013, the Company was in compliance with these requirements with a Tier 1 capital to average assets ratio of 9.77%, a Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 12.03% and a total capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 13.07%. At June 30, 2013, the Bank met the criteria for designation as a well-capitalized depository institution under Federal Reserve regulations.

As of or for the Year Ended December 31, 2012.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 31, 2012 totaled \$11.3 million, a decrease of \$7.8 million, or 40.9%, from the December 31, 2011 total of \$19.1 million. Changes to the level of cash and cash equivalents have minimal impact on operational needs as the Bank has substantial sources of funds available from other sources.

The principal use of cash has been in investing activities including its investments in loans, investment securities and other assets. In 2012, the level of net cash used in investing decreased to \$12.1 million from \$93.9 million in 2011. The decrease in net investing activity of \$81.7 million in 2012 was primarily due to a reduction in the amount of reinvested principal from maturing investments and a decrease in the amount of loans originated compared to the prior year. Net security transactions decreased from \$33.1 million of cash used in 2011 to fund net investment purchases to \$34.9 million of cash provided to fund loans and provide cash for other operating needs. Loans originated or acquired decreased \$23.5 million from \$269.8 million in 2011 to \$246.3 million in 2012. Additionally cash used decreased \$698,389 for expenditures related to premises and equipment from 2011 as we completed construction of the new operations center and branch in King George, Virginia. Net cash provided decreased \$902,485 due to less principal collected on loans from \$204.3 million in 2011 to \$203.4 million in 2012. Cash proceeds provided from the sale of OREO and other assets decreased \$9.6 million from \$10.0 million in 2011 to \$344,512 in 2012.

During the year ended December 31, 2012, all financing activities used \$7.8 million in cash compared to \$92.9 million in cash provided for the same period in 2011. The decrease of cash flows from financing activities of \$100.6 million was primarily due to a net decrease in deposit cash flows from the comparable period of \$109.7 million as

customer deposits for the year ended December 31, 2012 decreased \$7.0 million compared to an increase in deposits of \$102.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. In addition, cash provided

48

decreased for 2012 by \$3.7 million as a result of net proceeds received from the SBLF preferred stock transaction in September of 2011. This was partially offset by increases in cash provided of \$11.8 million for long-term debt and short-term borrowing activity as there was no retirement of long-term debt in 2012 compared to approximately \$10.0 million in long-term debt curtailment in 2011. Other financing activities net use of cash for dividends and other equity transactions decreased \$992,119 to \$1.6 million in 2012 from \$2.6 million in 2011.

Operating activities provided cash of \$12.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to \$10.3 million of cash provided for the same period of 2011. Cash increased by \$1.7 million primarily due to an increase in net income and a decrease in other assets partially offset by a decrease in the provision for loan losses and a decrease in OREO valuation allowance expense.

At December 31, 2012, the Bank had outstanding loan commitments of \$15.5 million and standby letters of credit of \$22.7 million.

Federal banking regulations require the Company and the Bank to maintain specified levels of capital. At December 31, 2012, the Company was in compliance with these requirements with a Tier 1 capital to average assets ratio of 9.39%, a Tier 1 capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 11.76% and a total capital to risk weighted assets ratio of 12.84%. At December 31, 2012, the Bank met the criteria for designation as a well-capitalized depository institution under Federal Reserve regulations. (See Note 15 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus).

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

In the normal course of operations, we engage in a variety of financial transactions that, in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP) are not recorded in our financial statements. These transactions involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit, interest rate and liquidity risk. Such transactions are used primarily to manage customers—requests for funding and take the form of loan commitments, letters of credit and lines of credit. For a discussion of these agreements, including collateral and other arrangements see Note 12 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included this prospectus.

For the six months ended June 30, 2013 and for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company did not engage in any off-balance sheet transactions reasonably likely to have a material effect on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

Contractual Obligations

In the normal course of its business, the Bank commits to make future payments to others to satisfy contractual obligations. These obligations include commitments to repay short and long-term borrowings and commitments incurred under operating lease agreements.

Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto presented herein have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars without considering the changes in the relative purchasing power of money over time due to inflation. Unlike most industrial companies, nearly all of the Company s assets and liabilities are monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a greater impact on the Company s performance than do the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of goods and services.

Critical Accounting Policies

Critical accounting policies are defined as those that involve significant judgments and uncertainties and could potentially result in materially different results under different assumptions and conditions. The Company considers its determination of the allowance for loan losses, the determination of other-than-temporarily impaired securities, the valuation of foreclosed real estate and the valuation of deferred tax assets to be critical accounting policies.

The Company s Consolidated Financial Statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and the general practices of the United States banking industry. Application of these principles requires management to make estimates, assumptions and judgments that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. These estimates, assumptions and judgments are based on information available as of the date of the financial statements. Accordingly, as this information changes, the financial statements could reflect different estimates, assumptions and judgments. Certain policies inherently have a greater reliance on the use of estimates, assumptions and judgments and, as such, have a greater possibility of producing results that could be materially different than originally reported.

Estimates, assumptions and judgments are necessary when assets and liabilities are required to be recorded at fair value, when a decline in the value of an asset not carried on the financial statements at fair value warrants an impairment write-down or valuation reserve to be established or when an asset or liability needs to be recorded contingent upon a future event. Carrying assets and liabilities at fair value inherently results in more financial statement volatility. The fair values and the information used to record valuation adjustments for certain assets and liabilities are based either on quoted market prices or are provided by other third-party sources, when available. When these sources are not available, management makes estimates based upon what it considers to be the best available information.

Allowance for Loan Losses.

The allowance for loan losses is an estimate of the losses that exist in the loan portfolio. The allowance is based on two principles of accounting: (1) Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 450 Contingencies, which requires that losses be accrued when they are probable of occurring and are estimable and (2) FASB ASC 310 Receivables, which requires that losses be accrued when it is probable that the Company will not collect all principal and interest payments according to the contractual terms of the loan. The loss, if any, is determined by the difference between the loan balance and the value of collateral, the present value of expected future cash flows and values observable in the secondary markets.

The allowance for loan loss balance is an estimate based upon management s evaluation of the loan portfolio. The allowance is comprised of a specific and a general component. The specific component consists of management s evaluation of certain classified and non-accrual loans and their underlying collateral. Management assesses the ability of the borrower to repay the loan based upon all information available. Loans are examined to determine a specific allowance based upon the borrower s payment history, economic conditions specific to the loan or borrower and other factors that would impact the borrower s ability to repay the loan on its contractual basis. Depending on the assessment of the borrower s ability to pay and the type, condition and value of collateral, management will establish an allowance amount specific to the loan.

Management utilizes a risk scale to assign grades to commercial real estate, construction and land development, commercial loans and commercial equipment loans. Commercial loan relationships with an aggregate exposure of \$750,000 or greater are risk rated. Residential first mortgages, home equity and second mortgages and consumer loans are evaluated for creditworthiness in underwriting and are monitored on an ongoing basis based on borrower payment history. Consumer loans and residential real estate loans are classified as unrated unless they are part of a larger commercial relationship that requires grading or are TDRs or non-performing loans with an Other Assets Especially Mentioned or higher risk rating due to a delinquent payment history.

The Company s commercial loan portfolio is periodically reviewed by regulators and independent consultants engaged by management. These reviews validate the Company s asset classifications and may result in adjustments to provisions based on the field examination team s assessment of information available at the time of the examination.

In establishing the general component of the allowance, management analyzes non-impaired loans in the portfolio including changes in the amount and type of loans. Management also examines the historical loss experience (charge-offs and recoveries) within each loan category. The state of the local and national economy is also considered. Based upon these factors, the loan portfolio is categorized and a loss factor is applied to each category. Based upon these factors, we will adjust the loan loss allowance by increasing or decreasing the provision for loan losses.

Management has significant discretion in making the judgments inherent in the determination of the allowance for loan losses, including in connection with the valuation of collateral, a borrower s prospects of repayment and in establishing loss factors on the general component of the allowance. Changes in loss factors will have a direct impact on the amount of the provision and a corresponding effect on net income. Errors in management s perception and assessment of the global factors and their impact on the portfolio could result in the allowance not being adequate to cover losses in the portfolio, and may result in additional provisions or charge-offs. At June 30, 2013, the allowance for loan losses was \$8.0 million or 1.07% of total loans and 28.5% of total non-performing loans, performing non-accrual loans and TDRs. An increase or decrease in the allowance could result in a charge or credit to income before income taxes that materially impacts earnings. For additional information regarding the allowance for loan losses, refer to Notes 1 and 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements and the discussion under the caption *Provision for Loan Losses* below.

Other-Than-Temporary-Impairment.

Debt securities are evaluated quarterly to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. The term other-than-temporary is not necessarily intended to indicate a permanent decline in value. It means that the prospects for near-term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of the investment. Under the revised guidance, for recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments the amount of other-than-temporary impairment that is recognized through earnings for debt securities is determined by comparing the present value of the expected cash flows to the amortized cost of the security. The discount rate used to determine the credit loss is the expected book yield on the security.

Other Real Estate Owned.

The Company maintains a valuation allowance on its OREO. As with the allowance for loan losses, the valuation allowance on OREO is based on FASB ASC 450 Contingencies, as well as the accounting guidance on impairment of long-lived assets. These statements require that the Company establish a valuation allowance when it has determined that the carrying amount of a foreclosed asset exceeds its fair value. Fair value of a foreclosed asset is measured by the cash flows expected to be realized from its subsequent disposition. These cash flows are reduced for the costs of selling or otherwise disposing of the asset.

In estimating the cash flows from the sale of OREO, management must make significant assumptions regarding the timing and amount of cash flows. For example, in cases where the real estate acquired is undeveloped land, management must gather the best available evidence regarding the market value of the property, including appraisals, cost estimates of development and broker opinions. Due to the highly subjective nature of this evidence, as well as the limited market, long time periods involved and substantial risks, cash flow estimates are highly subjective and subject to change. Errors regarding any aspect of the costs or proceeds of developing, selling or otherwise disposing of foreclosed real estate could result in the allowance being inadequate to reduce carrying costs to fair value and may require an additional provision for valuation allowances.

Deferred Tax Assets.

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB ASC 740, Income Taxes, which requires that deferred tax assets and liabilities be recognized using enacted tax rates for the effect of temporary

51

differences between the book and tax bases of recorded assets and liabilities. FASB ASC 740 requires that deferred tax assets be reduced by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that some portion or the entire deferred tax asset will not be realized.

The Company periodically evaluates the ability of the Company to realize the value of its deferred tax assets. If the Company were to determine that it was not more likely than not that the Company would realize the full amount of the deferred tax assets, it would establish a valuation allowance to reduce the carrying value of the deferred tax asset to the amount it believes would be realized. The factors used to assess the likelihood of realization are the Company s forecast of future taxable income and available tax-planning strategies that could be implemented to realize the net deferred tax assets.

Failure to achieve forecasted taxable income might affect the ultimate realization of the net deferred tax assets. Factors that may affect the Company s ability to achieve sufficient forecasted taxable income include, but are not limited to, the following: increased competition, a decline in net interest margin, a loss of market share, decreased demand for financial services and national and regional economic conditions.

The Company s provision for income taxes and the determination of the resulting deferred tax assets and liabilities involve a significant amount of management judgment and are based on the best information available at the time. The Company operates within federal and state taxing jurisdictions and is subject to audit in these jurisdictions. For additional information regarding the deferred tax assets, refer to Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus.

52

BUSINESS

Tri-County Financial is a bank holding company organized in 1989 under the laws of the State of Maryland. It owns all the outstanding shares of capital stock of Community Bank, a Maryland-chartered commercial bank. The Bank was organized in 1950 as Tri-County Building and Loan Association of Waldorf, a mutual savings and loan association, and in 1986 converted to a federal stock savings bank and adopted the name Tri-County Federal Savings Bank. In 1997, the Bank converted to a Maryland-chartered commercial bank and adopted its current name. The Company engages in no significant activity other than holding the stock of the Bank and operating the business of the Bank. Accordingly, the information set forth in this prospectus, including financial statements and related data, relates primarily to the Bank and its subsidiaries.

The Bank serves the Southern Maryland counties of Charles, Calvert and St. Mary s through its ten Maryland branches located in Waldorf, Bryans Road, Dunkirk, Leonardtown, La Plata, Lusby, Charlotte Hall, Prince Frederick and Lexington Park, Maryland. Additionally, the Bank expanded its footprint during 2012, opening its 11th branch in King George County, Virginia. The Bank operates 15 automated teller machines including four stand-alone locations in the tri-county area. The Bank offers telephone and internet banking services. The Bank is engaged in the commercial and retail banking business as authorized by the banking statutes of the State of Maryland and applicable federal regulations, including the acceptance of deposits, and the origination of loans to individuals, associations, partnerships and corporations. The Bank is real estate financing consists of commercial mortgage loans, residential first and second mortgage loans and home equity lines of credit. Commercial lending consists of both secured and unsecured loans. The Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve and Federal Home Loan Bank (the FHLB) system and its deposits are insured up to applicable limits by the Deposit Insurance Fund administered by the FDIC.

Effective October 18, 2013, Community Bank will change its name to become Community Bank of the Chesapeake. This new name reflects Community Bank s recent expansion into the Northern Neck of Virginia. In addition, Tri-County Financial will change its name to The Community Financial Corporation, to better align the bank name with the parent company.

Market Area

The Bank considers its principal lending and deposit market area to consist of the tri-county area in Southern Maryland and King George County in Virginia. In addition, as a result of the Bank s expansion into the greater Fredericksburg market in 2013, it is expected that Stafford County will become part of the Bank s principal leading and deposit market area. One of the fastest growing regions in the country, this area is home to a mix of federal facilities, industrial and high-tech businesses. The 2010 U.S. Census estimates place King George County as the third fastest growing locality in Virginia with population growth of 40.36% since 2000. In addition, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, St. Mary s County s population has grown 22% over the past decade, the highest growth rate in Maryland between 2000 and 2010. According to St. Mary s County Department of Economic & Community Development, St. Mary s County was the third fastest growing county in Maryland from 2011 to 2012.

Helping to spur this growth is the influence of several major federal facilities located both within the Bank s footprint and within adjoining counties. Major federal facilities include the Patuxent River Naval Air Station in St. Mary s County, the Indian Head Division, Naval Surface Warfare Center in Charles County and the Naval Surface Warfare Naval Support Facility in King George County. Collectively, these facilities employ over 33,000 people. According to the St. Mary s County Comprehensive Plan, the Patuxent Naval Air Station alone employs approximately 22,000 people and provides an approximate annual economic impact of \$2.3 billion. In addition, there are several major federal facilities located in adjoining markets including Andrews Air Force Base and Defense Intelligence Agency & Defense Intelligence Analysis Center in Prince Georges County, Maryland and the U.S. Marine Base Quantico, Drug

Enforcement Administration Quantico facility and Federal Bureau of Investigation Quantico facility in Prince William County, Virginia.

53

The economic health of the region, while stabilized by the influence of the federal government, is not solely dependent on this sector. Calvert County is home to the Dominion Power Cove Point Liquid Natural Gas Terminal, which is one of the nation slargest liquefied natural gas terminals and Dominion Power is currently constructing liquefaction facilities for exporting liquefied natural gas. According to Dominion Power, the construction of these liquefaction facilities is expected to create 4,000 jobs in the state of Maryland during the construction phase and would support another 14,600 jobs once the facility is operational with approximately \$1 billion annually of additional federal, state and local government revenues being generated. In addition, King George County has finalized an agreement with Columbia Gas to bring a high-pressure, steel pipe natural gas line into the county to service the King George Industrial Park in 2014.

Even though Southern Maryland is generally considered to have more affordable housing than many other Washington and Baltimore area suburbs, during the recession, growth in the Bank s market area was dampened as the demand for new housing in the tri-county area fell in conjunction with the overall housing market. According to the Maryland Department of Planning, new housing unit starts fell from 2006 through 2010. However, after 2010, real estate values stabilized and there were positive trends in housing during 2012. According to Real Estate Business Intelligence, LLC, St. Mary s County, Charles County and Calvert County saw an increase in the average price of residential homes sold from 2011 to 2012 of 4.21%, 3.30% and 0.47%, respectively.

Based on information from the U.S. Bureau of Labor Statistics, unemployment rates at July 2013 remained well below the national average (not seasonally adjusted) of 7.7% at 6.6%, 6.7% and 6.5% for St. Mary s County, Charles County and Calvert County, respectively, and 6.6% in King George County, Virginia. According to a University of Maryland study, projected job growth within the tri-county area from 2005 through 2030 is 31%, 28% and 45% in St. Mary s, Charles and Calvert Counties, respectively. Similarly, according to the King George County Comprehensive Plan, employment in King George County is projected to increase by 33% from 2010 to and 2020.

The Bank is currently in the process of expanding in the greater Fredericksburg market and opened a loan production office in Fredericksburg, Virginia in August 2013. According to the Fredericksburg Regional Alliance, the Fredericksburg Region, including the City of Fredericksburg and the counties of Caroline, King George, Spotsylvania, and Stafford, Virginia, has been the fastest growing region in the Commonwealth of Virginia for the past eight years. Based on information from the Fredericksburg Regional Alliance, this region boasts an impressive array of over 10,000 small businesses and a highly skilled labor force of over one million within a 40-mile commute.

The Bank s primary market area also boasts a strong median household income relative to the median household income of their respective states. According to the U.S. Census Bureau, the median household income from 2007 to 2011 was \$82,529, \$92,981, and \$92,135 for St. Mary s, Calvert and Charles Counties, Maryland, respectively, compared to \$72,149 for the State of Maryland. Similarly, according to the U.S. Census Bureau, the median household income from 2007 to 2011 was \$82,173 and \$94,658 for King George and Stafford Counties, Virginia, respectively, compared to \$63,302 for the Commonwealth of Virginia.

Competition

The Bank faces strong competition in the attraction of deposits and in the origination of loans. Its most direct competition for deposits and loans comes from other banks, savings and loan associations and tax-exempt federal and state credit unions located in its primary market area. There are currently 13 FDIC-insured depository institutions operating in the tri-county area including subsidiaries of several large, regional and national bank holding companies. According to statistics compiled by the FDIC, the Bank was ranked first in deposit market share in the tri-county area as of June 30, 2012, the latest date for which such data is available. The Bank faces additional significant competition for customers—funds from mutual funds, brokerage firms, and other financial institutions. The Bank competes for loans

by providing competitive rates, flexibility of terms and service,

54

including customer access to senior decision makers. It competes for deposits by offering depositors a wide variety of account types, convenient office locations and competitive rates. Other services offered include tax deferred retirement programs, brokerage services through an affiliation with Community Wealth Advisors, cash management services and safe deposit boxes. The Bank has used targeted direct mail, print and online advertising and community outreach to increase its market share of deposits, loans and other services in its market area. It provides ongoing training for its staff in an attempt to ensure high-quality service.

Lending Activities

General. The Bank offers a wide variety of real estate, consumer and commercial loans. The Bank s lending activities include residential and commercial real estate loans, construction loans, land acquisition and development loans, equipment financing, commercial and consumer loans. Most of the Bank s customers are residents of, or businesses located in, the tri-county area. The Bank s primary targets for commercial loans consist of small and medium-sized businesses with revenues of \$5.0 million to \$35.0 million located in Southern Maryland and the Northern Neck region of Virginia. The Bank attracts customers for its consumer lending products based upon its ability to offer service, flexibility and competitive pricing and by leveraging other banking relationships, such as soliciting deposit customers for loans.

Commercial Real Estate and Other Non-Residential Real Estate Loans. The permanent financing of commercial and other improved real estate projects, including office buildings, retail locations, churches, and other special purpose buildings is the largest component of the Bank s loan portfolio. Commercial real estate loans amounted to \$434.6 million, or 57.6% of the loan portfolio, at June 30, 2013. This portfolio has increased in both absolute size and as a percentage of the loan portfolio in each of the last four years. The primary security on a commercial real estate loan is the real property and the leases or businesses that produce income for the real property. The Bank generally limits its exposure to a single borrower to 15% of the Bank s capital and participates with other lenders on larger projects. Loans secured by commercial real estate are generally limited to 80% of the lower of the appraised value or sales price and have an initial contractual loan amortization period ranging from three to 20 years. Interest rates and payments on these loans typically adjust after an initial fixed-rate period, which is generally between three and ten years. Interest rates and payments on adjustable-rate loans are adjusted to a rate based on the United States Treasury Bill Index. Virtually all of the Bank s commercial real estate loans are secured by real estate located in the Bank s primary market area. At June 30, 2013, the largest outstanding commercial real estate loan was \$7.2 million, which is secured by a hotel and was performing according to its terms at June 30, 2013.

Loans secured by commercial real estate are larger and involve greater risks than one- to four-family residential mortgage loans. Because payments on loans secured by such properties are often dependent on the successful operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy. As a result of the greater emphasis that the Bank places on increasing its portfolio of commercial real estate loans, the Bank is increasingly exposed to the risks posed by this type of lending. To monitor cash flows on income properties, the Bank requires borrowers and loan guarantors, if any, to provide annual financial statements on multi-family or commercial real estate loans. In reaching a decision on whether to make a multi-family or commercial real estate loan, the Bank considers the net operating income of the property, the borrower s expertise, credit history and profitability, and the value of the underlying property, as well as the borrower s global cash flows. Environmental surveys are generally required for commercial real estate loans over \$250,000.

Residential First Mortgage Loans. Residential first mortgage loans made by the Bank are generally long-term loans, amortized on a monthly or bi-weekly basis, with principal and interest due each payment. The initial contractual loan payment period for residential loans typically ranges from ten to 30 years. The Bank s experience indicates that

residential real estate loans remain outstanding for significantly shorter time periods than their contractual terms. Borrowers may refinance or prepay loans at their option, without penalty. The Bank originates both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential first mortgages.

The Bank offers fixed-rate residential first mortgages on a variety of terms including loan periods from ten to 30 years and bi-weekly payment loans. Total fixed-rate loan products in our residential first mortgage portfolio amounted to \$141.4 million as of June 30, 2013. Fixed-rate loans may be packaged and sold to investors or retained in the Bank s loan portfolio. Depending on market conditions, the Bank may elect to retain the right to service the loans sold for a payment based upon a percentage (generally 0.25% of the outstanding loan balance). As of June 30, 2013, the Bank serviced \$59.0 million in residential mortgage loans for others.

The Bank also offers mortgages that are adjustable on a one-, three- and five-year basis generally with limitations on upward adjustments of two percentage points per re-pricing period and six percentage points over the life of the loan. The Bank primarily markets adjustable-rate loans with rate adjustments based upon a United States Treasury Bill Index. As of June 30, 2013, the Bank had \$24.0 million in adjustable-rate residential mortgage loans. The retention of adjustable-rate mortgage loans in the Bank s loan portfolio helps reduce the negative effects of increases in interest rates on the Bank s net interest income. Under certain conditions, however, the annual and lifetime limitations on interest rate adjustments may limit the increases in interest rates on these loans. There are also unquantifiable credit risks resulting from potential increased costs to the borrower as a result of re-pricing of adjustable-rate mortgage loans. During periods of rising interest rates, the risk of default on adjustable-rate mortgage loans may increase due to the upward adjustment of interest cost to the borrower. In addition, the initial interest rate on adjustable-rate loans is generally lower than that on a fixed-rate loan of similar credit quality and size. At June 30, 2013, the largest outstanding residential first mortgage loan was \$2.4 million, which was secured by a residence located in the Bank s market area. The loan was performing according to its terms at June 30, 2013.

The Bank makes residential first mortgage loans of up to 97% of the appraised value or sales price of the property, whichever is less, to qualified owner-occupants upon the security of single-family homes. Non-owner occupied one-to four-family loans are generally permitted to a maximum 80% loan-to-value of the appraised value depending on the overall strength of the application. The Bank currently requires that substantially all residential first mortgage loans with loan-to-value ratios in excess of 80% carry private mortgage insurance to lower the Bank s exposure to approximately 80% of the value of the property. The Bank had fewer than 10 loans with private mortgage insurance at June 30, 2013. In certain cases, the borrower may elect to borrow amounts in excess of 80% loan-to-value in the form of a second mortgage. The second mortgage will generally have a higher interest rate and shorter repayment period than the first mortgage on the same property.

All improved real estate that serves as security for a loan made by the Bank must be insured, in the amount and by such companies as may be approved by the Bank, against fire, vandalism, malicious mischief and other hazards. Such insurance must be maintained through the entire term of the loan and in an amount not less than that amount necessary to pay the Bank s indebtedness in full.

Construction and Land Development Loans. The Bank offers construction loans to individuals and building contractors for the construction of one- to four-family dwellings. Construction loans totaled \$13.8 million at June 30, 2013. Loans to individuals primarily consist of construction/permanent loans, which have fixed rates, payable monthly for the construction period and are followed by a 30-year, fixed or adjustable-rate permanent loan. The Bank also provides construction financing to home builders. Generally, these loans are secured by the real estate under construction as well as by guarantees of the principals involved. Draws are made upon satisfactory completion of predefined stages of construction. The Bank will typically lend up to the lower of 80% of the appraised value or the contract purchase price of the homes to be constructed.

In addition, the Bank offers loans to acquire and develop land, as well as loans on undeveloped, subdivided lots for home building by individuals. Land acquisition and development loans totaled \$15.3 million at June 30, 2013. Bank policy requires that zoning and permits must be in place prior to making development loans. The Bank will typically

lend up to the lower of 75% of the appraised value or cost. At June 30, 2013, the largest outstanding construction and land development loan was \$3.5 million, which was secured by land in the Bank s market area. The loan was performing according to its terms at June 30, 2013.

The Bank s ability to originate residential construction and development loans is heavily dependent on the continued demand for single-family housing construction in the Bank s market area. As demand for newly

56

constructed housing has fallen, the Bank s investment in these loans has declined. The construction and land development portfolio decreased \$7.6 million from \$36.7 million at December 31, 2011 to \$29.1 million at June 30, 2013. Additionally, construction and land development loans as a percentage of the total loan portfolio have fallen in every year since 2008 from greater than 10% as of December 31, 2008 to 3.9% at June 30, 2013. If the demand for new houses in the Bank s market areas continues to decline, this portion of the loan portfolio may continue to decline. In addition, a continued decline in demand for new housing might adversely affect the ability of borrowers to repay these loans. Construction and land development loans have been particularly affected by recent economic factors that have slowed absorption of finished lots and homes.

Construction and land development loans are inherently riskier than providing financing on owner-occupied real estate. The Bank s risk of loss is affected by the accuracy of the initial estimate of the market value of the completed project as well as the accuracy of the cost estimates made to complete the project. In addition, the volatility of the real estate market has made it increasingly difficult to ensure that the valuation of land associated with these loans is accurate. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and cost overruns. If the estimate of construction costs proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be required to advance funds beyond the amount originally committed to permit completion of the development. If the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be confronted, at or before the maturity of the loan, with a project having a value that is insufficient to assure full repayment. As a result of these factors, construction lending often involves the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment dependent, in part, on the success of the project rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay principal and interest. If the Bank forecloses on a project, there can be no assurance that the Bank will be able to recover all of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the loan as well as related foreclosure and holding costs.

Home Equity and Second Mortgage Loans. The Bank maintains a portfolio of home equity and second mortgage loans. Home equity loans, which totaled \$18.3 million at June 30, 2013, are generally made in the form of lines of credit with minimum amounts of \$5,000, have terms of up to 20 years, variable rates priced at the then current Wall Street Journal prime rate plus a margin, and require an 80% or 90% loan-to-value ratio (including any prior liens), depending on the specific loan program. Second mortgage loans, which totaled \$3.5 million at June 30, 2013, are fixed and variable-rate loans that have original terms between five and 15 years. Loan-to-value ratios of up to 80% or 95% are allowed depending on the specific loan program.

These products contain a higher risk of default than residential first mortgages as in the event of foreclosure, the first mortgage would need to be paid off prior to collection of the second mortgage. This risk has been heightened as the market value of residential property has declined. The Bank monitors the property values of the properties that secure its second mortgages and is lowering credit availability where prudent. The Bank believes that its policies and procedures are sufficient to mitigate the additional risk posed by these loans at the current time.

Commercial Loans. The Bank offers commercial loans to its business customers. The Bank offers a variety of commercial loan products including term loans and lines of credit. The portfolio consists primarily of demand loans and lines of credit. Such loans can be made for terms of up to five years. However, most of the loans are originated for a term of two years of less. The Bank offers both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans (typically tied to the then current Wall Street Journal prime rate plus a margin with a floor typically at 5%) under these product lines. While commercial loans remain an important class of the Bank s loan portfolio at 11.3% of total loans, the commercial loan portfolio decreased by \$17.0 million from \$102.0 million at December 31, 2011 to \$85.0 million at June 30, 2013. When making commercial business loans, the Bank considers the financial condition of the borrower, the borrower s payment history of both corporate and personal debt, the projected cash flows of the business as well the borrower s global cash flows, the viability of the industry in which the borrower operates, the value of the collateral, and the borrower s ability to service the debt. These loans are primarily secured by equipment, real property, accounts receivable or other security as determined by the Bank. The higher interest rates and shorter loan terms available on commercial lending

make these products attractive to the Bank. Commercial business loans, however, entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans. Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generally are made on the basis of the borrower s ability to make repayment from his or

her employment or other income and which are secured by real property whose value tends to be more easily ascertainable, commercial loans are made on the basis of the borrower's ability to make repayment from the cash flows of the borrower's business. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantially on the success of the business itself. In the case of business failure, collateral would need to be liquidated to provide repayment for the loan. In many cases, the highly specialized nature of collateral would make full recovery from the sale of collateral problematic. The Bank attempts to control these risks by establishing guidelines that provide for loans with low loan-to-value ratios. At June 30, 2013, the largest outstanding commercial loan was \$12.0 million, which was secured by commercial real estate (all of which was located in the Bank's market area), cash and investments. This loan was performing according to its terms at June 30, 2013.

Consumer Loans. The Bank has developed a number of programs to serve the needs of its customers with primary emphasis upon loans secured by automobiles, boats, recreational vehicles and trucks. The Bank also makes home improvement loans and offers both secured and unsecured personal lines of credit. Consumer loans totaled \$937,000 at June 30, 2013. Consumer loans entail greater risk than residential mortgage loans, particularly in the case of consumer loans, which are unsecured or secured by rapidly depreciating assets such as automobiles. In such cases, any repossessed collateral may not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance. Further collection efforts may be hampered by the borrower s lack of current income or other assets. In addition, consumer loan collections are dependent on the borrower s continuing financial stability and thus are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Furthermore, the application of various federal and state laws including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount that can be recovered on such loans. Such loans may also give rise to claims and defenses by a consumer loan borrower against an assignee such as the Bank, and a borrower may be able to assert against such assignee claims and defenses that it has against the seller of the underlying collateral.

Commercial Equipment Loans. The Bank also maintains an amortizing commercial portfolio consisting primarily of commercial equipment loans. Commercial equipment loans totaled \$17.3 million, or 2.3% of the total loan portfolio, at June 30, 2013. These loans consist primarily of fixed-rate, short-term loans collateralized by customers—equipment including trucks, cars, construction and other more specialized equipment. When making commercial equipment loans, the Bank considers the same factors it considers when underwriting a commercial business loan. The higher interest rates and shorter loan terms available on commercial equipment lending make these products attractive to the Bank. These loans entail greater risk than loans such as residential mortgage loans. Unlike residential mortgage loans, which generally are made on the basis of the borrower—s ability to make repayment from his or her employment or other income and which are secured by real property whose value tends to be more easily ascertainable, commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis of the borrower—s ability to make repayment from the cash flow of the borrower—s business. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantially on the success of the business itself. In the case of business failure, collateral would need to be liquidated to provide repayment for the loan. In many cases, the highly specialized nature of collateral equipment would make full recovery from the sale of collateral problematic. The Bank assesses the amount of collateral required for a loan based upon the credit worthiness of the borrowers.

58

Loan Portfolio Analysis. Set forth below is selected data relating to the composition of the Bank s loan portfolio by type of loan on the dates indicated.

					At Decem	ber 31,		
	At June 3	0, 2013	201	2	201	1	201	0
	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%	Amount	%
				(Dollars in T	Thousands)			
Real estate loans								
Commercial	\$434,617	57.63%	\$419,667	55.47%	\$ 370,384	51.55%	\$ 336,300	50.72%
Residential first								
mortgage	165,434	21.93	177,663	23.48	164,543	22.90	136,048	20.52
Construction and								
land development	29,119	3.86	31,819	4.21	36,745	5.11	42,504	6.41
Home equity and								
second mortgage	21,769	2.89	21,982	2.91	24,138	3.36	24,380	3.68
Commercial loans	84,993	11.27	88,158	11.65	101,968	14.19	104,566	15.77
Consumer loans	937	0.12	995	0.13	1,001	0.14	1,273	0.19
Commercial								
equipment	17,347	2.30	16,268	2.15	19,761	2.75	17,984	2.71
Total loans	754,216	100.00%	756,552	100.00%	718,540	100.00%	663,055	100.00%
Less: Deferred								
loan fees	930		664		796		936	
Loan loss reserve	8,034		8,247		7,655		7,669	
Loans receivable,								
net	\$745,252		\$747,641		\$710,089		\$ 654,450	

		At December 31,					
	200	9	2008				
	Amount	%	Amount	%			
		(Dollars in T	Thousands)				
Real estate loans							
Commercial	\$ 292,988	46.88%	\$ 236,410	43.11%			
Residential first mortgage	116,226	18.59	104,607	19.07			
Construction and land development	62,509	10.00	57,565	10.50			
Home equity and second mortgage	25,133	4.02	25,412	4.63			
Commercial loans	108,658	17.38	101,936	18.59			
Consumer loans	1,608	0.26	2,046	0.37			
Commercial equipment	17,917	2.87	20,458	3.73			
Total loans	625,039	100.00%	548,434	100.00%			

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Less: Deferred loan fees	975	311	
Loan loss reserve	7,471	5,146	
Loans receivable, net	\$616,593	\$ 542,977	

Loan Originations, Purchases and Sales. The Bank solicits loan applications through marketing by commercial and residential mortgage loan officers, its branch network, and referrals from customers. Loans are processed and approved according to guidelines established by the Bank. Loan requirements such as income verification, collateral appraisal, and credit reports vary by loan type. Loan processing functions are generally centralized except for small consumer loans.

Depending on market conditions, residential mortgage loans may be originated with the intent to sell to third parties such as Fannie Mae or Freddie Mac. Mortgage loans in the amount of \$17.9 million and \$14.1 million were sold by the Bank for the six months ended June 2013 and the year ended December 31, 2012, respectively. To comply with internal and regulatory limits on loans to one borrower, the Bank may sell portions of commercial and commercial real estate loans to other lenders. The Bank sold no participations in 2012. The Bank

also buys loans, portions of loans, or participation certificates from other lenders. The Bank only purchases loans or portions of loans after reviewing loan documents, underwriting support, and other procedures, as necessary. The Bank purchased no loans during the first six months of 2013, compared to purchases of \$4.5 million in fixed-rate commercial mortgages during the year ended December 31, 2012. Purchased participation loans are subject to the same regulatory and internal policy requirements as other loans in the Bank s portfolio as described below.

Loan Approvals, Procedures and Authority. Loan approval authority is established by Board policy and delegated as deemed necessary and appropriate. Loan approval authorities vary by individual with the Chief Executive Officer having approval authority up to \$1.25 million, the President \$1.0 million, the Chief Lending Officer \$1.0 million, the Chief Credit Officer \$1.0 million and the Chief Operating Officer \$1.0 million. The individual lending authority of the other lenders is set by management and based on their individual abilities. The loan approval authorities of the Chief Executive Officer, the President, the Chief Lending Officer, the Chief Credit Officer, the Chief Operating Officer, the Senior Credit Officer and the regional senior loan officers may be combined and a minimum of at least three other individuals (two-thirds of which must be executive level) need to be present in an officers loan committee to approve loans up to \$2.0 million. In cases where time is of the essence, the officers loan committee consisting of any three members may unanimously approve loans to relationships in excess of the \$2.0 million up to the Bank s in-house lending limit with a later ratification by the Board Credit Review Committee. The in-house lending limit at June 30, 2013 was \$11.2 million, representing 75% of our legal lending limit. As of June 30, 2013 we had three relationships in excess of our in-house limit. A loan committee consisting of at least three members of the Board (the Directors Loan Committee) ratifies and approves or renews all loans to relationships that exceed \$2.0 million, except for those noted above that exceed the \$2.0 million limit in certain cases. Depending on the loan and collateral type, conditions for protecting the Bank s collateral are specified in the loan documents. Typically these conditions might include requirements to maintain hazard and title insurance and to pay property taxes.

Loans to One Borrower. Under Maryland law, the maximum amount that the Bank is permitted to lend to any one borrower and his or her related interests may generally not exceed 10% of the Bank s unimpaired capital and surplus, which is defined to include the Bank s capital, surplus, retained earnings and 50% of its reserve for possible loan losses. Under this authority, the Bank would have been permitted to lend up to \$9.5 million to any one borrower at June 30, 2013. By interpretive ruling of the Maryland Commissioner, Maryland banks have the option of lending up to the amount that would be permissible for a national bank, which is generally 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus (defined to include a bank s total capital for regulatory capital purposes plus any loan loss allowances not included in regulatory capital). Under this formula, the Bank would have been permitted to lend up to \$14.9 million to any one borrower at June 30, 2013. At June 30, 2013, the largest amount outstanding to any one borrower and his or her related interests was \$12.0 million. This borrower is a AAA-rated university hospital system located within the our market area. Subsequent to June 30, 2013, the Bank increased its exposure to our largest borrower up to our legal lending limit.

Loan Commitments. The Bank does not normally negotiate standby commitments for the construction and purchase of real estate. Most loan commitments are granted for a one-month period. The Bank s outstanding commitments to originate loans at June 30, 2013 were approximately \$21.7 million, excluding undisbursed portions of loans in process. It has been the Bank s experience that few commitments expire unfunded.

60

Maturity of Loan Portfolio. The following table sets forth certain information at December 31, 2012 regarding the dollar amount of loans maturing in the Bank s portfolio based on their contractual terms to maturity. Demand loans, loans having no stated schedule of repayments and no stated maturity, and overdrafts are reported as due in one year or less.

	Due within one year after December 31, 2012	Due after one year through five years from December 31, 2012 (Dollars in Thousands)		ye. Dec	ore than five ars from ember 31, 2012
Real estate loans					
Commercial	\$ 105,356	\$	154,991	\$	159,320
Residential first mortgage	41,802		59,052		76,809
Construction and land					
development	28,568		3,251		
Home equity and second					
mortgage	4,290		9,367		8,325
Commercial loans	88,158				
Consumer loans	492		377		126
Commercial equipment	6,779		6,912		2,577
Total loans	\$ 275,445	\$	233,950	\$	247,157

The following table sets forth the dollar amount of all loans due after one year from December 31, 2012, which have predetermined interest rates and have floating or adjustable interest rates.

	Fixed Rates	A	oating or djustable Rates s in Thousan	Total nds)
Real estate loans				
Commercial	\$ 84,045	\$	230,266	\$314,311
Residential first mortgage	119,618		16,243	135,861
Construction and land development			3,251	3,251
Home equity and second mortgage	2,290		15,402	17,692
Commercial loans				
Consumer loans	503			503
Commercial equipment	6,274		3,215	9,489
	\$212,730	\$	268,377	\$481,107

Asset Classification. Federal regulations and our policies require that we utilize an internal asset classification system as a means of reporting problem and potential problem assets. We have incorporated an internal asset classification system, substantially consistent with Federal banking regulations, as a part of our credit monitoring system. Federal

banking regulations set forth a classification scheme for problem and potential problem assets as substandard, doubtful or loss assets. An asset is considered substandard if it is inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the obligor or of the collateral pledged, if any. Substandard assets include those characterized by the distinct possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as doubtful have all of the weaknesses inherent in those classified substandard with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make collection or liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions, and values, highly questionable and improbable. Assets classified as loss are those considered uncollectible and of such little value that their continuance as assets without the establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. Assets that do not currently expose the insured institution to sufficient risk to warrant classification in one of the aforementioned categories but possess weaknesses are required to be designated special mention.

When an insured institution classifies one or more assets, or portions thereof, as substandard or doubtful, it is required that a general valuation allowance for loan losses be established for loan losses in an amount deemed prudent by management. General valuation allowances represent loss allowances that have been established to recognize the inherent losses associated with lending activities, but that, unlike specific allowances, have not been allocated to particular problem assets. When an insured institution classifies one or more assets, or portions thereof, as loss, it is required either to establish a specific allowance for losses equal to 100% of the amount of the asset so classified or to charge off such amount.

The table below sets forth information on our classified assets and assets designated special mention at the dates indicated.

	As of June 30,	As of Dec	ember 31,			
	2013	2012	2011			
	(Dollars in Thousands)					
Classified assets:						
Substandard	\$61,184	\$ 58,595	\$ 79,601			
Doubtful						
Loss			37			
Total classified assets	61,184	58,595	79,638			
Special mention assets	10,753	6,092				
Total classified and special mention assets	\$71,937	\$ 64,687	\$ 79,638			

Delinquencies. The Bank s collection procedures provide that when a loan is 15 days delinquent, the borrower is contacted by mail and payment is requested. If the delinquency continues, subsequent efforts will be made to contact the delinquent borrower and obtain payment. If these efforts prove unsuccessful, the Bank will pursue appropriate legal action including repossession of the collateral and other actions as deemed necessary. In certain instances, the Bank will attempt to modify the loan or grant a limited moratorium on loan payments to enable the borrower to reorganize his financial affairs.

An analysis of past due loans as of June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 was as follows:

June 30, 2013	Current	31-60 Days	61-89 Days (Dolld	90 or Greater Days ars in Thousands	Total Past Due	Total Loans Receivable
Commercial real estate	\$431,170	\$	\$ 284	\$ 3,163	\$ 3,447	\$ 434,617
Residential first mortgages	161,686		768	2,980	3,748	165,434
Construction and land development	29,119					29,119
Home equity and second mortgage	21,617	95	57		152	21,769
Commercial loans	78,894	90		6,009	6,099	84,993
Consumer loans	937					937
Commercial equipment	17,143	27	25	152	204	17,347

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Total	\$ 740,566	\$ 212	\$ 1,134	\$ 12,304	\$ 13,650	\$ 754,216
December 31, 2012						
Commercial real estate	\$416,721	\$	\$1,418	\$ 1,528	\$ 2,946	\$ 419,667
Residential first mortgages	173,593	97	803	3,170	4,070	177,663
Construction and land development	31,819					31,819
Home equity and second mortgage	21,499	351	61	71	483	21,982
Commercial loans	84,385		41	3,732	3,773	88,158
Consumer loans	983	9	3		12	995
Commercial equipment	15,660	372	20	216	608	16,268
Total	\$ 744,660	\$ 829	\$ 2,346	\$ 8,717	\$ 11,892	\$ 756,552

There were no accruing loans 90 days or greater past due at June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.

Impaired Loans. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The Bank evaluates substandard and doubtful classified loans, loans delinquent 90 days or greater, non-accrual loans and TDRs on an individualized basis to determine whether a loan is impaired (See Notes 1 and 5 of the consolidated financial statements, which are incorporated by reference into this prospectus).

Factors considered by management in determining impaired status include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration the circumstances surrounding the loan. These circumstances include the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower s payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Loans not impaired are included in the pool of loans evaluated in the general component of the allowance.

If a specific loan is deemed to be impaired it is evaluated for impairment. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan s effective interest rate, the loan s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. For loans that are also classified as impaired, a specific allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than carrying value of that loan.

The Bank considers all TDRs to be impaired and defines TDRs as loans whose terms have been modified to provide for a reduction or a delay in the payment of either interest or principal because of deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower. A loan extended or renewed at a stated interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk is not considered a TDR. Once an obligation has been classified as a TDR it continues to be considered a TDR until paid in full or until the loan returns to performing status and yields a market interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk. TDRs are evaluated for impairment on a loan-by-loan basis in accordance with the Bank s impairment methodology. The Bank does not participate in any specific government or Bank-sponsored loan modification programs. All restructured loan agreements are individual contracts negotiated with a borrower.

Specific loan loss reserves of \$1.2 million relate to impaired loans at June 30, 2013. The following table sets forth information with respect to the Bank s impaired loans at the dates indicated. The table includes a breakdown between impaired loans with and without an allowance:

	At June 30,	,	At			
	2013	2012	2011	2010	2009	2008
			(Dollars in	Thousands)		
Recorded investment with no allowance	\$ 36,553	\$ 34,718	\$ 10,621	\$ 10,020	\$ 8,947	\$
Recorded investment with allowance	6,660	4,272	10,096	11,368	11,601	1,743
Total impaired loans	\$43,213	\$38,990	\$20,717	\$21,388	\$ 20,548	\$ 1,743
Specific allocations of allowance	\$ 1,234	\$ 1,548	\$ 1,997	\$ 1,998	\$ 1,837	\$ 223

The following represents additional information regarding our impaired loans by class:

At and For the						
Six Months Ended	Recorded Investment With No	Recorded Investment With	Total Recorded	Related	Average Recorded	Interest Income
June 30, 2013	Allowance	Allowance	Investment	Allowance	Investment	Recognized
Commercial real estate	\$ 16,090	\$ 4,384	\$ 20,474	\$ 614	\$ 20,625	\$ 435
Residential first mortgages	4,328	908	5,236	407	5,283	94
Construction and land						
development	4,497	1,208	5,705	170	5,295	147
Home equity and second						
mortgage	214		214		265	5
Commercial loans	11,231	157	11,388	40	11,321	227
Consumer loans	41		41		47	2
Commercial equipment	152	3	155	3	174	
Total	\$ 36,553	\$ 6,660	\$ 43,213	\$ 1,234	\$ 43,010	\$ 910

At and For the						
Year Ended	Recorded Investment With No	Recorded Investment With	Total Recorded	Related	Average Recorded	Interest Income
December 31, 2012	Allowance	Allowance	Investment	Allowance	Investment	Recognized
Commercial real estate	\$ 18,805	\$ 2,814	\$ 21,619	\$ 786	\$ 22,502	\$ 1,120
Residential first mortgages	2,362	1,006	3,368	404	3,389	158
Construction and land						
development	4,878		4,878		4,793	276
Home equity and second						
mortgage	291		291		221	7
Commercial loans	8,330	448	8,778	354	9,153	284
Consumer loans	52		52		64	5
Commercial equipment		4	4	4	5	
Total	\$ 34,718	\$ 4,272	\$ 38,990	\$ 1,548	\$ 40,127	\$ 1,850

Non-performing Assets. The Bank s non-performing assets include foreclosed real estate and non-performing loans. For a detailed discussion on asset quality see the section captioned Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Asset Quality, Allowance for Loan Losses and Provision for Loan Losses.

Foreclosed Real Estate. Real estate acquired by the Bank as a result of foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure is classified as foreclosed real estate until such time as it is sold. When such property is acquired, it is recorded at its fair market value. Subsequent to foreclosure, the property is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less selling costs.

Additional write-downs as well as carrying expenses of the foreclosed properties are charged to expenses in the current period. The Bank had foreclosed real estate with a carrying value of approximately \$6.9 million at June 30, 2013. For a discussion of the accounting for foreclosed real estate, see *Critical Accounting Policies Other Real Estate Owned* and Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in the prospectus.

Non-performing Loans. Loans are reviewed on a regular basis and are placed on non-accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the collection of additional interest is doubtful. The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in the process of collection. Consumer loans are typically charged-off no later than 90 days past due. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful. Non-accrual loans are evaluated for impaired status on a loan by loan basis in accordance with the Company s impairment methodology.

All interest accrued but not collected from loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method,

64

until qualifying for return to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Non-accrual loans include performing loans classified as non-accrual loans due to concerns regarding the customer s operating results and its ability to service the debt. Interest on performing non-accrual loans is accounted for on a cash-basis.

The following table sets forth information with respect to the Bank s non-performing assets, TDRs and performing non-accrual loans. There were no loans 90 days or more past due that were still accruing interest at the dates indicated.

	At June 30, 2013	2012	At 2011 (Dollars in T	December 3	1 2009	2008
Non-performing loans:			(Donars in 1	nousunas)		
Real Estate Loans						
Commercial	\$ 3,163	\$ 1,529	\$ 2,866	\$ 8,243	\$ 6,367	\$ 1,208
Residential first mortgage	2,980	3,169	2,439	1,747	339	φ 1,200
Construction and land development	2,700	3,107	1,414	984	9,504	1,840
Home equity and second mortgage		71	291	233	7,501	1,010
Commercial loans	6,009	3,732	2,264	2,262	2,192	903
Consumer loans	0,007	3,732	1	1	23	148
Commercial equipment	152	216	236	48	862	837
Commercial equipment	132	210	230		002	037
Total	12,304	8,717	9,511	13,518	19,287	4,936
Foreclosed real estate	6,932	6,891	5,029	10,469	923	1,72 0
	0,5 0 =	2,07	2,0-2	-0,102	,	
Total non-performing assets	\$ 19,236	\$ 15,608	\$ 14,540	\$ 23,987	\$ 20,210	\$ 4,936
TDRs:(1)						
Real estate loans						
Commercial	\$ 3,093	\$ 3,097	\$ 7,697	\$ 6,848	\$ 6,706	\$
Residential first mortgage	1,489	1,418		929	394	
Construction and land development			1,717			
Commercial loans			2,369	8,834	4,441	
Commercial equipment			130	271	60	
Total	\$ 4,582	\$ 4,515	\$11,913	\$ 16,882	\$ 11,601	\$
Performing non-accrual loans ⁽²⁾	\$ 4,332	\$ 4,424	\$	\$	\$	\$
Total non-performing assets, TDRs and performing non-accrual loans	\$ 28,150	\$ 24,547	\$ 26,453	\$ 40,869	\$ 31,811	\$ 4,936
Non-performing loans (NPLs) to						
total loans	1.63%	1.15%	1.32%	2.04%	3.09%	0.90%
	2.21%	1.74%	1.32%	2.04%	3.09%	0.90%

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

NPLs and performing non-accrual

loans to total loans

NPLs, performing non-accrual loans						
and TDRs to total loans	2.81%	2.33%	2.98%	4.58%	4.94%	0.90%
Allowance for loan losses to						
non-performing loans	65.30%	94.78%	80.49%	56.73%	38.74%	104.25%
Non-performing assets to total assets	1.96%	1.59%	1.48%	2.71%	2.48%	0.69%
Non-performing assets, performing						
non-accrual loans and TDRs to total						
assets	2.87%	2.50%	2.61%	4.58%	3.90%	0.69%

(1) There were \$292,000, \$800,000 and \$297,000 of non-performing TDRs at June 30, 2012, December 31, 2011 and December 31, 2010, respectively, which appear as both TDRs and non-performing loans in the table above. The ratios of non-performing assets, performing non-accrual loans and TDRs to total loans total assets for these periods were adjusted to avoid duplicative counting of such amounts.

(footnotes continue on following page)

65

(2) Consists of six loans that represent one well-secured commercial relationship with no specific reserves due to the Bank s superior credit position and the value of the underlying collateral and are classified due to insufficient cash flow protections of the borrowers.

The following table sets forth an analysis of activity in the Bank s allowance for loan losses for the periods indicated.

	At and For the Six Months Ended June 30,	At	1,			
	2013	2012	2011 (Dollars in T	2010 Thousands)	2009	2008
Balance at beginning of period	\$8,247	\$7,655	\$7,669	\$7,471	\$5,146	\$4,482
Charge-offs:						
Real estate loans		406	1.240	506		
Commercial	50	486	1,249	526		
Residential first mortgages	59	11	49	63	187	207
Construction and land development	36 111	141 211	213	2,249 71	98	287
Home equity and second mortgage Commercial loans	406	1,004	2,441	569	608	202
Consumer loans	9	1,004	2,441	10	32	67
Commercial equipment	21	169	150	256	223	83
Commercial equipment	21	109	130	230	223	0.3
Total charge-offs:	642	2,027	4,105	3,744	1,148	639
Recoveries:						
Residential first mortgages	11	38	1			
Construction and land development	11	30	1	1		
Commercial loans	12			<u> </u>		
Consumer loans	2	1	1	7		2
Commercial equipment	50	51	2			
1. [
Total recoveries	74	90	4	8		2
Net charge-offs	568	1,937	4,101	3,736	1,148	637
Provision for possible loan losses	355	2,529	4,087	3,934	3,473	1,301
Balance at end of period	\$ 8,034	\$8,247	\$7,655	\$7,669	\$7,471	\$ 5,146
Allowance for loan losses to total						
loans	1.07%	1.09%	1.07%	1.16%	1.20%	0.94%
Net charge-offs to average loans	0.16%	0.27%	0.61%	0.61%	0.20%	0.13%

Table of Contents 134

66

At June 30,

The following table allocates the allowance for loan losses by loan category at the dates indicated. The allocation of the allowance to each category is not necessarily indicative of future losses and does not restrict the use of the allowance to absorb losses in any category.

At December 31,

		Percent of Loans in Each Cate- gory to Total Loans		Percent of Loans in Each Category to Total Loans	Amount		Amount			Percent of Loans in Each Cate- gory to Total Loans	20 Amount	Percent of Loan in Each Category to Total
ıl estate					()	Dollars in T	l housands	<i>5)</i>				
ns												
nmercial	\$ 3,358	57.63%	\$4,090	55.47%	\$ 2,525	51.55%	\$3,314	50.72%	\$ 2,660	46.88%	\$ 2,009	43.11
idential t												
rtgage	1,961	21.93	1,083	23.48	539	22.90	204	20.52	128	18.59	105	19.07
nstruction land												
elopment		3.86	533	4.21	354	5.11	1,267	6.41	1,696	10.00	1,295	10.50
me equity second												
rtgage	364	2.89	280	2.91	144	3.36	98	3.68	131	4.02	102	4.63
nmercial ns	1,519	11.27	1,949	11.65	3,850	14.19	2,551	15.77	2,110	17.38	1,248	18.59
nsumer	14	0.12	20	0.13	20	0.14	32	0.19	64	0.26	43	0.37
ns mmercial	14	0.12	20	0.13	20	0.14	32	0.19	04	0.20	43	0.57
ipment	217	2.30	292	2.15	223	2.75	203	2.71	682	2.87	344	3.73
al												
wance for		100.000		100.000	Φ7.655	100.000	Φ 7 .((0)	100 000	Ф 7 . 4 7 .1	100 000	Φ.5.14C	100.00
n losses	\$ 8,034	100.00%	\$8,247	100.00%	\$ 1,000	100.00%	\$ 1,009	100.00%	\$ /,4/1	100.00%	\$ 5,146	100.00

The Bank closely monitors the payment activity of all its loans. The Bank periodically reviews the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses based on an analysis of the size and composition of the loan portfolio, the Bank s historical loss experience, including trends in non-performing and classified loans and charge-offs, economic conditions in the Bank s market area, and a review of selected individual loans. Loan losses are charged off against the allowance when individual loans are deemed uncollectible. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance. The Bank believes it has established its existing allowance for loan losses in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and is in compliance with appropriate regulatory guidelines. However, the establishment of the level of the allowance for loan losses is highly subjective and dependent on incomplete

information as to the ultimate disposition of loans. Accordingly, there can be no assurance that actual losses may not vary from the amounts estimated or that the Bank s regulators will not require the Bank to significantly increase or decrease its allowance for loan losses, thereby affecting the Bank s financial condition and earnings. For a more complete discussion of the allowance for loan losses, see the section captioned *Management s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations-Critical Accounting Policies* and Notes 1 and 5 of the Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus.

Investment Activities

The Bank maintains a portfolio of investment securities to provide liquidity as well as a source of earnings. The Bank s investment securities portfolio consists primarily of mortgage-backed and other securities issued by U.S. government-sponsored enterprises (GSEs), including Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae. The Bank also has smaller holdings of privately issued mortgage-backed securities, U.S. Treasury obligations, and other equity and debt securities. As a member of the Federal Reserve and FHLB system, the Bank is required to maintain investments in the Federal Reserve Bank as a condition of membership and the Federal Home Loan Bank based upon levels of borrowings.

67

The following table sets forth the carrying value of the Company s investment securities portfolio and FHLB of Atlanta and Federal Reserve Bank stock at the dates indicated. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 2011, and 2010, their estimated fair value was \$161.6 million, \$166.9 million, \$201.5 million, and \$168.3 million, respectively.

	At June 30,	At December 3		31,	
	2013	2012	2011	2010	
		(Dollars in	Thousands)		
Asset-backed securities:					
Freddie Mac and Fannie Mae	\$ 145,429	\$150,318	\$ 180,638	\$ 144,861	
Other	3,525	4,439	9,839	12,463	
Total asset-backed securities	148,954	154,757	190,477	157,324	
Corporate equity securities	37	37	37	37	
Bond mutual funds	4,159	4,281	4,080	3,820	
Treasury bills	850	750	750	753	
Total investment securities	154,000	159,825	195,344	161,934	
FHLB and Federal Reserve Bank stock	6,667	5,476	5,587	6,316	
Total investment securities and FHLB and Federal Reserve					
Bank stock	\$ 160,667	\$ 165,301	\$ 200,931	\$ 168,250	

The maturities and weighted average yields for investment securities available for sale (AFS) and held to maturity (HTM) at June 30, 2013 are shown below.

			After	One	After	Five		
	One Ye	ar or	Thro	ugh	Throu	ugh		
	Les	S	Five Years		Ten Years		After Ten Years	
	Amortized	Average	Amortized	Average	Amortized	Average	Amortized	Average
	Cost	Yield	Cost	Yield	Cost	Yield	Cost	Yield
			(Dollars in	Thousands)			
AFS Investment								
securities:								
Asset-backed securities	\$ 6,758	1.51%	\$22,922	1.50%	\$ 14,677	1.50%	\$ 6,449	1.50%
Mutual funds	4,056	2.04						
Total AFS investment								
securities	\$ 10,814	1.71	\$22,922	1.50	\$ 14,677	1.50	\$ 6,449	1.50
HTM Investment								
securities:								
Asset-backed securities	\$ 14,647	1.84%	\$42,480	1.83%	\$ 27,668	1.67%	\$ 14,251	1.49%
Treasury bills	850	0.08						
Other investments								

Total HTM investment								
securities	\$ 15,497	1.75%	\$42,480	1.83%	\$ 27,668	1.67%	\$ 14,251	1.49%

The Bank s investment policy provides that securities that will be held for indefinite periods of time, including securities that will be used as part of the Bank s asset/liability management strategy and that may be sold in response to changes in interest rates, prepayments and similar factors are classified as available for sale and accounted for at fair value. Management s intent is to hold securities reported at amortized cost to maturity. Certain of the Company s asset-backed securities are issued by private issuers (defined as an issuer that is not a government or a government-sponsored entity). The Company had no investments in any private issuer s securities that aggregate to more than 10% of the Company s equity.

Deposits and Other Sources of Funds

General. The funds needed by the Bank to make loans are primarily generated by deposit accounts solicited from the communities surrounding its ten branches in the tri-county area and its branch in King George County,

68

Virginia. Total deposits were \$784.7 million as of June 30, 2013. The Bank uses borrowings and other sources to supplement funding from deposits.

Deposits. The Bank's deposit products include savings, money market, demand deposit, IRA, SEP, Christmas clubs, and time deposit accounts. Variations in service charges, terms and interest rates are used to target specific markets. Ancillary products and services for deposit customers include safe deposit boxes, travelers checks, night depositories, automated clearinghouse transactions, wire transfers, ATMs, and online and telephone banking. The Bank is a member of ACCEL/Exchange, Cirrus, Maestro and Star ATM networks. The Bank has occasionally used deposit brokers to obtain funds. At June 30, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Bank had \$20.0 million, \$19.1 million, and \$19.0 million in deposits from brokers, respectively. In addition, the Bank utilizes the Certificate of Deposit Account Registry Service (CDARS) to provide existing customers with additional access to FDIC insurance. At June 30, 2013, the Bank maintained CDARS deposits of \$29.7 million compared to \$27.9 million at December 31, 2012.

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the average balances outstanding and average interest rates for each major category of deposits.

	For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013		For the Year Ended December 31,					
			2012		2011		2010	
	Average Balance	Average Rate	Average Balance	Average Rate	Average Balance	Average Rate	Average Balance	Average Rate
			(.	Dollars in T	Thousands)			
Savings	\$ 36,859	0.10%	\$ 32,577	0.17%	\$ 31,446	0.35%	\$ 30,355	0.41%
Interest-bearing demand and money market								
accounts	263,521	0.32	262,331	0.54	217,183	1.00	161,494	0.94
Certificates of deposit	400,292	1.26	432,487	1.60	434,811	1.94	421,525	2.21
Total interest-bearing deposits	700,672		727,395		683,440		613,374	
Noninterest-bearing demand deposits	83,133		74,161		66,105		65,041	
	\$ 783,805	0.76	\$ 801,556	1.05	\$ 749,545	1.43	\$ 678,415	1.61

The following table indicates the amount of the Bank s certificates of deposit and other time deposits of \$100,000 or more and \$250,000 or more by time remaining until maturity as of June 30, 2013.

	\$100,000	\$250,000
Time Deposit Maturity Period	or More	or More
	(Dollars in '	Thousands)
Three months or less	\$ 32,733	\$ 12,635

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Three through six months	27,434	2,898
Six through twelve months	67,655	21,396
Over twelve months	77,465	57,312
Total	\$ 205,287	\$ 94,241

Subsidiary Activities

In April 1997, the Bank formed a wholly owned subsidiary, Community Mortgage Corporation of Tri-County, to offer mortgage banking, brokerage, and other services to the public. This corporation is currently inactive.

The Company has two direct subsidiaries other than the Bank. In July 2004, Tri-County Capital Trust I was established as a statutory trust under Delaware law as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company to issue trust preferred securities. Tri-County Capital Trust I issued \$7.0 million of trust preferred securities on July 22, 2004. In June 2005, Tri-County Capital Trust II was also established as a statutory trust under Delaware law as a

69

wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to issue trust preferred securities. Tri-County Capital Trust II issued \$5.0 million of trust preferred securities on June 15, 2005. For more information regarding these entities, see Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements, which are included in this prospectus.

Available Information

The Company s Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and any amendments to such reports filed pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, are made available free of charge on its website, www.cbtc.com, as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports are electronically filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the SEC). Information on the website should not be considered a part of this prospectus.

SUPERVISION AND REGULATION

General. The Bank is a Maryland commercial bank and its deposit accounts are insured by the Deposit Insurance Fund of the FDIC. The Bank is a member of the Federal Reserve and FHLB systems. The Bank is subject to supervision, examination and regulation by Maryland Commissioner and the Federal Reserve. As a bank holding company, the Company is subject to examination and supervision by the Federal Reserve under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amended, and the regulations of the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve also has extensive enforcement authority over bank holding companies, including, among other things, the ability to assess civil money penalties, to issue cease and desist or removal orders, and to require that a holding company divest subsidiaries (including its bank subsidiaries). In general, enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of law and regulations and unsafe or unsound practices.

The Dodd-Frank Act significantly changed the current bank regulatory structure and affected the lending, investment, trading and operating activities of financial institutions and their holding companies. Additionally, the Dodd-Frank Act created the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau as an independent bureau of the Federal Reserve. The Consumer Financial Protection Bureau assumed responsibility for implementing federal consumer financial protection and fair lending laws and regulations and has authority to impose new requirements. However, institutions of less than \$10 billion, such as the Bank, will continue to be examined for compliance with consumer protection or fair lending laws and regulations by, and be subject to enforcement authority of their prudential regulators. Many of the provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act require the issuance of regulations before their impact on operations can be fully assessed by management. However, there is a significant possibility that the Dodd-Frank Act will, at a minimum, result in increased regulatory burden and compliance costs for the Company and the Bank.

The following discussion summarizes certain of the regulations applicable to the Company and the Bank but does not purport to be a complete description of such regulations and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the actual laws and regulations involved.

Regulation of the Company

Acquisition of Control. A bank holding company, with certain exceptions, must obtain Federal Reserve approval before (1) acquiring ownership or control of another bank or bank holding company if it would own or control more than 5% of such shares; (2) acquiring all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or bank holding company; or (3) merging with another bank holding company. In evaluating such application, the Federal Reserve considers factors such as the financial condition and managerial resources of the companies involved, the convenience and needs of the communities to be served and competitive factors. Federal law provides that no person may acquire control of a bank holding company or insured bank without the approval of the appropriate federal regulator. Control is defined to mean

direct or indirect ownership, control of 25% or more of any class of voting stock, control of the election of a majority of the bank s directors or a determination by the Federal Reserve that the acquirer has or would have the power to exercise a controlling influence over the management or policies of the institution.

70

Permissible Activities. A bank holding company is limited in its activities to banking, managing or controlling banks, or providing services for its subsidiaries. Other permitted non-bank activities have been identified as closely related to banking. Bank holding companies that are well capitalized and well managed and whose financial institution subsidiaries have satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act records can elect to become financial holding companies, which are permitted to engage in a broader range of financial activities than are permitted to bank holding companies. The Company has not opted to become a financial holding company.

The Federal Reserve has the power to order a holding company or its subsidiaries to terminate any activity, or to terminate its ownership or control of any subsidiary, when it has reasonable cause to believe that the continuation of such activity or such ownership or control constitutes a serious risk to the financial safety, soundness or stability of any bank subsidiary of that holding company.

The Maryland Financial Institutions Code prohibits a bank holding company from acquiring more than 5% of any class of voting stock of a bank or bank holding company without the approval of the Maryland Commissioner. The Maryland Financial Institutions Code additionally prohibits any person from acquiring voting stock in a bank or bank holding company without 60 days prior notice to the Maryland Commissioner if such acquisition will give the person control of 25% or more of the voting stock of the bank or bank holding company. The Maryland Commissioner may deny approval of the acquisition if the Maryland Commissioner determines it to be anti-competitive or to threaten the safety or soundness of a banking institution.

Dividends. The Federal Reserve has the power to prohibit dividends by bank holding companies if their actions constitute unsafe or unsound practices. The Federal Reserve has issued a policy statement on the payment of cash dividends by bank holding companies, which expresses the Federal Reserve Board s view that a bank holding company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the company s net income for the past year is sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and a rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the company s capital needs, asset quality and overall financial condition. The Federal Reserve also indicated that it would be inappropriate for a bank holding company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay dividends. Under the prompt corrective action regulations adopted by the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Reserve may prohibit a bank holding company from paying any dividends if the holding company s bank subsidiary is classified as undercapitalized. See Regulation of the Bank Capital Adequacy.

Capital Requirements. Bank holding companies are required to maintain on a consolidated basis, specified minimum ratios of capital to total assets and capital to risk-weighted assets. These requirements, which generally apply to bank holding companies with consolidated assets of \$500 million or more, are substantially similar to, but somewhat more generous than, those applicable to the Bank. The Dodd-Frank Act required the Federal Reserve to adopt consolidated capital requirements for holding companies that are equally as stringent as those applicable to the depository institution subsidiaries. That means that certain instruments that had previously been includable in Tier 1 capital for bank holding companies, such as trust preferred securities, will no longer be eligible for inclusion. The revised capital requirements are subject to certain grandfathering and transition rules. The Company is currently considered a grandfathered institution under these rules.

In July 2013, the Federal Reserve announced new risk-based capital and leverage ratios to conform to the Basel III framework and address provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act. These requirements will become effective on January 1, 2015 and will be applicable to both the Company and the Bank. See Regulation of the Bank Capital Adequacy for a discussion of these new Basel III requirements.

Source of Strength. The Dodd-Frank Act codified the source of strength doctrine requiring bank holding companies to serve as a source of strength for their depository subsidiaries, by providing capital, liquidity and other support in

times of financial stress. The regulatory agencies are required to issue implementing regulations.

Stock Repurchases. The Company is required to give the Federal Reserve prior written notice of any purchase or redemption of its outstanding equity securities if the gross consideration for the purchase or

71

redemption, when combined with the net consideration paid for all such purchases or redemptions during the preceding 12 months, is equal to 10% or more of the Company s consolidated net worth. The Federal Reserve may disapprove such a purchase or redemption. This requirement does not apply to bank holding companies that are well capitalized, well-managed and are not the subject of any unresolved supervisory issues.

Regulation of the Bank

Capital Adequacy. The regulations of the Federal Reserve require bank holding companies and state member banks, respectively, to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of Tier 1 capital (as defined in the risk-based capital guidelines discussed in the following paragraphs) to total assets of 4.0%. The Federal Reserve has broad authority to require a higher level of Tier 1 capital.

The risk-based capital rules of the Federal Reserve require bank holding companies and state member banks to maintain minimum regulatory capital levels based upon risk weighted assets. Risk-based capital is composed of two elements: Tier 1 capital and Tier 2 capital. Tier 1 capital consists primarily of common stockholders—equity (including retained earnings), certain non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus and minority interests in equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries, less intangible assets. Tier 2 capital elements include, subject to limitations, the allowance for losses on loans and leases; long-term perpetual preferred stock; hybrid capital instruments, subordinated debt and intermediate-term preferred stock and up to 45% of unrealized gains on available for sale equity securities with readily determinable fair market values.

The risk-based capital regulations assign balance sheet assets and off-balance sheet obligations to one of four broad risk categories. The assets and off-balance sheet items in the four risk categories are weighted at 0%, 20%, 50% and 100%. These computations result in the total risk-weighted assets. The risk-based capital regulations require all banks and bank holding companies to maintain a minimum ratio of total capital (Tier 1 capital plus Tier 2 capital) to total risk-weighted assets of 8%, with at least 4% as Tier 1 capital. In calculating these ratios: (1) Tier 2 capital is limited to no more than 100% of Tier 1 capital; and (2) the aggregate amount of certain types of Tier 2 capital is limited. In addition, the risk-based capital regulations limit the allowance for loan losses includable as capital to 1.25% of total risk-weighted assets. The Federal Reserve also has authority to establish individual minimum capital requirements for an institution.

The current risk-based capital guidelines that apply to the Bank are based on the 1988 capital accord of the International Basel Committee on Banking Supervision (Basel Committee), a committee of central banks and bank supervisors, as implemented by the Federal Reserve Board. In 2004, the Basel Committee published a new capital accord, which is referred to as Basel II, to replace Basel I. Basel II provides two approaches for setting capital standards for credit risk: an internal ratings-based approach tailored to individual institutions—circumstances and a standardized approach that bases risk weightings on external credit assessments to a much greater extent than permitted in existing risk-based capital guidelines, which became effective in 2008 for large international banks (total assets of \$250 billion or more or consolidated foreign exposure of \$10 billion or more).

In December 2010 and January 2011, the Basel Committee published the final texts of reforms on capital, leverage and liquidity, which is referred to as Basel III. In early July 2013, the Federal Reserve approved revisions to the capital adequacy guidelines and prompt corrective action rules that implement Basel III and address relevant provisions of the Dodd-Frank Act.

The rules include new risk-based capital and leverage ratios, which are effective January 1, 2015, and revise the definition of what constitutes capital for purposes of calculating those ratios. The proposed new minimum capital level requirements applicable to the Company and the Bank will be: (1) a new common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%;

(2) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 6% (increased from 4%); (3) a total capital ratio of 8% (unchanged from current rules); and (4) a Tier 1 leverage ratio of 4% for all institutions. The rules eliminate the inclusion of certain instruments, such as trust preferred securities, from Tier 1 capital. Instruments issued prior to May 19, 2010 will be grandfathered for companies with consolidated assets of \$15 billion or less. The rules also

72

establish a capital conservation buffer of 2.5% above the new regulatory minimum capital requirements, which must consist entirely of common equity Tier 1 capital and would result in the following minimum ratios: (1) a common equity Tier 1 capital ratio of 7.0%, (2) a Tier 1 capital ratio of 8.5%, and (3) a total capital ratio of 10.5%. The new capital conservation buffer requirement will be phased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and would increase by that amount each year until fully implemented in January 2019. An institution would be subject to limitations on paying dividends, engaging in share repurchases, and paying discretionary bonuses if its capital level falls below the buffer amount. These limitations would establish a maximum percentage of eligible retained income that could be utilized for such actions.

Prompt Corrective Regulatory Action. The Federal Reserve classifies state member banks by capital levels and is authorized to take various prompt corrective actions to resolve the problems of any bank that fails to satisfy the capital standards. A well-capitalized bank is one that is not subject to any regulatory capital order to meet specific capital levels and has or exceeds the following capital levels: a total risk-based capital ratio of 10%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6%, and a leverage ratio of 5%. An adequately capitalized bank is one that does not qualify as well capitalized but meets or exceeds the following capital requirements: a total risk-based capital ratio of 8%, a Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 4%, and a leverage ratio of either (1) 4% or (2) 3% if the bank has the highest composite examination rating. A bank not meeting these criteria is treated as undercapitalized, significantly undercapitalized, or critically undercapitalized depending on the extent to which the bank s capital levels are below these standards. A state member bank that falls within any of the three undercapitalized categories established by the prompt corrective action regulation will be subject to regulatory sanctions. As of June 30, 2013, the Bank was well capitalized as defined by the Federal Reserve Board s regulations.

Branching. Maryland law provides that, with the approval of the Commissioner, Maryland banks may establish branches within Maryland and may establish branches in other states by any means permitted by the laws of such state or by federal law. The Federal Reserve may approve interstate branching by merger by state member banks in any state that did not opt out and *de novo* in states that specifically allow for such branching.

Dividend Limitations. Maryland banks may only pay dividends from undivided profits or, with the prior approval of the Commissioner, their surplus in excess of 100% of required capital stock. Maryland banks are further prohibited from declaring a dividend on its shares of common stock until its surplus fund equals the amount of required capital stock or, if the surplus fund does not equal the amount of capital stock, in an amount in excess of 90% of net earnings.

Without the approval of the Federal Reserve Board, a state member bank may not declare or pay a dividend if the total of all dividends declared during the year exceeds its net income during the current calendar year and retained net income for the prior two years. The Bank is further prohibited from making a capital distribution if it would be undercapitalized after payment of the dividend within the meaning of the prompt corrective action regulations discussed above.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Under the FDIC s risk-based assessment system, insured institutions are assigned to one of four risk categories based on supervisory evaluations, regulatory capital levels and certain other factors, with less risky institutions paying lower assessments. An institution s assessment rate depends upon the category to which it is assigned. The FDIC may adjust the scale uniformly, except that no adjustment can deviate more than two basis points from the base scale without notice and comment. No institution may pay a dividend if in default of the federal deposit insurance assessment.

The FDIC adopted new rules that amend its current deposit insurance assessment regulations. The new rules implement a provision in the Dodd-Frank Act that changed the assessment base for deposit insurance premiums from one based on domestic deposits to one based on average consolidated total assets minus average tangible equity. The

FDIC finalized a rule, effective April 1, 2011, that set the assessment range at 2.5 to 45 basis points of total assets less tangible equity.

73

The Dodd-Frank Act increased the minimum target Deposit Insurance Fund ratio from 1.15% of estimated insured deposits to 1.35% of estimated insured deposits. The FDIC must seek to achieve the 1.35% ratio by September 30, 2020. Insured institutions with assets of \$10 billion or more are supposed to fund the increase. The Dodd-Frank Act eliminated the 1.5% maximum fund ratio, instead leaving it to the discretion of the FDIC.

The FDIC has authority to increase insurance assessments. A significant increase in insurance premiums would likely have an adverse effect on our operating expenses and results of operations.

Insurance of deposits may be terminated by the FDIC upon a finding that the institution has engaged in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or unsound condition to continue operations or has violated any applicable law, regulation, rule, order or condition imposed by the FDIC or its prudential banking regulator. The management of the Bank does not know of any practice, condition or violation that might lead to termination of deposit insurance.

Reserve Requirements. Under Federal Reserve regulations, the Bank currently must maintain average daily reserves equal to 3% on aggregate transaction accounts of up to \$79.5 million, plus 10% on the remainder. The first \$12.4 million of transaction accounts are exempt. This percentage is subject to adjustment by the Federal Reserve. Because required reserves must be maintained in the form of vault cash or in a noninterest-bearing account at a Federal Reserve Bank, the effect of the reserve requirement is to reduce the amount of the institution s interest-earning assets. At June 30, 2013, the Bank met applicable Federal Reserve reserve requirements.

Transactions with Affiliates. A state member bank is limited in the amount of covered transactions with any affiliate. All such transactions must also be on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable, to the Bank or subsidiary as those provided to a non-affiliate. The term covered transaction includes the making of loans, purchase of assets, issuance of a guarantee and similar types of transactions. Certain covered transactions, such as loans to affiliates, must meet collateral requirements. At June 30, 2013, we had no transactions with affiliates.

Loans to directors, executive officers and principal shareholders of a state member bank must be made on substantially the same terms as those prevailing for comparable transactions with persons who are not executive officers, directors, principal shareholders or employees of the bank. Loans to any executive officer, director and principal shareholder together with all other outstanding loans to such person and affiliated interests generally may not exceed 15% of the Bank s unimpaired capital and surplus and all loans to such persons may not exceed the institution s unimpaired capital and unimpaired surplus. Loans to directors, executive officers and principal shareholders, and their respective affiliates, in excess of the greater of \$25,000 or 5% of capital and surplus, or any loans cumulatively aggregating \$500,000 or more, must be approved in advance by a majority of the board of directors of the bank with any interested director not participating in the voting. State member banks are prohibited from paying the overdrafts of any of their executive officers or directors unless payment is made pursuant to a written, pre-authorized interest-bearing extension of credit plan that specifies a method of repayment or transfer of funds from another account at the bank. In addition, loans to executive officers may not be made on terms more favorable than those afforded other borrowers and are restricted as to type, amount and terms of credit.

Enforcement. The Maryland Commissioner has extensive enforcement authority over Maryland banks. Such authority includes the ability to issue cease and desist orders and civil money penalties and to remove directors or officers. The Maryland Commissioner may also take possession of a Maryland bank whose capital is impaired and seek to have a receiver appointed by a court.

The Federal Reserve has primary federal enforcement responsibility over state-chartered member banks, including the authority to bring enforcement action against all institution-related parties, including shareholders, and any attorneys, appraisers and accountants who knowingly or recklessly participate in wrongful action likely to have an adverse effect

on an institution. Formal enforcement action may range from the issuance

74

of capital directive or a cease and desist order for the removal of officers and/or directors, receivership, conservatorship or termination of deposit insurance. Civil money penalties cover a wide range of violations and actions, and can range from \$25,000 per day to \$1 million per day (in the most egregious cases). Federal law also establishes criminal penalties for certain violations.

Community Reinvestment Act. All financial institutions have a responsibility under the Community Reinvestment Act and related regulations to help meet the credit needs of their communities, including low and moderate-income neighborhoods. An institution s failure to satisfactorily comply with the provisions of the Community Reinvestment Act could result in denials of regulatory applications. Responsibility for administering the Community Reinvestment Act, unlike other fair lending laws, is not being transferred to the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau. Community Bank received a satisfactory Community Reinvestment Act rating in its most recently completed examination.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. Community Bank is a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank System, which consists of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks. The Federal Home Loan Bank provides a central credit facility primarily for member institutions. Community Bank, as a member of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta, is required to acquire and hold shares of capital stock in that Federal Home Loan Bank. Community Bank was in compliance with this requirement with an investment in Federal Home Loan Bank stock at June 30, 2013 of \$6.7 million.

75

MANAGEMENT

Directors

Tri-County Financial s board of directors currently consists of nine members. The Board is divided into three classes, each with terms of three years, one-third of whom are elected annually. Information regarding the directors is provided below. Unless otherwise stated, each individual has held his or her current occupation for the last five years. The age indicated in each biography is as of December 31, 2012. The indicated period for service as a director includes service as a director of Community Bank.

Philip T. Goldstein, 64, has owned and operated Philip T. Goldstein Real Estate Appraisals, a full-service real estate appraisal and consulting firm, located in Prince Frederick, Maryland, since 1975. He currently serves as a director of Asbury Communities, Inc., a non-profit continuing care retirement community headquartered in Gaithersburg, Maryland, Calvert County Nursing Center, Prince Frederick, Maryland, and Calvert Farmland Trust, Prince Frederick, Maryland. Director since 2006. Term expires in 2014.

Mr. Goldstein provides the Board with significant management, strategic and operational knowledge through his experience as owner of a real estate appraisal and consulting firm. Mr. Goldstein s background in commercial and residential appraisal practice also provides a valuable perspective to the credit function of the Bank. Mr. Goldstein provides local community insight through his position as a director on various local non-profit organizations.

Louis P. Jenkins, Jr, 41, is the principal of Jenkins Law Firm, LLC, located in LaPlata, Maryland. Before entering private practice, Mr. Jenkins served as an Assistant State s Attorney in Charles County, Maryland from 1997 to 1999. In addition to his private practice, Mr. Jenkins serves as Court Auditor for the Circuit Court for Charles County, Maryland and attorney for the Charles County Board of Elections. Mr. Jenkins currently serves as Chairman of the Board of Directors of Civista Medical Center, a member hospital of the University of Maryland Medical System and has served as a board member of several other public service organizations including the Southern Maryland Chapter of the American Red Cross, Charles County Chamber of Commerce and the Charles County Bar Association. Director since 2000. Term expires in 2016.

As an attorney, Mr. Jenkins provides the Board with substantial knowledge regarding issues facing the Company and the Bank. In addition, Mr. Jenkins brings a critical perspective to the lending and governance function of the Company and the Bank. Mr. Jenkins experience in the public sector adds valuable expertise regarding local issues and provides first-hand understanding of the local political and business environment in which the Bank operates.

Michael L. Middleton, 65, is Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company and the Bank. Mr. Middleton joined the Bank in 1973 and served in various management positions until 1979 when he became President of the Bank, which he served as until 2010. He remained President of the Company until May 2012. Mr. Middleton is a Certified Public Accountant and holds a Masters of Business Administration. From 1996 to 2004, Mr. Middleton served on the Board of Directors of the FHLB of Atlanta, serving as Chairman of the Board in 2004. Mr. Middleton served on the Board of Directors of the Federal Reserve Bank, Baltimore Branch, from 2004 to 2009. He completed his term as Chairman of the Maryland Bankers Association in June 2013 and is currently a trustee for the College of Southern Maryland, serves on the Advisory Board of the Robert H. Smith School of Business Center for Financial Policy and serves on the Federal Reserve s Community Depository Advisory Council. He also serves on several philanthropic and civic boards. Director since 1979. Term expires in 2016.

Mr. Middleton s extensive experience in the local banking industry and involvement in the communities in which the Bank serves affords the Board valuable insight regarding the business and operation of the Bank. In addition to

Mr. Middleton s extensive background in finance and corporate management, Mr. Middleton also has significant expertise in large financial institution governance providing a unique and broad-based decision-

76

making capability for the Company and the Bank. Mr. Middleton s knowledge of the Company s and the Bank s business and history, combined with his success and strategic vision, position him well to continue to serve as our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer.

William J. Pasenelli, 54, is President and Chief Financial Officer of the Company and President of the Bank. Mr. Pasenelli joined the Bank as Chief Financial Officer in 2000 and was named President of the Bank in 2010 and President of the Company in May 2012. He relinquished the position of Chief Financial Officer of the Bank in March 2013. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Pasenelli had been Chief Financial Officer of Acacia Federal Savings Bank, Annandale, Virginia, since 1987. Mr. Pasenelli is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Greater Washington Society of Certified Public Accountants and other civic groups. Director since 2010. Term expires in 2015.

Mr. Pasenelli s extensive experience in the local banking industry affords the Board valuable insight regarding the business and operation of the Bank. Mr. Pasenelli s financial acumen and knowledge of the Company s and the Bank s business and history position him well to continue to serve as President and Chief Financial Officer and as a Director.

Mary Todd Peterson, 58, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of Medmarc Insurance Group and a Director of Medmarc Casualty Insurance Company and each of its subsidiaries. Ms. Peterson has been associated with Medmarc since 2001 where she has also held the positions of Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer. From 1993 to 2001, Ms. Peterson was a Partner with Johnson Lambert & Co., a certified public accounting firm. Ms. Peterson has also held positions with Acacia Life Insurance Company, Oxford Development Corporation and Ernst & Whinney (now Ernst & Young). Ms. Peterson currently serves as a member of the Property Casualty Insurers Association of America (PCI) Board of Governors, Chair of PCI s Investment Committee and a member of PCI s Executive, Finance and Audit Committees. Ms. Peterson is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Ms. Peterson serves as the chair of our audit committee. Director since 2010. Term expires in 2016.

Ms. Peterson has extensive management level experience in a mid-size company setting within the financial services industry. As a Virginia resident, Ms. Peterson provides valuable insight regarding local markets in Virginia. Ms. Peterson s financial and operational expertise within the insurance industry, including her corporate governance and risk assessment skills, provide the Board with a skill set critical to efficient oversight of the Company and the Bank.

James R. Shepherd, 67, is a retired businessman and former local government executive. Mr. Shepherd holds an MS degree in Management from the University of Maryland and a BA from Roanoke College in Economics and Business Administration. Mr. Shepherd serves on numerous civic and charitable organizations. Director since 2003. Term expires in 2014.

Mr. Shepherd s background in economic development and management adds strength to the market intelligence required to direct strategic initiatives on franchise expansion. Mr. Shepherd also brings critical insight regarding the economic development of the communities in which the Bank operates.

Austin J. Slater, Jr., 59, is the President and Chief Executive Officer of the Southern Maryland Electric Cooperative, which is one of the ten largest electrical distribution cooperatives in the country. Mr. Slater also serves as the immediate past Chairman of the Board of the Maryland Chamber of Commerce and numerous other industry and civic organizations. He also serves as the Chairman of the Board of Trustees for the College of Southern Maryland. Mr. Slater holds a MBA in Finance from George Washington University and a BS in Accounting from Shepherd University. Director since 2003. Term expires in 2015.

Mr. Slater has extensive management level experience in a large company setting outside of the financial services industry. Mr. Slater s financial acumen and operational experience allow him to understand the

77

complexities of the Company and the Bank. His experience in a regulated industry has exposed Mr. Slater to many of the issues facing companies today, particularly regulated entities, making Mr. Slater a valued component of the board.

H. Beaman Smith, 67, is the retired founder and President of Accoware, a computer software company established in 1986. He served as Vice President of Fry Plumbing & Heating Company in Washington, DC from 1988 until his retirement in October 2008. From 1974 to 1986, he served as President and Owner of Smith Family Honey, a family owned business founded by his father. Mr. Smith holds a Masters Degree and BS from the University of Maryland. Director since 1986. Term expires in 2014.

Mr. Smith brings a wealth of varied management and business experience to the Board through his experience as a vice president in a small firm setting and as founder of a software company. Mr. Smith s background in information technology and small business operations allows a balanced approach to operational issues and corporate oversight.

Joseph V. Stone, Jr., 58, has owned and operated Joe Stone Insurance Agency, which provides multi-line insurance services to clients in Maryland and Virginia, since 1981. He has served as a director for the Southern Maryland Electric Cooperative since 1996 and currently serves as Chairman of the Board. Director since 2006. Term expires in 2015.

Mr. Stone provides the Board with significant marketing and operational knowledge through his experience as owner of an insurance agency and various director positions with companies outside of the financial services industry. Mr. Stone also has considerable experience in the insurance industry, corporate governance and risk assessment practices necessary in banking operations.

Executive Officers who are not Directors

Unless otherwise stated, each individual has held his or her current occupation for the last five years. The age indicated in each biography is as of December 31, 2012.

Gregory C. Cockerham, 58, joined the Bank in 1988. He serves as the Bank s Executive Vice President Chief Lending Officer. Before joining the Company he was retail Vice President of Maryland National Bank. Mr. Cockerham serves as Chairman of the College of Southern Maryland Foundation and the Maryland Title Center. He is a Paul Harris Fellow and Foundation Chair with the Rotary Club of Charles County and serves on various civic boards in Charles County.

James M. Burke, *44*, joined the Bank in 2006. He serves as the Bank s Executive Vice President Chief Credit Officer. Before his appointment as Executive Vice President in 2007, he served as the Bank s Senior Credit Officer. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Burke served as Executive Vice President of Mercantile Southern Maryland Bank. Mr. Burke has over 20 years of banking experience. Mr. Burke is the former Chairman of the Board of Directors of Civista Medical Center and is active in other civic groups.

James F. DiMisa, 53, joined the Bank in 2006. He serves as Executive Vice President Chief Operating Officer. Before joining the Bank, Mr. DiMisa served as Executive Vice President of Mercantile Southern Maryland Bank. Mr. DiMisa has over 30 years of banking experience. Mr. DiMisa is Chairman of the Board of Trustees for the Maryland Bankers School and a member of several other civic and professional groups. Mr. DiMisa is a Stonier Graduate School of Banking graduate and holds a Masters of Business Administration.

Todd L. Capitani, 47, joined the Bank in 2009. He serves as the Bank s Executive Vice President Chief Financial Officer. Before his appointment as Chief Financial Officer of the Bank in 2012, he served as the Bank s Finance

Officer. Before joining the Bank, Mr. Capitani served as a Senior Manager at Deloitte Consulting and as Chief Financial Officer at Ruesch International, Inc. Mr. Capitani has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance, controllership and external audit. Mr. Capitani is a member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and other civic groups.

78

SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of ______, 2013, certain information as to those persons known by the Company to beneficially own more than 5% of the Company s outstanding shares of common stock and the shares of common stock beneficially owned by each director, the executive officer named in the compensation table in the proxy statement for the 2013 annual meeting and by all executive officers and directors of the Company as a group. All beneficial owners listed in the table have the same address as the Company. Unless otherwise indicated, each of the named individuals has sole voting power and sole investment power with respect to the shares shown.

Name of Beneficial Owners	Number of Shares Owned (Excluding Options) ⁽¹⁾⁽²⁾	Number of Shares That May be Acquired within 60 Days by Exercising Options	Percent of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding ⁽³⁾
Directors			
Philip T. Goldstein	3,027	500	*
Louis P. Jenkins, Jr.	12,500	18,056	*
Michael L. Middleton	271,731 ⁽⁴⁾	46,317	%
William J. Pasenelli	27,582	20,039	%
Mary Todd Peterson	4,529		*
James R. Shepherd	6,000	12,375	*
Austin J. Slater, Jr.	13,894	12,375	*
H. Beaman Smith	102,529	21,825	%
Joseph V. Stone, Jr.	$22,300^{(5)}$	500	*
Named Executive Officer Who is Not Also a Director Gregory C. Cockerham	105,766	20,612	%
All Directors, Executive Officers and Nominees as a Group (14 persons)	594,889 ⁽⁶⁾	137,967	%
Community Bank of Tri-County Employee Stock Ownership Plan	264,141 ⁽⁷⁾	10.,207	%

^{*} Less than 1% of the shares outstanding

⁽¹⁾ Includes shares allocated to the account of the individuals under the Community Bank of Tri-County Employee Stock Ownership Plan, with respect to which the individual has voting but not investment power as follows:

Mr. Cockerham 27,022 shares; Mr. Middleton 42,593 shares; and Mr. Pasenelli 3,410 shares.

⁽²⁾ Includes shares of restricted stock, with respect to which the individual has voting but not investment power as follows: Mr. Cockerham 2,447 shares and Mr. Pasenelli 3,535 shares.

- (3) Based upon [] shares of Company common stock outstanding, plus, for each individual or group, the number of shares of Company common stock that each individual or group may acquire through the exercise of options within 60 days of ______, 2013.
- (4) Includes 69,351 shares owned by Mr. Middleton s wife and 4,877 shares owned by the individual retirement account of Mr. Middleton s wife.
- (5) Includes 2,000 shares owned by the individual retirement account of Mr. Stone s wife.
- (6) Amount includes an aggregate of 5,142 unvested shares of restricted stock over which certain officers of the Company have voting but no dispositive power.
- Includes 59,618 shares held in a suspense account for future allocation and/or distribution among participants as the loan used to purchase the shares is repaid. The ESOP trustees, which are Company directors Joseph V. Stone, Jr., and H. Beaman Smith, vote all allocated shares in accordance with the instructions of the participating employees. Unallocated shares and shares for which no instructions have been received are voted by the trustees in the same proportion as shares for which the trustees have received timely voting instructions.

79

DESCRIPTION OF OUR CAPITAL STOCK

Our authorized capital stock consists of 15,000,000 shares of capital stock, par value \$0.01 per share, the terms of which may be established by the board of directors without shareholder action. As of ______, 2013, there were [] shares of common stock outstanding and 20,000 shares of Series C preferred stock outstanding. There were also options with respect to [] shares under our equity compensation plans, of which [] were exercisable. An aggregate of [] shares of common stock are subject to issuance pursuant to future awards under our existing equity compensation plans.

Common Stock

Each share of our common stock has the same relative rights as, and is identical in all respects with, each other share of common stock.

Voting Rights. The holders of our common stock are entitled to one vote per share on all matters presented to shareholders. Holders of common stock are not entitled to cumulate their votes in the election of directors.

Dividends and Repurchases. The holders of our common stock are entitled to receive and share equally in any dividends as may be declared by our board of directors out of funds legally available for the payment of dividends. Under Maryland law, we may pay dividends if, after giving effect to such dividends, (1) we will be able to pay our indebtedness as such indebtedness becomes due in the usual course of business and (2) our total assets exceed our total liabilities plus the amount that would be needed to satisfy the preferential rights upon dissolution of shareholders whose preferential rights upon dissolution are superior to those receiving dividends.

As of June 30, 2013, we had approximately \$12.4 million of junior subordinated debentures issued to two unconsolidated statutory trusts in connection with the issuance by each of the two trusts of trust preferred securities. The terms of the junior subordinated debentures provide that we may defer interest on such instruments for up to 20 consecutive quarters. As of June 30, 2013, we were current on the interest payable pursuant to the junior subordinated debentures. However, if we elect in the future to defer interest on such instruments, our ability to pay dividends on our common stock also will be subject to the prior payment of all accrued but unpaid interest on the junior subordinated debentures.

Liquidation. Upon our liquidation, dissolution or winding up, the holders of our common stock are entitled to receive their pro rata portion of our remaining assets after payment, or provision for payment, of all our debts and liabilities and the holders our preferred stock, if any, have been paid in full any sums to which they may be entitled.

No Preemptive or Redemption Rights. Holders of our common stock are not entitled to preemptive rights with respect to any shares that may be issued. The common stock is not subject to redemption.

Preferred Stock. Our board of directors may, from time to time, by action of a majority, authorize the issuance of shares of the authorized, undesignated preferred stock, in one or more classes or series. In connection with any such issuance, the Board may by resolution determine the designation, voting rights, preferences as to dividends, in liquidation or otherwise, participation, redemption, sinking fund, conversion, dividend or other special rights or powers, and the limitations, qualifications and restrictions, of such shares of preferred stock.

Series C Preferred Stock

The following is a summary of the material terms of the Series C preferred stock. This summary does not purport to be complete, and is subject to and qualified in its entirety by reference to the Amended and Restated Articles Supplementary for the Series C preferred stock that was filed with the SEC and is also available upon request from us.

Dividends. The Series C preferred stock is entitled to receive non-cumulative dividends, payable quarterly, on each January 1, April 1, July 1 and October 1. The dividend rate can fluctuate on a quarterly basis during the

80

first 10 quarters during which the Series C preferred stock is outstanding, based upon changes in the level of Qualified Small Business Lending or QSBL of the Bank. Based upon the increase in the Bank s level of QSBL over a baseline level, the dividend rate for the initial dividend period has been set at one percent. For the second through ninth calendar quarters, the dividend rate may be adjusted to between one percent and five percent per annum, to reflect the amount of change in the Bank s level of QSBL. As of June 30, 2013, the dividend rate remains at one percent. If the level of the Bank s qualified small business loans declines so that the percentage increase in QSBL as compared to the baseline level is less than 10%, then the dividend rate payable on the Series C preferred stock would increase. For the tenth calendar quarter through four and one half years after issuance, the dividend rate will be fixed at between one percent and seven percent based upon the increase in QSBL as compared to the baseline. After four and one half years from issuance, the dividend rate will increase to 9%.

Dividends on the Series C preferred stock will be non-cumulative. If for any reason our Board of Directors does not declare a dividend on the Series C preferred stock for a particular dividend period, then the holders of the Series C preferred stock will have no right to receive any dividend for that dividend period, and we will have no obligation to pay a dividend for that dividend period. We must, however, within five calendar days, deliver to the holders of the Series C preferred stock a written notice executed by our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer stating our Board of Directors rationale for not declaring dividends. Our failure to pay a dividend on the Series C preferred stock also will restrict our ability to pay dividends on and repurchase other classes and series of our stock.

When dividends have not been declared and paid in full on the Series C preferred stock for an aggregate of four or more dividend periods, and during that time we were not subject to a regulatory determination that prohibits the declaration and payment of dividends, we must, within five calendar days of each missed payment, deliver to the holders of the Series C preferred stock a certificate executed by at least a majority of the members of our Board of Directors stating that it used its best efforts to declare and pay such dividends in a manner consistent with safe and sound banking practices and the directors—fiduciary obligations. In addition, our failure to pay dividends on the Series C preferred stock for five or more dividend periods will give the holders of the Series C preferred stock the right to appoint a non-voting observer on our Board of Directors, and our failure to pay dividends on the Series C preferred stock for six or more dividend periods will give the holders of the Series C preferred stock the right to elect two directors.

No Sinking Fund. The Series C preferred stock is not subject to any sinking fund.

Priority of Dividends and Restrictions on Repurchases.

Priority of Dividends. So long as any share of the Series C preferred stock remains outstanding, we may declare and pay dividends on our common stock only if full dividends on all outstanding shares of Series C preferred stock for the most recently completed dividend period have been or are contemporaneously declared and paid. If a dividend is not declared and paid in full on the Series C preferred stock for any dividend period, then from the last day of that dividend period until the last day of the third dividend period immediately following it, no dividend or distribution may be declared or paid on our common stock.

Restrictions on Repurchases. So long as any share of the Series C preferred stock remains outstanding, we may repurchase or redeem shares of our common stock, only if dividends on all outstanding shares of Series C preferred stock for the most recently completed dividend period have been or are contemporaneously declared and paid (or have been declared and a sum sufficient for payment has been set aside for the benefit of the holders of the Series C preferred stock as of the applicable record date).

Liquidation Rights. In the event of any voluntary or involuntary liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company, holders of the Series C preferred stock will be entitled to receive for each share of Series C preferred stock, out of the assets of the Company or proceeds available for distribution to our

81

shareholders, subject to any rights of our creditors, before any distribution of assets or proceeds is made to or set aside for the holders of our common stock payment of an amount equal to the sum of (1) the \$1,000 liquidation preference amount per share and (2) the amount of any accrued and unpaid dividends on the Series C preferred stock.

For purposes of the liquidation rights of the Series C preferred stock, neither a merger nor consolidation of the Company with another entity nor a sale, lease or exchange of all or substantially all of the Company s assets will constitute a liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the affairs of the Company.

Redemption and Repurchases. The Series C preferred stock may be redeemed at any time at the Company s option, at a redemption price of 100% of the liquidation amount plus accrued but unpaid dividends to the date of redemption for the current period, subject to the approval of its federal banking regulator.

To exercise the optional redemption right, we must give notice of the redemption to the holders of record of the Series C preferred stock, not less than 30 days and not more than 60 days before the date of redemption. The notice of redemption given to a holder of Series C preferred stock must state: (1) the redemption date; (2) the number of shares of Series C preferred stock to be redeemed and, if less than all the shares held by such holder are to be redeemed, the number of such shares to be redeemed from such holder; (3) the redemption price; and (4) the place or places where certificates for such shares are to be surrendered for payment of the redemption price. In the case of a partial redemption of the Series C preferred stock, the shares to be redeemed will be selected either pro rata or in such other manner as our board of directors or a committee of the board of directors determines to be fair and equitable, provided that shares representing at least 25% of the aggregate liquidation amount of the Series C preferred stock are redeemed.

Shares of Series C preferred stock that we redeem, repurchase or otherwise acquire will revert to authorized but unissued shares of preferred stock, which may then be reissued by us as any series of preferred stock other than the Series C preferred stock.

Conversion. Holders of the Series C preferred stock have no right to exchange or convert their shares into any other securities.

Voting Rights. The holders of the Series C preferred stock do not have voting rights other than with respect to certain matters relating to the rights of holders of Series C preferred stock, on certain corporate transactions and, if applicable, the election of additional directors described above.

In addition to any other vote or consent required by law or by our articles of incorporation, the written consent of (x) the Treasury, if the Treasury holds any shares of Series C preferred stock, or (y) the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of Series C preferred stock, voting as a single class, if the Treasury does not hold any shares of Series C preferred stock, is required to:

amend our articles of incorporation or the Certificate of Designation for the Series C preferred stock to authorize or create or increase the authorized amount of, or any issuance of, any shares of, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for shares of, any class or series of stock ranking senior to the Series C preferred stock with respect to the payment of dividends and/or the distribution of assets on any liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company;

amend our articles of incorporation or the Certificate of Designation for the Series C preferred stock so as to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series C preferred stock;

consummate a binding share exchange or reclassification involving the Series C preferred stock or a merger or consolidation of the Company with another entity, unless (1) the shares of Series C preferred stock remain outstanding or, in the case of a merger or consolidation in which the Company is not the

82

surviving or resulting entity, are converted into or exchanged for preference securities of the surviving or resulting entity or its ultimate parent, and (2) the shares of Series C preferred stock remaining outstanding or such preference securities, as the case may be, have such rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions, that are the same as the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions of the Series C preferred stock immediately prior to consummation of the transaction, taken as a whole;

sell all, substantially all or any material portion of, the assets of the Company, if the Series C preferred stock will not be redeemed in full contemporaneously with the consummation of such sale; or

consummate a Holding Company Transaction (as defined below), unless as a result of the Holding Company Transaction each share of Series C preferred stock will be converted into or exchanged for one share with an equal liquidation preference of preference securities of the Company or the acquiror (the Holding Company Preferred Stock). Any such Holding Company Preferred Stock must entitle its holders to dividends from the date of issuance of such stock on terms that are equivalent to the terms of the Series C preferred stock, and must have such other rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions that are the same as the rights, preferences, privileges and voting powers, and limitations and restrictions of the Series C preferred stock immediately prior to such conversion or exchange, taken as a whole;

provided, however, that (1) any increase in the amount of our authorized shares of Preferred Stock, and (2) the creation and issuance, or an increase in the authorized or issued amount, of any other series of Preferred Stock, or any securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for any other series of Preferred Stock, ranking equally with and/or junior to the Series C preferred stock with respect to the payment of dividends, whether such dividends are cumulative or non-cumulative, and the distribution of assets upon the liquidation, dissolution or winding up of the Company, will not be deemed to adversely affect the rights, preferences, privileges or voting powers of the Series C preferred stock and will not require the vote or consent of the holders of the Series C preferred stock.

A Holding Company Transaction means the occurrence of (a) any transaction that results in a person or group (1) becoming the direct or indirect ultimate beneficial owner of common equity of the Company representing more than 50% of the voting power of the outstanding shares of our Common Stock or (2) being otherwise required to consolidate the Company for GAAP purposes, or (b) any consolidation or merger of the Company or similar transaction or any sale, lease or other transfer in one transaction or a series of related transactions of all or substantially all of our consolidated assets to any person other than one of our subsidiaries; *provided* that, in the case of either clause (a) or (b), the Company or the acquiror is or becomes a bank holding company or savings and loan holding company.

To the extent holders of the Series C preferred stock are entitled to vote, holders of shares of the Series C preferred stock will be entitled to one for each share then held.

The voting provisions described above will not apply if, at or prior to the time when the vote or consent of the holders of the Series C preferred stock would otherwise be required, all outstanding shares of the Series C preferred stock have been redeemed by us or called for redemption upon proper notice and sufficient funds have been deposited by us in trust for the redemption.

Certain Charter and Bylaw Provisions Affecting Stock

Our articles of incorporation and bylaws contain several provisions that may make us less attractive target for an acquisition of control by anyone who does not have the support of our board of directors. Such provisions include, among other things, the requirement of a supermajority vote of shareholders to approve certain business combinations and other corporate actions, a staggered board of directors, and the limitation that shareholder actions may only be taken at a meeting and may not be taken by unanimous written shareholder consent. The

83

foregoing is qualified in its entirety by reference to our Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws, both of which are on file with the SEC.

Maryland Corporate Law

Maryland law contains certain provisions, described below, which may be applicable to Tri-County Financial.

Business Combinations with Interested Shareholders. The articles of incorporation require the approval of the holders of at least 80% of Tri-County Financial s outstanding shares of voting stock entitled to vote to approve certain business combinations with a related person. This supermajority voting requirement will not apply in cases where the proposed transaction has been approved by a majority of those members of Tri-County Financial s board of directors who are unaffiliated with the related person and who were directors before the time when the related person became a related person.

The term related person includes any individual, group acting in concert, corporation, partnership, association or other entity (other than Tri-County Financial or its subsidiary) who or which is the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of voting stock of Tri-County Financial.

A business combination includes:

any merger or consolidation of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company with or into a related person;

any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition, including without limitation, a mortgage, or any other security device, of all or any substantial part of the assets of the Company (including without limitation any voting securities of a subsidiary) or of a subsidiary, to a related person;

any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition of all or any substantial part of the assets of a related person to the Company or a subsidiary of the Company;

the issuance of any securities of the Company or a subsidiary of the Company to a related person; and

any reclassification of the common stock of the Company, or any recapitalization involving the common stock of the Company.

Control Share Acquisitions. Maryland general corporation law provides that control shares of a Maryland corporation acquired in a control share acquisition have no voting rights unless approved by a vote of two-thirds of the votes entitled to be cast on the matter, excluding shares owned by the acquiror or by the corporation s officers or directors who are employees of the corporation. Control shares are shares of voting stock which, if aggregated with all other shares of stock previously acquired, would entitle the acquiror to exercise voting power in electing directors within one of the following ranges of voting power:

20% or more but less than 33 1/3%;

33 1/3% or more but less than a majority; or

a majority of all voting power.

Control shares do not include shares of stock an acquiring person is entitled to vote as a result of having previously obtained shareholder approval. A control share acquisition generally means the acquisition of, ownership of or the power to direct the exercise of voting power with respect to, control shares.

A person who has made or proposes to make a control share acquisition, under specified conditions, including an undertaking to pay expenses, may require the board of directors to call a special shareholders meeting to consider the voting rights of the shares. The meeting must be held within 50 days of the demand. If no request for a meeting is made, the corporation may itself present the question at any shareholders meeting.

84

If voting rights are not approved at the meeting or if the acquiring person does not deliver an acquiring person statement as permitted by the statute, the corporation generally may redeem any or all of the control shares, except those for which voting rights have previously been approved. This redemption of shares must be for fair value, determined without regard to the absence of voting rights as of the date of the last control share acquisition or of any shareholders meeting at which the voting rights of the shares are considered and not approved. If voting rights for control shares are approved at a shareholders meeting and the acquiror becomes entitled to vote a majority of the shares entitled to vote, all other shareholders may exercise appraisal rights. The fair value of the stock determined for appraisal rights may not be less than the highest price per share paid in the control share acquisition. The limitations and restrictions otherwise applicable to the exercise of dissenters rights do not apply in the context of a control share acquisition.

The control share acquisition statute does not apply to stock acquired in a merger, consolidation or share exchange if the corporation is a party to the transaction, or to acquisition previously approved or exempted by a provision in the articles of incorporation or bylaws of the corporation.

Restrictions on Ownership

The Bank Holding Company Act generally would prohibit any company that is not engaged in financial activities and activities that are permissible for a bank holding company or a financial holding company from acquiring control of us. Control is generally defined as ownership of 25% or more of the voting stock or other exercise of a controlling influence. In addition, any existing bank holding company would need the prior approval of the Federal Reserve before acquiring 5% or more of our voting stock. The Change in Bank Control Act of 1978, as amended, prohibits a person or group of persons from acquiring control of a bank holding company unless the Federal Reserve has been notified and has not objected to the transaction. Under a rebuttable presumption established by the Federal Reserve, the acquisition of 10% or more of a class of voting stock of a bank holding company with a class of securities registered under Section 12 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, such as Tri-County Financial, could constitute acquisition of control of the bank holding company. Maryland law generally requires the prior approval of the Maryland Commissioner before a person, group of persons, or company may acquire 25% or more of our voting stock or otherwise exercise a controlling influence over the direction of the management or policy of Tri-County Financial or Community Bank.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

The transfer agent and registrar for our common stock is Broadridge Corporate Issuer Solutions, Inc.

85

UNDERWRITING

Subject to the terms and conditions stated in the underwriting agreement with Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc., as the representative of the underwriters named below, each underwriter named below has severally agreed to purchase from us the respective number of shares of common stock set forth opposite its name in the table below.

Name
Number
of
Name
Shares
Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc.
Sandler O Neill + Partners, L.P.

The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters obligations are several, which means that each underwriter is required to purchase a specific number of shares of common stock, but it is not responsible for the commitment of any other underwriter. The underwriting agreement provides that the underwriters several obligations to purchase the shares of common stock depend on the satisfaction of the conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, including:

the representations and warranties made by us to the underwriters are true;

there is no material adverse change in the financial markets; and

we deliver customer closing documents and legal opinions to the underwriters.

Subject to these conditions, the underwriters are committed to purchase and pay for all shares of common stock offered by this prospectus, if any such shares of common stock are purchased. However, the underwriters are not obligated to purchase or pay for the shares of common stock covered by the underwriters over-allotment option described below, unless and until they exercise this option.

The shares of common stock are being offered by the underwriters, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to approval of certain legal matters by counsel for the underwriters and other conditions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel, or modify this offering and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Electronic Prospectus Delivery

A prospectus in electronic format may be made available on the web sites maintained by one or more of the underwriters. In connection with this offering, certain of the underwriters or securities dealers may distribute prospectuses electronically. Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc., as representative for the underwriters, may agree to allocate a number of shares of common stock to underwriters for sale to their online brokerage account holders. The representative will allocate shares of common stock to underwriters that may make Internet distributions on the same basis as other allocations. Other than this prospectus in electronic format, the information on any of these websites and

any other information contained on a website maintained by an underwriter or syndicate member is not part of this prospectus.

Over-Allotment Option

We have granted to the underwriters an over-allotment option, exercisable no later than 30 days from the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to an aggregate of 210,000 additional shares of our common stock at the public offering price, less the underwriting discount and commission set forth on the cover page of this prospectus. To the extent that the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option, the underwriters will become obligated, so long as the conditions of the underwriting agreement are satisfied, to purchase the additional shares of our common stock in proportion to their respective initial purchase amounts. We will be obligated to sell the

86

shares of our common stock to the underwriters to the extent the over-allotment option is exercised. The underwriters may exercise this option only to cover over-allotments made in connection with the sale of the shares of our common stock offered by this prospectus.

Commissions and Expenses

The underwriters propose to offer shares of our common stock directly to the public at \$[] per share and to certain dealers at such price less a concession not in excess of \$[] per share. The underwriters may allow, and such dealers may re-allow, a concession not in excess of \$[] per share to other dealers. If all of the shares of our common stock are not sold at the public offering price, the representative of the underwriters may change the public offering price and the other selling terms.

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discount that we will pay to the underwriters. These amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters—over-allotment option.

	Per Share	Total Without Option Exercised	Total With Option Exercised
Public offering price	\$	\$	\$
Underwriting discounts and			

Underwriting discounts and commissions

We estimate that our share of the total offering expenses, excluding underwriting discounts and commissions and expenses, will be approximately \$400,000. In addition, we have agreed to reimburse the underwriters for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses (including the fees and disbursements of their counsel) in an amount not to exceed \$150,000.

Lock-Up Agreements

We, our executive officers and directors have each agreed that for a period of 90 days from the date of this prospectus, neither we nor any of our executive officers or directors will, without the prior written consent of Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. as the representative on behalf of the underwriters, subject to certain exceptions, sell, offer to sell or otherwise dispose of or hedge any shares of our common stock or any securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for our common stock. Keefe, Bruyette & Woods, Inc. in its sole discretion may release the securities subject to these lock-up agreements at any time without notice.

This 90-day restricted period will be automatically extended if: (1) during the last 17 days of the 90-day restricted period we issue an earnings release or announce material news or a material event; or (2) before the expiration of the 90-day restricted period, we announce that we will release earnings results during the 16-day period following the last day of the 90-day period, in which case the restrictions described in the preceding paragraph will continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the announcement of the material news or material event.

Indemnity

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters and persons who control the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the Securities Act), and to contribute to payments that the underwriters may be required to make for these liabilities.

Directed Share Program

The underwriters have reserved for sale at the offering price being paid by investors up to [] shares of common stock being offered by this prospectus for sale to our shareholders as of ______, 2013. The sales will be made by the underwriters through a directed share program. The number of shares available for sale to the

87

general public in the offering will be reduced to the extent these persons purchase the reserved shares. Any reserved shares not so purchased will be offered by the underwriters to the general public on the same terms as the other shares. Any shares sold in the directed share program to directors and executive officers will be subject to the 90-day lock-up agreements described above.

Stabilization

In connection with this offering, the underwriters may engage in stabilizing transactions, over-allotment transactions, covering transactions, and penalty bids in accordance with Regulation M under the Securities Exchange Act as set forth below:

Stabilizing transactions permit bids to purchase the underlying security so long as the stabilizing bids do not exceed a specified maximum.

Over-allotment involves sales by the underwriters of shares in excess of the number of shares the underwriters are obligated to purchase, which creates a short position. The short position may be either a covered short position or a naked short position. In a covered short position, the number of shares over-allotted by the underwriters is not greater than the number of shares that they may purchase in the over-allotment option. In a naked short position, the number of shares involved is greater than the number of shares in the over-allotment option. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their over-allotment option or purchasing shares in the open market.

Covering transactions involve the purchase of common stock in the open market after the distribution has been completed to cover short positions. In determining the source of shares to close out the short position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. If the underwriters sell more shares than could be covered by the over-allotment option, a naked short position, the position can only be closed out by buying shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there could be downward pressure on the price of the shares in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase in this offering.

Penalty bids permit the underwriters to reclaim a selling concession from a selected dealer when the common stock originally sold by the selected dealer is purchased in a stabilizing covering transaction to cover short positions.

These stabilizing transactions, covering transactions and penalty bids may have the effect of raising or maintaining the market price of our common stock or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our common stock. As a result, the price of our common stock may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. Neither we nor the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the effect that the transactions described above may have on the price of our common stock. These transactions may be effected on the Nasdaq Stock Market or otherwise and, if commenced, may be discontinued at any time.

Other Considerations

It is expected that delivery of the shares of our common stock will be made against payment therefor on or about the date specified on the cover page of this prospectus. Under Rule 15c6-1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, trades in the secondary market generally are required to settle in three business days, unless the parties to any such trade expressly agree otherwise.

The underwriters and their respective affiliates are full-service financial institutions engaged in various activities, which may include securities trading, commercial and investment banking, financial advisory, investment management, principal investment, hedging, financing and brokerage activities. Certain of the

88

underwriters and their affiliates have in the past provided, and may in the future from time to time provide, investment banking and other financing and banking services to us, for which they have in the past received, and may in the future receive, customary fees and reimbursement for their expenses. In the ordinary course of their various business activities, the underwriters and their respective affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own account and for the accounts of their customers and may at any time hold long and short positions in such securities and instruments. Such investment and securities activities may involve our securities and instruments.

LEGAL MATTERS

The validity of the shares of common stock offered hereby and selected other legal matters in connection with the offering will be passed upon for us by the law firm of Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP, Washington, DC. Certain legal matters with respect to this offering will be passed upon for the underwriters by Elias, Matz, Tiernan & Herrick L.L.P. Gary R. Bronstein, a partner in the law firm of Kilpatrick Townsend & Stockton LLP, beneficially owns 12,499 shares of Tri-County Financial common stock.

EXPERTS

The consolidated financial statements of Tri-County Financial as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2012, included in this prospectus and the registration statement have been included in reliance upon the report of Stegman & Company, an independent registered public accounting firm, appearing elsewhere herein on the authority of said firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

We file reports, proxy statements and other documents with the SEC. You may read and copy any document we file at the SEC s public reference room at 100 F Street, NE, Room 1580, Washington, DC 20549. You should call 1-800-SEC-0330 for more information on the public reference room. Our SEC filings are also available to you on the SEC s Internet site at http://www.sec.gov.

This prospectus is part of a registration statement that we filed with the SEC. The registration statement contains more information than this prospectus regarding us, including certain exhibits and schedules. With respect to the statements contained in this prospectus regarding the contents of any agreement or any other document, in each instance, the statement is qualified in all respects by the complete text of the agreement or document, a copy of which has been filed as an exhibit to the registration statement or a document incorporated herein. You can obtain a copy of the registration statement from the SEC at the address listed above or from the SEC s Internet site.

INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference information into this prospectus certain information that we file with the SEC. This means that we can disclose important information to you by referring you to another document that we file separately with the SEC. The information incorporated by reference is considered to be a part of this prospectus, except for any information that is superseded by information that is included directly in this document or in a more recent incorporated document.

This prospectus incorporates by reference the documents listed below that we have previously filed with the SEC.

SEC Filings

Period or Date Filed (as applicable)

Annual Report on Form 10-K Year ended December 31, 2012

Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q Quarters ended June 30, 2013 and March 31, 2013

Current Reports on Form 8-K (in each case other than those portions furnished under Item 2.02 or 7.01 of Form 8-K)

Filed on May 7, 2013 and April 26, 2013

The information specifically incorporated by reference into our Annual Report on Form 10-K from our Definitive Proxy

Statement on Schedule 14A Filed on April 4, 2013

The information incorporated by reference contains information about us and our financial condition and is an important part of this prospectus.

You can obtain any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus through us, or from the SEC through the SEC s web site at www.sec.gov. Documents incorporated by reference are available from us without charge, excluding any exhibits to those documents, unless the exhibit is specifically incorporated by reference as an exhibit in this prospectus. You can obtain documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus by requesting them in writing or by telephone from us at the following address:

Tri-County Financial Corporation

3035 Leonardtown Road

Waldorf, Maryland 20601

Attention: Marlene Smith

Telephone: (301) 645-5601

In addition, we maintain a corporate web site, www.cbtc.com. On our web site, we make available our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Exchange Act as soon as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such materials with, or furnish it to, the SEC. This reference to our web site is for the convenience of investors as required by the SEC and shall not be deemed to incorporate any information on the web site into this prospectus.

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

	Page
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm	F-1
Consolidated Financial Statements	
Balance Sheets as of June 30, 2013 (Unaudited) and December 31, 2012 and 2011	F-2
Statements of Income and Comprehensive Income for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 (Unaudited) and	
the Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	F-3
Statements of Changes in Stockholders Equity for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 (Unaudited) and the	
Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011	F-4
Statements of Cash Flows for the Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 (Unaudited) and the Years Ended	
December 31, 2012 and 2011	F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements	F-7

91

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders

Tri-County Financial Corporation

Waldorf, Maryland

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Tri-County Financial Corporation. (the Company) as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the related consolidated statements of income and comprehensive income, changes in stockholders—equity, and cash flows for each of the years in the two-year period ended December 31, 2012. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company—s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were we engaged to perform, an audit of its internal control over financial reporting. Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Tri-County Financial Corporation. as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, and the results of their consolidated operations and cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

/s/ Stegman & Company

Baltimore, Maryland

March 15, 2013

F-1

TRI-COUNTY FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

June 30, 2013, December 31, 2012 and 2011

	(Unaudited) June 30,	Decem	ber 31,		
	2013	2012	2011		
Assets					
Cash and due from banks	\$ 10,768,998	\$ 10,696,653	\$ 13,074,091		
Federal funds sold	3,470,000	190,000	5,040,000		
Interest-bearing deposits with banks	1,336,720	409,002	1,004,098		
Securities available for sale (AFS), at fair value	54,103,851	47,205,663	41,827,612		
Securities held to maturity (HTM), at amortized cost	99,896,483	112,619,434	153,516,839		
Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) and Federal Reserve Bank					
(FRB) stock at cost	6,666,550	5,476,050	5,587,000		
Loans held for sale	320,000				
Loans receivable net of allowance for loan losses of					
\$8,033,553, \$8,246,957 and \$7,655,041	745,251,604	747,640,752	710,088,775		
Premises and equipment, net	19,289,816	19,782,236	16,440,902		
Other real estate owned (OREO)	6,932,177	6,891,353	5,028,513		
Accrued interest receivable	2,902,627	2,904,325	3,027,784		
Investment in bank owned life insurance	19,039,007	18,730,580	18,098,085		
Other assets	10,124,507	9,093,164	10,746,024		
Total Assets	\$ 980,102,340	\$ 981,639,212	\$ 983,479,723		
Liabilities and Stockholders Equity					
Liabilities					
Deposits					
Noninterest-bearing deposits	\$ 89,565,889	\$ 102,319,581	\$ 81,097,622		
Interest-bearing deposits	695,115,348	717,910,707	746,155,579		
Total deposits	784,681,237	820,230,288	827,253,201		
Short-term borrowings	24,000,000	1,000,000	,, -		
Long-term debt	70,501,763	60,527,208	60,576,595		
Guaranteed preferred beneficial interest in junior	, ,	, ,	, ,		
subordinated debentures (TRUPS)	12,000,000	12,000,000	12,000,000		
Accrued expenses and other liabilities	7,846,870	8,834,455	8,195,829		
	.,,	-, ,	-, ,		
Total Liabilities	899,029,870	902,591,951	908,025,625		
Stockholders Equity					
Preferred Stock, Senior Non-Cumulative Perpetual, Series C par value \$1,000; authorized 20,000; issued 20,000	20,000,000	20,000,000	20,000,000		

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Common stock par value \$.01; authorized 15,000,000 shares; issued 3,045,543, 3,052,416 and 3,026,557 shares at					
June 30, 2013, December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively	30,455	30,524	30,266		
Additional paid in capital	18,222,907	17,873,560	17,367,403		
Retained earnings	44,283,597	38,712,194			
Accumulated other comprehensive (loss) gain	(679,594)	(679,594) 139,184			
Unearned ESOP shares	(784,895)	(784,895) (982,640)			
Total Stockholders Equity	81,072,470	79,047,261	75,454,098		
Total Liabilities and Stockholders Equity	\$ 980,102,340	\$ 981,639,212	\$ 983,479,723		

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 and Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

	`	udited) Inded June 30, 2012	Years Ended December 31, 2012 2011			
Interest and Dividend Income						
Loans, including fees	\$ 18,363,746	\$ 18,511,260	\$ 37,145,915	\$ 36,383,142		
Taxable interest and dividends on investment						
securities	1,221,040	1,696,918	3,132,540	3,559,903		
Interest on deposits with banks	5,284	2,748	14,426	16,349		
Total Interest and Dividend Income	19,590,070	20,210,926	40,292,881	39,959,394		
Interest Expenses						
Deposits	2,967,301	4,609,719	8,396,342	10,718,170		
Short-term borrowings	37,827	31,751	50,774	49,223		
Long-term debt	1,036,414	1,147,556	2,157,122	2,353,649		
Total Interest Expenses	4,041,542	5,789,026	10,604,238	13,121,042		
Net Interest Income	15,548,528	14,421,900	29,688,643	26,838,352		
Provision for loan losses	354,600	777,505	2,528,681	4,087,151		
Net Interest Income After Provision For Loan						
Losses	15,193,928	13,644,395	27,159,962	22,751,201		
Noninterest Income						
Loan appraisal, credit, and miscellaneous						
charges	319,149	383,441	968,097	789,883		
Gain on sale of asset	11,000	·	,	22,500		
Net (losses) gains on sale of OREO		(96,917)	88,351	454,339		
Net losses on sale of investment securities		, , ,	(3,736)	ŕ		
Income from bank owned life insurance	308,427	319,117	632,496	650,393		
Service charges	1,103,180	1,001,903	2,096,118	1,988,947		
Gain on sale of loans held for sale	516,050	135,341	628,701	286,978		
Total Noninterest Income	2,257,806	1,742,885	4,410,027	4,193,040		
Noninterest Expense						
Salary and employee benefits	7,146,606	6,490,079	13,486,424	11,082,386		
Occupancy expense	1,052,250	901,791	1,894,421	1,833,466		
Advertising	272,731	259,091	542,254	491,789		

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Data processing expense	730,314	789,593	1,550,956	1,305,601
Professional fees	461,691	568,504	1,009,740	997,114
Depreciation of furniture, fixtures, and				
equipment	389,522	297,289	680,301	435,551
Telephone communications	102,729	92,086	184,057	174,748
Office supplies	109,468	133,990	256,634	184,820
FDIC Insurance	574,269	891,202	1,256,889	1,428,949
Valuation allowance on OREO	329,976	626,176	674,205	1,963,227
Other	1,079,688	1,211,304	2,267,969	2,351,551
Total Noninterest Expenses	12,249,244	12,261,105	23,803,850	22,249,202
Income before income taxes	5,202,490	3,126,175	7,766,139	4,695,039
Income tax expense	1,898,650	1,079,770	2,776,225	1,533,575
Net Income	\$ 3,303,840	\$ 2,046,405	\$ 4,989,914	\$ 3,161,464
Preferred stock dividends	100,000	100,000	200,000	672,488
Net Income Available to Common Shareholders	\$ 3,203,840	\$ 1,946,405	\$ 4,789,914	\$ 2,488,976
2 VI.VI.W.2	Ψ ε,2σε,στο	Ψ 1,2 10,100	ψ .,, ο,,,, i .	ψ 2 , .οο, , , ο
Net Income	\$ 3,303,840	\$ 2,046,405	\$ 4,989,914	\$ 3,161,464
Net unrealized holding (losses) gains arising				
during period, net of tax	(818,778)	7,751	(150,415)	(121,589)
Comprehensive Income	\$ 2,485,062	\$ 2,054,156	\$ 4,839,499	\$ 3,039,875
Earnings Per Common Share				
Basic	\$ 1.06	\$ 0.64	\$ 1.57	\$ 0.83
Diluted	\$ 1.05	\$ 0.64	\$ 1.57	\$ 0.82
Cash dividends paid per common share	\$ 0.20	\$ 0.40	\$ 0.40	\$ 0.40

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

TRI-COUNTY FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

	Preferred	Common	Paid-in		Accumulated Other Comprehensive	Unearned ESOP	
	Stock	Stock	Capital		Income (Loss)		Total
Balance at	.		* * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * * *			* (= 00 = 0 t)	.
January 1, 2011	\$ 16,317,000	\$ 30,026	\$ 16,962,460	\$ 37,892,557	\$ 411,188	\$ (508,304)	\$ 71,104,927
Comprehensive Income							
Net income				3,161,464			3,161,464
Unrealized				2,202,101			2,202,101
holding loss on							
investment							
securities net of							
tax of \$64,419					(128,840)		(128,840)
Other than							
temporary impairment							
amortization on							
HTM securities							
net of tax of							
\$3,735					7,251		7,251
Total							
Comprehensive							
Income							3,039,875
Cash dividend at							2,322,327
\$0.40 per							
common share				(1,209,856)			(1,209,856)
Preferred stock							
dividends				(722,243)			(722,243)
Exercise of stock		238	121,081				121 210
options Net change in		236	121,061				121,319
unearned ESOP							
shares		87				(437,060)	(436,973)
Repurchase of						, , -,	
common stock		(237)		(409,728)			(409,965)
Stock based							
compensation		152	253,314				253,466
			30,548				30,548

Tax effect of the							
Redemption of capital purchase program Series A and Series B							
Preferred Stock Proceeds from issuance of Series C Preferred Stock to Small Business	(16,317,000)						(16,317,000)
Lending Fund	20,000,000						20,000,000
Balance at December 31, 2011	20,000,000	30,266	17,367,403	38,712,194	289,599	(945,364)	75,454,098
Comprehensive	_0,000,000	00,200	11,001,100	00,712,1271	203,233	(> 12,601)	70,101,070
Income				4 000 014			4 000 014
Net Income Unrealized				4,989,914			4,989,914
holding loss on investment							
securities net of tax of \$81,222 Other than					(157,666)		(157,666)
temporary impairment amortization on HTM securities							
net of tax of \$3,735					7,251		7,251
Total Comprehensive Income							4,839,499
Cash dividend at							4,032,422
\$0.40 per common share				(1,216,570)			(1,216,570)
Preferred stock dividends				(205,001)			(205,001)
Exercise of stock				(200,001)			(200,001)
options		111	82,439				82,550
Net change in unearned ESOP shares		77				(37,276)	(37 100)
Repurchase of		11				(37,270)	(37,199)
common stock Stock Based		(184)		(293,904)			(294,088)
Compensation		254	388,461				388,715

Tax effect of the ESOP dividend			35,257				35,257
Balance at December 31, 2012	20,000,000	30,524	17,873,560	41,986,633	139,184	(982,640)	79,047,261
(Unaudited)							
Comprehensive Income							
Net Income				3,303,840			3,303,840
Unrealized				2,202,010			2,202,010
holding loss on							
investment							
securities net of					(0		(0.2.2. 4.0.2.)
tax of \$423,662					(822,402)		(822,402)
Other than							
temporary impairment							
amortization on							
HTM securities							
net of tax of							
\$1,868					3,624		3,624
T-4-1							
Total Comprehensive							
Income							2,485,062
Cash dividends							2,102,002
at \$0.20 per							
common share				(609,238)			(609,238)
Preferred stock							
dividends				(100,000)			(100,000)
Share adjustment Exercise of stock							
options		77	75,158				75,235
Net change in		, ,	75,150				13,233
unearned ESOP							
shares		(121)	238			197,745	197,862
Repurchase of							
common stock		(164)		(297,638)			(297,802)
Stock based		120	240,000				240 120
compensation Tax effect of		139	248,990				249,129
exercise of stock							
based							
compensation			6,999				6,999
Tax effect of the							
ESOP dividend			17,962				17,962
Delesso							
Balance at June 30, 2013	\$ 20,000,000	\$ 30,455	\$ 18,222,907	\$ 44,283,597	\$ (679,594)	¢ (7Q1 Q05)	\$ 81,072,470
June 30, 4013	φ 40,000,000	φ 30,433	φ 10,444,90/	φ 44,203,377	φ (0/2,334)	φ (7 04,073)	φ 01,0/2,4/0

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-4

TRI-COUNTY FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 and Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011

(Unaudited)										
		Six Months En	nded	•		Years Ended	Dece			
		2013		2012		2012		2011		
Cash Flows from Operating Activities										
Net income	\$	2 202 940	\$	2.046.405	\$	4,989,914	\$	2 161 464		
Adjustments to reconcile net income to	Ф	3,303,840	Ф	2,046,405	Ф	4,909,914	Ф	3,161,464		
net cash provided by operating										
activities										
Provision for loan losses		354,600		777,505		2,528,681		4,087,151		
Depreciation and amortization		648,119		521,935		1,173,141		904,103		
Loans originated for resale		(17,882,950)		(3,292,600)		(14,078,800)		(9,747,000)		
Proceeds from sale of loans originated		(17,002,900)		(2,2)2,000)		(11,070,000)		(),/ 1/,000)		
for sale		17,963,029		3,402,426		14,606,301		9,968,715		
Gain on sale of loans held for sale		(516,050)		(135,341)		(628,701)		(286,978)		
Net losses (gains) on the sale of OREO		(= =,===,		96,917		(88,351)		(454,339)		
Losses on sales of HTM investment				,						
securities						157,153				
Gains on sales of AFS investment										
securities						(153,417)				
Gain on sale of asset		(11,000)						(22,500)		
Net amortization of premium/discount										
on investment securities		327,305		204,597		470,340		245,650		
Increase in OREO valuation allowance		329,976		626,176		674,205		1,963,227		
Increase in cash surrender of bank										
owned life insurance		(308,427)		(319,116)		(632,495)		(650,393)		
Deferred income tax benefit		(96,796)		(345,542)		(868,928)		(646,717)		
Decrease (Increase) in accrued interest										
receivable		1,698		(51,308)		123,459		(243,388)		
Stock based compensation		249,129		263,612		388,715		253,466		
Increase (Decrease) in deferred loan		267.020		(44.000)		101 = 10		(100.000)		
fees		265,828		(11,099)		131,748		(139,826)		
(Decrease) Increase in accounts										
payable, accrued expenses and other		(005 505)		(0.504)		(20, (2)		1 207 116		
liabilities		(987,585)		(9,524)		638,626		1,387,446		
(Increase) Decrease in other assets		(505,754)		1,388,154		2,599,275		542,387		
Net Cash Provided by Operating										
Activities		3,134,962		5,163,197		12,030,866		10 222 469		
Activities		3,134,904		5,105,197		12,030,000		10,322,468		

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Cash Flows from Investing Activities						
Purchase of AFS investment securities		(13,464,967)	(10,077,772)		(25,542,275)	(18,994,828)
Proceeds from redemption or principal						
payments of AFS investment securities		5,234,496	11,252,526		17,962,350	11,983,674
Purchase of HTM investment securities		(10,932,813)	(849,785)		(16,357,484)	(72,541,253)
Proceeds from maturities or principal						
payments of HTM investment securities		23,420,169	27,246,045		53,486,964	45,712,623
Net (increase) decrease of FHLB and						
FRB stock		(1,190,500)	(193,450)		110,950	728,600
Loans originated or acquired	(112,182,444)	(125,552,773)	((246,256,056)	(269,796,003)
Principal collected on loans		113,696,335	98,929,725		203,351,644	204,254,129
Purchase of premises and equipment		(155,699)	(3,403,294)		(4,514,475)	(5,212,864)
Proceeds from sale of OREO			299,302		344,512	9,952,873
Proceeds from sale of HTM investment						
securities					3,641,805	
Proceeds from sale of AFS investment						
securities					1,626,016	
Proceeds from disposal of asset		11,000				22,500
Net Cash Provided by (Used in)						
Investing Activities	\$	4,435,577	\$ (2,349,476)	\$	(12,146,049)	\$ (93,890,549)

TRI-COUNTY FINANCIAL CORPORATION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Six Months Ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 and Years Ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 (continued)

	(Unaudited) Six Months Ended June 30, Yea					ears Ended December 31,		
	В	2013	iiuc	2012		2012 201		
Cash Flows from Financing Activities								
Net (decrease) increase in deposits	\$ ((35,549,051)	\$	(11,478,877)	\$	(7,022,913)	\$	102,670,875
Proceeds from long-term borrowings		10,000,000						
Payments of long-term borrowings		(25,445)		(24,447)		(49,387)		(10,047,449)
Net increase (decrease) in short term borrowings		23,000,000		3,000,000		1,000,000		(816,422)
Exercise of stock options		75,235		67,391		82,550		121,319
Proceeds from Small Business Lending Fund								
Preferred Stock								20,000,000
Redemption of Troubled Asset Relief Program								
Preferred Stock								(16,317,000)
Dividends paid		(709,238)		(1,321,571)		(1,421,571)		(1,932,099)
Net change in unearned ESOP shares		215,824		(1,942)		(1,942)		(406,425)
Redemption of common stock		(297,801)		(153,800)		(294,088)		(409,965)
Net Cash (Used in) Provided by Financing Activities		(3,290,476)		(9,913,246)		(7,707,351)		92,862,834
Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash								
Equivalents		4,280,063		(7,099,525)		(7,822,534)		9,294,753
Cash and Cash Equivalents beginning of period		11,295,655		19,118,189	1	19,118,189		9,823,436
Cash and Cash Equivalents end of period	\$	15,575,718	\$	12,018,664	\$ 1	11,295,655	\$	19,118,189
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information Cash paid during the period for Interest	\$	4,017,398	\$	5,797,788	\$ 1	10,652,537	\$	13,223,072
Income taxes	\$	2,600,000	\$	1,020,000	\$	2,225,609	\$	2,381,137
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Operating Activities Issuance of common stock for payment of			·					
compensation	\$	249,129	\$	263,612	\$	388,715	\$	253,466

Transfer from loans to OREO	\$ 370,800	\$ 1,555,770	\$ 4,020,494	\$ 7,878,778
Transfer of OREO to loans	\$	\$	\$ 1,038,000	\$ 3,177,855

See notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

F-6

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of Tri-County Financial Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary Community Bank of Tri-County (the Bank), and the Bank s wholly owned subsidiary Community Mortgage Corporation of Tri-County (collectively, the Company). All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. The accounting and reporting policies of the Company conform with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and to general practices within the banking industry.

There have been no significant changes to the Company s accounting policies as disclosed in the 2012 Annual Report. Certain previously reported amounts have been restated to conform to the 2013 presentation.

These consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and notes included in the Company s 2012 Annual Report and 10-K filing.

Unaudited Interim Financial Data The interim financial data is unaudited. However, in the opinion of management, the interim data as of June 30, 2013 and for the six months ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 includes all adjustments, consisting of only normal recurring adjustments, necessary for a fair statement of the results of the interim periods. The results of operations for the interim periods are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected for a full year or any period.

Nature of Operations

The Company provides a variety of financial services to individuals and businesses through its offices in Southern Maryland and King George, Virginia. Its primary deposit products are demand, savings and time deposits, and its primary lending products are commercial and residential mortgage loans, commercial loans, construction and land development loans, home equity and second mortgages and commercial equipment loans.

Use of Estimates

In preparing Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the date of the balance sheet and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Material estimates that are particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan losses, the valuation of OREO and deferred tax assets.

Significant Group Concentrations of Credit Risk

Most of the Company s activities are with customers located in the county of King George, Virginia and the Southern Maryland counties of Calvert, Charles and St. Mary s. Note 4 discusses the types of securities held by the Company. Note 5 discusses the type of lending in which the Company is engaged. The Company does not have significant concentration in any one customer or industry.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

F-7

Securities

Debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to maturity (HTM) and recorded at amortized cost. Securities purchased and held principally for trading in the near term are classified as trading securities. Securities not classified as held to maturity or trading securities, including equity securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as available for sale (AFS) and recorded at estimated fair value, with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive income.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of the securities. Declines in the estimated fair value of held to maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that are deemed to be other than temporary are reflected in earnings as realized losses. In estimating other than temporary impairment losses, management considers: (1) the length of time and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost; (2) the financial condition and near term prospects of the issuer; and (3) the intent and ability of the Company to retain its investment in the issuer for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method. Investments in Federal Reserve Bank and Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta stocks are recorded at cost and are considered restricted as to marketability. The Bank is required to maintain investments in the Federal Reserve Bank as a condition of membership and the Federal Home Loan Bank based upon levels of borrowings.

Debt securities are evaluated quarterly to determine whether a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. The term other-than-temporary is not necessarily intended to indicate a permanent decline in value. It means that the prospects for near term recovery of value are not necessarily favorable, or that there is a lack of evidence to support fair values equal to, or greater than, the carrying value of the investment. Under the revised guidance, for recognition and presentation of other-than-temporary impairments the amount of other-than-temporary impairment that is recognized through earnings for debt securities is determined by comparing the present value of the expected cash flows to the amortized cost of the security. The discount rate used to determine the credit loss is the expected book yield on the security.

Loans Held for Sale

Residential mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary market are carried at the lower of cost or estimated fair value, in the aggregate. Fair value is derived from secondary market quotations for similar instruments. Net unrealized losses, if any, are recognized through a valuation allowance by charges to income.

Residential mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold with the mortgage servicing rights retained by the Company. The carrying value of mortgage loans sold is reduced by the cost allocated to the associated servicing rights. Gains or losses on sales of mortgage loans are recognized based on the difference between the selling price and the carrying value of the related mortgage loans sold, using the specific identification method.

The Company enters into contractual commitments with potential borrowers, including loan commitments and rate-lock commitments for the origination of residential mortgage loans that will be held for sale in the secondary market. The period of time between issuance of a loan commitment and closing and sale of the loan generally ranges from 15 to 60 days. These commitments, which contain fixed expiration dates, offer the borrower an interest rate guarantee provided the loan meets underwriting guidelines and subsequently closes within the timeframe established by the Company.

The interest rate-lock commitments are derivative financial instruments. Interest rate risk arises on these commitments and subsequently closed loans held for sale if interest rates change between the time of interest rate-lock and the delivery of the loan to a secondary market investor. To mitigate interest rate risk, the Company sells certain loans forward into the secondary market at a specified price with a specified date on a best efforts basis. These forward sales, which are entered into as a result of an interest rate-lock commitment with the Bank s

F-8

customer, are derivative financial instruments. The Company does not recognize gains or losses due to interest rate changes for loans sold forward on a best effort basis.

Loans Receivable

The Company originates real estate mortgages, construction and land development loans, commercial loans and consumer loans. A substantial portion of the loan portfolio is comprised of loans throughout Southern Maryland. The ability of the Company s debtors to honor their contracts is dependent upon the real estate and general economic conditions in this area.

Loans that the Company has the intent and ability to hold for the foreseeable future, or until maturity or payoff, are reported at their outstanding unpaid principal balances, adjusted for the allowance for loan losses and any deferred fees or costs on originated loans. Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance. Loan origination fees, net of certain direct origination costs, are deferred and recognized as an adjustment of the related loan yield using the interest method.

Loans are reviewed on a regular basis and are placed on non-accrual status when, in the opinion of management, the collection of additional interest is doubtful. Non-accrual loans can include performing loans that are placed on non-accrual status due to customer operating results and cash flows. The accrual of interest on mortgage and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is 90 days delinquent unless the credit is well secured and in the process of collection. Non-accrual loans are evaluated for impairment on a loan-by-loan basis in accordance with the Company s impairment methodology.

Consumer loans are typically charged-off no later than 90 days past due. Mortgage and commercial loans are fully or partially charged-off when in management s judgment all reasonable efforts to return a loan to performing status have occurred. In all cases, loans are placed on non-accrual or charged-off at an earlier date if collection of principal or interest is considered doubtful.

All interest accrued but not collected from loans that are placed on non-accrual or charged-off is reversed against interest income. The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying for return to accrual. Loans are returned to accrual status when all principal and interest amounts contractually due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

Allowance for Loan Losses and Impaired Loans

The allowance for loan losses is established as probable losses are estimated to have occurred through a provision for loan losses charged to earnings. Loan losses are charged against the allowance when management believes that the uncollectibility of a loan balance is confirmed. Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance.

The allowance for loan losses is evaluated on a regular basis by management and is based upon management s periodic review of the collectability of the loans in light of historical experience, the composition and size of the loan portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower s ability to repay, estimated value of any underlying collateral and prevailing economic conditions. This evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes available.

The allowance for loan losses consists of a general and a specific component. The general component is based upon historical loss experience and a review of qualitative risk factors by portfolio segment (See Note 5 for a description of portfolio segments). The historical loss experience factor is tracked over various time horizons for each portfolio

segment. It is weighted as the most important factor of the general component of the allowance. The Company considers qualitative factors in addition to the loss experience factor. These include trends by portfolio segment in charge-offs, delinquency, classified loans, loan concentrations and the rate of portfolio

F-9

segment growth. Qualitative factors also include an assessment of the current regulatory environment, the quality of credit administration and loan portfolio management and national and local economic trends.

The specific component of the allowance for loan losses relates to individual impaired loans with an identified impairment loss. The Company evaluates substandard and doubtful classified loans, loans delinquent 90 days or greater, non-accrual loans and troubled debt restructured loans (TDRs) to determine whether a loan is impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status, collateral value and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired. Management determines the significance of payment delays and shortfalls on a case-by-case basis, taking into consideration the circumstances surrounding the loan. These circumstances include the length of the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower s payment record and the amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest owed. Loans not impaired are included in the pool of loans evaluated in the general component of the allowance.

If a specific loan is deemed to be impaired it is evaluated for impairment. Impairment is measured on a loan-by-loan basis for commercial and construction loans by either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan s effective interest rate, the loan s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral, if the loan is collateral dependent. For loans that are also classified as impaired, an allowance is established when the discounted cash flows (or collateral value or observable market price) of the impaired loan is lower than carrying value of that loan.

The Company considers all TDRs to be impaired and defines TDRs as loans whose terms have been modified to provide for a reduction or a delay in the payment of either interest or principal because of deterioration in the financial condition of the borrower. A loan extended or renewed at a stated interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk is not considered a TDR. Once an obligation has been classified as a TDR it continues to be considered a TDR until paid in full or until the loan returns to performing status and yields a market interest rate equal to the current interest rate for new debt with similar risk. TDRs are evaluated for impairment on a loan by loan basis in accordance with the Company s impairment methodology. The Company does not participate in any specific government or Company-sponsored loan modification programs. All restructured loan agreements are individual contracts negotiated with a borrower.

Servicing

Servicing assets are recognized as separate assets when rights are acquired the purchase or sale of financial assets. Generally, purchased servicing rights are capitalized at the cost to acquire the rights. For sales of mortgage loans, a portion of the cost of originating the loan is allocated to the servicing based on relative estimated fair value. Estimated fair value is based on market prices for comparable mortgage servicing contracts, when available, or alternatively, is based on a valuation model that calculates the present value of estimated future net servicing. The valuation model incorporates assumptions that market participants would use in estimating future net servicing income, such as the cost to service, the discount rate, an inflation rate, ancillary income, prepayment speeds and default rates and losses. Capitalized servicing rights are reported in other assets and are amortized into noninterest income in proportion to, and over the period of, the estimated future net servicing income of the underlying financial assets.

Servicing assets are evaluated for impairment based upon the estimated fair value of the rights as compared to amortized cost. Impairment is determined by stratifying rights into tranches based on predominant risk characteristics, such as interest rate, loan type and investor type. Impairment is recognized through a valuation allowance for an individual tranche, to the extent that fair value is less than the capitalized amount for the tranche. If the Company later

determines that all or a portion of the impairment no longer exists for a particular tranche, a reduction of the allowance may be recorded as an increase to income.

F-10

Servicing fee income is recorded for fees earned for servicing loans. The fees are based on a contractual percentage of the outstanding principal and recorded as income when earned. The amortization of mortgage servicing rights is netted against loan servicing fee income.

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost. Premises, improvements and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization, computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets, which are as follows:

Buildings and Improvements: 10 to 50 years

Furniture and Equipment: three to 15 years

Automobiles: five years

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred, while improvements that extend the useful life of premises and equipment are capitalized.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)

Assets acquired through, or in lieu of, loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at the lower of cost or estimated fair value at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subsequent to foreclosure, valuations are periodically performed by management, and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount or estimated fair value less the cost to sell. Revenues and expenses from operations and changes in the valuation allowance are included in noninterest expense. Gains or losses on disposition are included in noninterest income.

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when: (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company; (2) the transferred obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets; and (3) the Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity.

Advertising Costs

The Company expenses advertising costs as incurred.

Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return with its subsidiaries. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are determined using the liability (or balance sheet) method. Under this method, the net deferred tax asset or liability is determined based on the tax effects of the temporary differences between the book and tax bases of the various balance sheet assets and liabilities and gives current recognition to changes in tax rates and laws and when it is considered more likely than not that deferred tax assets will be realized. It is the Company s policy to recognize accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits as a component of tax expense.

Off Balance Sheet Credit Related Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business, the Company has entered into commitments to extend credit, including commitments under commercial lines of credit, letters of credit and standby letters of credit. Such financial instruments are recorded when they are funded.

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company has stock option and incentive arrangements to attract and retain key personnel in order to promote the success of the business. In May 2005, the 2005 Equity Compensation Plan (the Plan) was approved by the

F-11

shareholders and authorizes the issuance of restricted stock, stock appreciation rights, stock units and stock options to the Board of Directors and key employees.

Compensation cost for all stock-based awards is measured at fair value on date of grant and recognized over the service period for awards expected to vest. Such value is recognized as expense over the service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The estimation of stock awards that ultimately vest requires judgment, and to the extent actual results or updated estimates differ from our current estimates, such amounts will be recorded as a cumulative adjustment in the period estimates are revised. The Company considers many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee class and historical experience.

The Company and the Bank currently maintain incentive compensation plans which provide for payments to be made in cash, stock options or other share-based compensation. The Company has accrued the full amounts due under these plans, but as of year-end, it is not possible to identify the portion that will be paid out in the form of share-based compensation.

Earnings Per Common Share (EPS)

Basic earnings per common share represents income available to common stockholders, divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share reflects additional common shares that would have been outstanding if dilutive potential common shares had been issued. Potential common shares that may be issued by the Company relate to outstanding stock options and are determined using the treasury stock method. As of June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and 2012 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 and 2011, there were 101,549, 187,367, 184,201 and 102,524 options, respectively, which were excluded from the calculation as their effect would be anti-dilutive, because the exercise price of the options were greater than the average market price of the common shares.

	(Unau Six Mont June	Years Decem		
	2013	2012	2012	2011
Net Income	\$3,303,840	\$ 2,046,405	\$4,989,914	\$3,161,464
Less: dividends paid and accrued on preferred stock	(100,000)	(100,000)	(200,000)	(672,488)
Net income available to common shareholders	\$3,203,840	\$ 1,946,405	\$4,789,914	\$ 2,488,976
Average number of common shares outstanding	3,026,651	3,041,679	3,043,039	3,016,286
Effect of dilutive options	22,597	14,841	12,323	36,524
Average number of shares used to calculate diluted EPS	3,049,248	3,056,520	3,055,362	3,052,810

Comprehensive Income

Accounting principles generally require that recognized revenue, expenses, gains and losses be included in net income. Certain changes in assets and liabilities, such as unrealized gains and losses on available for sale securities, are reported as components of comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements of Income and Comprehensive

Income. Additionally, the Company discloses accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component in the equity section of the balance sheet.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2011-03; Transfers and Servicing (Topic 860) Reconsideration of Effective Control for Repurchase Agreements. ASU 2011-03 is intended to improve financial reporting of repurchase agreements and other agreements that both entitle and obligate a transferor to repurchase or redeem financial assets before their maturity. ASU 2011-03 removes from the assessment of effective control (1) the criterion requiring the transferor to have the ability to repurchase or redeem the financial assets on substantially the agreed terms, even in the event of default by the transferee, and

F-12

(2i) the collateral maintenance guidance related to that criterion. ASU 2011-03 was effective for the Company on January 1, 2012 and did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2011-04; Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820) Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs. ASU 2011-04 amends Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, to converge the fair value measurement guidance in U.S. generally accepted accounting principles and International Financial Reporting Standards. ASU 2011-04 clarifies the application of existing fair value measurement requirements, changes certain principles in Topic 820 and requires additional fair value disclosures. ASU 2011-04 was effective for the Company January 1, 2012 and did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

ASU No. 2011-12; Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) Deferral of the Effective Date for Amendments to the Presentation of Reclassifications of Items Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (AOCI) in ASU No. 2011-05. ASU No. 2011-12 defers changes in ASU No. 2011-05 that relate to the presentation of reclassification adjustments on the face of the financial statements. The presentation of reclassifications out of AOCI before the effective date of ASU No. 2011-05 is allowed until the FASB issues final guidance. All other requirements of ASU No. 2011-05 are not affected.

ASU No. 2011-11; Balance Sheet (Topic 210) Disclosures about Offsetting Assets and Liabilities. ASU 2011-11 amends Topic 210 Balance Sheet, to require an entity to disclose both gross and net information about financial instruments, such as sales and repurchase agreements, borrowing/lending arrangements and derivative instruments with a right of offset. ASU 2011-11 was effective for the Company beginning on January 1, 2013 and did not have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

ASU 2013-02 Comprehensive Income (Topic 220) Reporting of Amounts Reclassified Out of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The new guidance requires the presentation of significant amounts reclassified in a separate footnote and cross referencing to related footnote disclosures, if applicable. ASU 2013-02 was effective for the Company prospectively beginning on January 1, 2013 and did have a material impact on the Company s consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company adopted FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and FASB ASC Topic 825, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities, which provides a framework for measuring and disclosing fair value under generally accepted accounting principles. FASB ASC Topic 820 requires disclosures about the fair value of assets and liabilities recognized in the balance sheet in periods subsequent to initial recognition, whether the measurements are made on a recurring basis (for example, available for sale investment securities) or on a nonrecurring basis (for example, impaired loans).

FASB ASC Topic 820 defines fair value as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. FASB ASC Topic 820 also establishes a fair value hierarchy, which requires an entity to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs when measuring fair value.

The Company utilizes fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and to determine fair value disclosures. Securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Additionally, from time to time, the Company may be required to record at fair value other assets on a nonrecurring basis such as loans held

for investment and certain other assets. These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically involve application of lower of cost or market accounting or write-downs of individual assets.

Under FASB ASC Topic 820, the Company groups assets and liabilities at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability of the assumptions used to determine the fair value. These hierarchy levels are:

F-13

Level 1 inputs Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. These might include quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, and inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, such as interest rates and yield curves that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3 inputs Unobservable inputs for determining the fair values of assets or liabilities that reflect an entity s own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the assets or liabilities.

Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognized on the actual date of the event or circumstances that caused the transfer, which generally coincides with the Company s monthly or quarterly valuation process.

There were no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy and the Company had no Level 3 fair value assets or liabilities for the six months ended June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively.

Following is a description of valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities recorded at fair value:

Securities Available for Sale

Investment securities available for sale are recorded at fair value on a recurring basis. Fair value measurement is based upon quoted prices, if available. If quoted prices are not available, fair values are measured using independent pricing models or other model-based valuation techniques such as the present value of future cash flows, adjusted for the security s credit rating, prepayment assumptions and other factors such as credit loss assumptions. Level 1 securities include those traded on an active exchange, such as the New York Stock Exchange, Treasury securities that are traded by dealers or brokers in active over-the-counter markets and money market funds. Level 2 securities include mortgage-backed securities issued by government sponsored entities (GSEs), municipal bonds and corporate debt securities. Securities classified as Level 3 include asset-backed securities in less liquid markets.

Loans Receivable

The Company does not record loans at fair value on a recurring basis, however, from time to time, a loan is considered impaired and an allowance for loan loss is established. Loans for which it is probable that payment of interest and principal will not be made in accordance with the contractual terms of the loan are considered impaired. Management estimates the fair value of impaired loans using one of several methods, including the collateral value, market value of similar debt, enterprise value, liquidation value and discounted cash flows. Impaired loans not requiring a specific allowance represent loans for which the fair value of expected repayments or collateral exceed the recorded investment in such loans. At June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012, substantially all of the impaired loans were evaluated based upon the fair value of the collateral. In accordance with FASB ASC 820, impaired loans where an allowance is established based on the fair value of collateral (loans with impairment) require classification in the fair value hierarchy. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the loan as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the loan as nonrecurring Level 3.

Other Real Estate Owned (OREO)

OREO is adjusted for fair value upon transfer of the loans to foreclosed assets. Subsequently, OREO is carried at the lower of carrying value and fair value. Fair value is based upon independent market prices, appraised value of

F-14

the collateral or management s estimation of the value of the collateral. When the fair value of the collateral is based on an observable market price or a current appraised value, the Company records the foreclosed asset as nonrecurring Level 2. When an appraised value is not available or management determines the fair value of the collateral is further impaired below the appraised value and there is no observable market price, the Company records the foreclosed asset at nonrecurring Level 3.

Assets and Liabilities Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The tables below present the recorded amount of assets as of June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Description of Asset	Fair Value	Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	 nificant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Available for sale securities		,	,	(
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
Collateralized Mortgage Obligations				
(CMOs)	\$49,689,627	\$	\$ 49,689,627	\$
Mortgage-Backed Securities (MBS)	217,102		217,102	
Corporate equity securities	38,860		38,860	
Bond mutual funds	4,158,262		4,158,262	
Total available for sale securities	\$ 54,103,851	\$	\$ 54,103,851	\$

(TI----194-1)

		December Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets	31, 2012 Significant Other Observable Inputs	Significant Unobservable Inputs
Description of Asset	Fair Value	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
Available for sale securities				
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
CMOs	\$42,655,799	\$	\$42,655,799	\$
MBS	231,386		231,386	
Corporate equity securities	37,332		37,332	
Bond mutual funds	4,281,146		4,281,146	

Total available for sale securities	\$47,205,663 \$	\$ 47,205,663 \$	
-------------------------------------	-----------------	------------------	--

		r 31, 2011		
		Quoted Prices in		
		Active Markets for Identical Assets	Significant Other Observable Inputs	Significant Unobservable Inputs
Description of Asset	Fair Value	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
Available for sale securities				
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
CMOs	\$ 35,062,072	\$	\$35,062,072	\$
MBS	2,648,043		2,648,043	
Corporate equity securities	37,262		37,262	
Bond mutual funds	4,080,235		4,080,235	
Total available for sale securities	\$41,827,612	\$	\$41,827,612	\$

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis

The Company may be required from time to time to measure certain assets at fair value on a nonrecurring basis in accordance with U.S. GAAP. These include assets that are measured at the lower of cost or market that were recognized at fair value below cost at the end of the period. Assets measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis as of June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are included in the tables below.

		(Un June			
		Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets	Signi O	ficant Other bservable Inputs	Significant Unobservable Inputs
Description of Asset	Fair Value	(Level 1)	(Level 2)	(Level 3)
Loans with impairment					
Commercial real estate	\$3,770,616	\$	\$	3,770,616	\$
Residential first mortgage	500,685			500,685	
Construction and land development	1,038,300			1,038,300	
Commercial loans	117,000			117,000	
Total loans with impairment	\$ 5,426,601	\$	\$	5,426,601	\$
Other real estate owned	\$6,932,177	\$	\$	6,932,177	\$

Description of Asset	Fair Value	Quoted Prices in Active Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	0	ificant Other bservable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Loans with impairment					
Commercial real estate	\$ 2,028,534	\$	\$	2,028,534	\$
Residential first mortgage	602,290			602,290	
Commercial loans	94,355			94,355	
Total loans with impairment	\$ 2,725,179	\$	\$	2,725,179	\$
Other real estate owned	\$ 6,891,353	\$	\$	6,891,353	\$

December 31, 2012

December 31, 2011 Quoted Prices in Active

Description of Asset	Fair Value	Markets for Identical Assets (Level 1)	Significant Other Observable Inputs (Level 2)	Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)
Loans with impairment				
Commercial real estate	\$ 1,170,467	\$	\$ 1,170,467	\$
Construction and land development	1,313,550		1,313,550	
Residential first mortgage	505,206		505,206	
Commercial loans	5,110,241		5,110,241	
Total loans with impairment	\$ 8,099,464	\$	\$ 8,099,464	\$
Other real estate owned	\$ 5.028.513	\$	\$ 5.028.513	\$

Loans with impairment have unpaid principal balances of \$6,660,269, \$4,272,836 and \$10,096,399 at June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively, and include impaired loans with a specific allowance.

NOTE 3 RESTRICTIONS ON CASH AND AMOUNTS DUE FROM BANKS

The Bank is required to maintain average balances on hand or with the Federal Reserve Bank. At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and 2011, these reserve balances amounted to \$275,000, \$380,000 and \$471,000, respectively.

NOTE 4 SECURITIES

	Amortized Cost	Gross Gross Unrealized Unrealized Gains Losses	l Estimated Fair Value
Securities available for sale (AFS)	2050	Gams Losses	Tur vuruv
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs			
Residential MBS	\$ 188,407	\$ 28,695 \$	\$ 217,102
Residential CMOs	50,618,010	119,451 1,047,834	49,689,627
Corporate equity securities	37,310	1,725	
Bond mutual funds	4,056,354	101,908	4,158,262
Total securities available for sale	\$ 54,900,081	\$ 251,779 \$ 1,048,009	\$ 54,103,851
Securities held to maturity (HTM)			
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs:			
Residential MBS	\$ 25,259,406	\$ 663,874 \$ 204,768	\$ 25,718,512
Residential CMOs	70,262,142		
Asset-backed securities issued by Others:		· ·	, ,
Residential CMOs	3,524,982	160,767 459,895	3,225,854
Total debt securities held to maturity	99,046,530	1,303,872 1,183,627	99,166,775
U.S. government obligations	849,953		849,953
Total securities held to maturity	\$ 99,896,483	\$ 1,303,872 \$ 1,183,627	\$ 100,016,728
		December 31, 2012	
		Gross Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized Unrealized	
	Cost	Gains Losses	Fair Value
Securities available for sale (AFS)			
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs			
Residential MBS	\$ 198,400	•	\$ 231,386
Residential CMOs	42,507,542		
Corporate equity securities	37,310)
Bond mutual funds	4,012,609	268,537	4,281,146

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Total securities available for sale	\$ 46,755,861	\$ 568,604	\$ 118,802	\$ 47,205,663
Securities held to maturity (HTM)				
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
Residential MBS	\$ 31,239,176	\$ 1,237,277		\$ 32,476,453
Residential CMOs	76,191,199	715,620	97,998	76,808,821
Asset-backed securities issued by others				
Residential CMOs	4,439,118	197,028	484,343	4,151,803
Total debt securities held to maturity	111,869,493	2,149,925	582,341	113,437,077
U.S. government obligations	749,941			749,941
Total securities held to maturity	\$ 112,619,434	\$ 2,149,925	\$ 582,341	\$ 114,187,018

		Gross	Gross	
	Amortized	Unrealized	Unrealized	Estimated
Securities available for sale (AFS)	Cost	Gains	Losses	Fair Value
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
Residential MBS	\$ 2,412,959	\$ 235,084	\$	\$ 2,648,043
Residential CMOs	34,848,180	248,508	34,616	35,062,072
Corporate equity securities	37,310	241	289	37,262
Bond mutual funds	3,840,473	239,762		4,080,235
Total securities available for sale	\$ 41,138,922	\$ 723,595	\$ 34,905	\$ 41,827,612
Securities held to maturity (HTM)				
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs				
Residential MBS	\$ 35,929,199	\$ 854,497	\$ 10,960	\$ 36,772,736
Residential CMOs	106,998,467	1,104,141	27,411	108,075,197
Asset-backed securities issued by others				
Residential CMOs	9,839,222	15,364	1,421,477	8,433,109
Total debt securities held to maturity	152,766,888	1,974,002	1,459,848	153,281,042
U.S. government obligations	749,951			749,951
Total securities held to maturity	\$ 153,516,839	\$ 1,974,002	\$ 1,459,848	\$ 154,030,993

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited) certain asset-backed securities with a carrying value of \$10.6 million were pledged to secure certain deposits. At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), asset-backed securities with a carrying value of \$3.3 million were pledged as collateral for advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta.

At December 31, 2012, certain asset-backed securities with a carrying value of \$29.9 million were pledged to secure certain deposits. At December 31, 2012, asset-backed securities with a carrying value of \$5.6 million were pledged as collateral for advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta.

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), 98% of the asset-backed securities portfolio was rated AAA by Standard & Poor s or the equivalent credit rating from another major rating agency. AFS asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average life of 4.12 years and an average duration of 3.78 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk. HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average life of 3.93 years and an average duration of 3.67 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk.

At December 31, 2012, 97% of the asset-backed securities portfolio was rated AAA by Standard & Poor s or the equivalent credit rating from another major rating agency. AFS asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average life of 3.43 years and average duration of 3.26 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk. HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average life of 3.43 years and average duration of 3.24 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk.

At December 31, 2011, 96% of the asset-backed securities portfolio was rated AAA by Standard & Poor s or the equivalent credit rating from another major rating agency. AFS asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average

life of 1.65 years and average duration of 1.61 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk. HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs had an average life of 2.72 years and average duration of 2.57 years and are guaranteed by their issuer as to credit risk.

We believe that AFS securities with unrealized losses will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed. The Company intends to, and has the ability to, hold these securities to maturity. We believe that the losses are the result of general perceptions of safety and creditworthiness of the entire sector and a general disruption of orderly markets in the asset class.

F-18

Management has the ability and intent to hold the HTM securities with unrealized losses until they mature, at which time the Company will receive full value for the securities. Because our intention is not to sell the investments and it is not more likely than not that we will be required to sell the investments before recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, management considers the unrealized losses in the held-to-maturity portfolio to be temporary, except for the single CMO issue noted below, for which an other-than-temporary charge was recorded in 2009 in the amount of \$148,000.

No charges related to other-than-temporary impairment were made during the six months ended June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and 2012 (unaudited) and the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011. During the year ended December 31, 2009, the Company recorded a charge of \$148,000 related to other-than-temporary impairment on a single HTM CMO issue. At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), the CMO issue had a par value of \$925,000, a market fair value of \$704,000 and a carrying value of \$543,000. At December 31, 2012, the CMO issue has a par value of \$961,000, a market fair value of \$764,000 and a carrying value of \$575,000.

During the fourth quarter of the year ended December 31, 2012, the Company recognized net losses on the sale of securities of \$3,736. The Company sold one AFS security with a carrying value of \$1,469,911 and three HTM securities with aggregate carrying values of \$3,796,011, recognizing a gain of \$153,417 and losses of \$157,153, respectively. The sale of HTM securities was permitted under ASC 320 *Investments Debt and Equity Securities*. ASC 320-10-25-6 permits the sale of HTM securities for certain changes in circumstances. The Company sold the HTM positions due to a significant deterioration in the issues creditworthiness and the increase in regulatory risk weights mandated for risk-based capital purposes. There were no sales of AFS and HTM securities during the six months ended June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and 2012 (unaudited), and the year ended December 31, 2011, respectively.

Available for Sale Securities

Gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value by length of time that the individual AFS securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at June 30, 2013 (unaudited) were as follows:

	Less Th Mon		(Unau More T Moi	Than 12	To	tal
		Unrealized		Unrealized		Unrealized
June 30, 2013	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Losses
Asset-backed securities						
issued by GSEs	\$31,329,612	\$ 789,262	\$4,690,434	\$ 258,572	\$ 36,020,046	\$ 1,047,834
Asset-backed securities						
issued by other	135	175			135	175
-						
	\$31,329,747	\$ 789,437	\$4,690,434	\$ 258,572	\$ 36,020,181	\$ 1,048,009

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), the AFS investment portfolio had an estimated fair value of \$54,103,851, of which \$36,020,181 or 67% of the securities had some unrealized losses from their amortized cost. The securities with unrealized losses are predominantly mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs.

AFS securities issued by GSEs are guaranteed by the issuer. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by GSEs were \$1,047,834 or 2.06% of the portfolio amortized cost of \$50,806,417. AFS asset-backed

securities issued by GSEs with unrealized losses had an average life of 4.76 years and an average duration of 4.29 years. We believe that the securities will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed.

At December 31, 2012, the AFS investment portfolio had a fair value of \$47,205,663 with unrealized losses from their amortized cost of \$118,802. Asset-backed securities and corporate securities with unrealized losses had a fair value of \$11,956,182 and all unrealized losses were for less than twelve months. At December 31, 2011, the AFS investment portfolio had a fair value of \$41,827,612 with unrealized losses from their amortized cost of \$34,905. Asset-backed securities and corporate securities with unrealized losses had a fair value of \$18,170,977 and all unrealized losses were for less than twelve months.

F-19

Held to Maturity Securities

Gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value by length of time that the individual HTM securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at June 30, 2013 (unaudited) were as follows:

	(Unaudited)					
	Less Th	an 12	More T	Than 12		
	Mon	ths	Moi	nths	To	tal
		Unrealized		Unrealized		Unrealized
June 30, 2013	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Losses
Asset-backed securities						
issued by GSEs	\$31,299,839	\$ 721,673	\$3,796,303	\$ 2,059	\$35,096,142	\$ 723,732
Asset-backed securities issued by other			2,408,611	459,895	2,408,611	459,895
	\$31,299,839	\$ 721,673	\$6,204,914	\$ 461,954	\$ 37,504,753	\$ 1,183,627

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), the HTM investment portfolio had an estimated fair value of \$100,016,728, of which \$37,504,753 or 37%, of the securities had some unrealized losses from their amortized cost. Of these securities, \$35,096,142 or 94%, are mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs and the remaining \$2,408,611 or 6%, were asset-backed securities issued by others.

HTM securities issued by GSEs are guaranteed by the issuer. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by GSEs were \$723,732 or 0.76% of the portfolio amortized cost of \$95,521,548. HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs with unrealized losses had an average life of 4.31 years and an average duration of 3.97 years. We believe that the securities will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed. The Company intends to, and has the ability to, hold these securities to maturity.

HTM asset-backed securities issued by others are collateralized mortgage obligation securities. All of the securities have credit support tranches that absorb losses prior to the tranches that the Company owns. The Company reviews credit support positions on its securities regularly. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by others were \$459,895, or 13.05% of the portfolio amortized cost of \$3,524,982. HTM asset-backed securities issued by others with unrealized losses had an average life of 3.50 years and an average duration of 2.61 years.

Gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value by length of time that the individual HTM securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2012 were as follows:

	Less Th Mon			Than 12 nths	Tot	tal
		Unrealized		Unrealized		Unrealized
December 31, 2012	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Loss	Fair Value	Losses
Asset-backed securities						
issued by GSEs	\$ 14,253,558	\$ 89,638	\$6,132,036	\$ 8,360	\$ 20,385,594	\$ 97,998
			3,057,666	484.343	3.057.666	484.343

Asset-backed securities issued by other

\$14,253,558 \$ 89,638 \$9,189,702 \$ 492,703 \$23,443,260 \$ 582,341

At December 31, 2012, the HTM investment portfolio had an estimated fair value of \$114,187,018, of which \$23,443,260, or 21% of the securities, had some unrealized losses from their amortized cost. Of these securities, \$20,385,594 or 87%, are mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs and the remaining \$3,057,666 or 13%, were asset-backed securities issued by others.

HTM securities issued by GSEs are guaranteed by the issuer. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by GSEs were \$97,998 or 0.09%, of the amortized cost of \$107,430,375. HTM asset-backed

F-20

securities issued by GSEs with unrealized losses had an average life of 1.85 years and an average duration of 1.72 years. We believe that the securities will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed. The Company intends to, and has the ability to, hold these securities to maturity.

HTM asset-backed securities issued by others are collateralized mortgage obligation securities. All of the securities have credit support tranches that absorb losses prior to the tranches that the Company owns. The Company reviews credit support positions on its securities regularly. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by others were \$484,343, or 10.91%, of the amortized cost of \$4,439,118. HTM asset-backed securities issued by others with unrealized losses had an average life of 3.17 years and an average duration of 2.40 years.

Gross unrealized losses and estimated fair value by length of time that the individual HTM securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2011 are as follows:

	Less Th Mon		More Than 12 Months		Total	
December 31, 2011	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Loss	Fair Value	Unrealized Losses
Asset-backed securities issued by GSEs	\$ 30,220,777	\$ 33,796	\$ 2,847,703	\$ 4,575	\$ 33,068,480	\$ 38,371
Asset-backed securities issued by other	131,301	11,507	6,632,200	1,409,970	6,763,501	1,421,477
	\$30,352,078	\$ 45,303	\$ 9,479,903	\$ 1,414,545	\$39,831,981	\$ 1,459,848

At December 31, 2011, the HTM investment portfolio had an estimated fair value of \$154,030,993, of which \$39,831,981, or 26% of the securities, had some unrealized losses from their amortized cost. Of these securities, \$33,068,480, or 83%, are mortgage-backed securities issued by GSEs and the remaining \$6,763,501, or 17%, were asset-backed securities issued by others.

HTM securities issued by GSEs are guaranteed by the issuer. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by GSEs were \$38,371, or 0.03%, of the amortized cost of \$142,927,666. HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs with unrealized losses had an average life of 2.06 years and an average duration of 1.96 years. We believe that the securities will either recover in market value or be paid off as agreed. The Company intends to, and has the ability to, hold these securities to maturity.

HTM asset-backed securities issued by others are collateralized mortgage obligation securities. All of the securities have credit support tranches that absorb losses prior to the tranches that the Company owns. The Company reviews credit support positions on its securities regularly. Total unrealized losses on the asset-backed securities issued by others were \$1,421,477, or 14.45%, of the amortized cost of \$9,839,222. HTM asset-backed securities issued by others with unrealized losses had an average life of 2.35 years and an average duration of 1.61 years.

F-21

Maturities

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of debt securities at June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012, by contractual maturity, are shown below. The Company allocated the asset-backed securities into the four maturity groups listed below using the expected average life of the individual securities based on statistics provided by industry sources. Expected maturities will differ from contractual maturities because the issuers of the securities may have the right to prepay obligations without prepayment penalties.

	(Unaudited)				
	Available for Sale		Held to Maturity		
	Estimated			Estimated	
	Amortized	Fair	Amortized	Fair	
June 30, 2013	Cost	Value	Cost	Value	
Within one year	\$ 4,056,354	\$ 4,158,262	\$ 849,953	\$ 849,953	
Asset-backed securities					
Within one year	6,758,174	6,638,500	14,647,049	14,664,831	
Over one year through five years	22,922,361	22,516,448	42,479,910	42,531,482	
Over five years through ten years	14,676,733	14,416,835	27,668,244	27,701,834	
After ten years	6,449,149	6,334,946	14,251,327	14,268,628	
Total asset-backed securities	50,806,417	49,906,729	99,046,530	99,166,775	
	\$ 54,862,771	\$ 54,064,991	\$ 99,896,483	\$ 100,016,728	

	Available for Sale Estimated		Held to Maturity Estimated	
December 31, 2012	Amortized Cost	Fair Value	Amortized Cost	Fair Value
Within one year	\$ 4,012,609	\$ 4,281,146	\$ 749,941	\$ 749,941
Asset-backed securities				
Within one year	13,917,779	13,976,846	39,331,483	39,882,620
Over one year through five years	20,613,093	20,700,576	48,166,365	48,841,303
Over five years through ten years	6,485,711	6,513,237	17,127,683	17,367,686
After ten years	1,689,359	1,696,529	7,243,962	7,345,468
Total asset-backed securities	42,705,942	42,887,188	111,869,493	113,437,077
	\$ 46.718.551	\$ 47,168,334	\$ 112.619.434	\$ 114.187.018

F-22

Credit Quality of Asset-Backed Securities

The tables below present the Standard & Poor s or equivalent credit rating from other major rating agencies for AFS and HTM asset-backed securities issued by GSEs and others at June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and 2011 by carrying value. The Company considers noninvestment grade securities rated BB+ or lower as classified assets for regulatory and financial reporting. GSE asset-backed security downgrades by Standard and Poor s were treated as AAA based on regulatory guidance.

(Unaudited)

June 30, 2013		December 31, 2012		December 31, 2011	
Credit Rating	Amount	Credit Rating	Amount	Credit Rating	Amount
AAA	\$ 145,428,310	AAA	\$ 150,317,560	AAA	\$ 181,958,323
A+		A+		A+	142,808
A		A	110,780	A	
BBB	701,888	BBB	978,043	BBB	1,258,268
BBB-	113,154	BBB-	322,329	BBB-	1,061,017
BB+		BB+		BB+	1,240,901
BB	887,302	BB	1,069,517	BB	337,998
BB-		BB-	68,604	BB-	615,716
B+	67,454	B+	1,008,126	B+	246,345
CCC+	929,835	CCC+		CCC+	3,615,627
CCC	825,349	CCC	881,719	CCC	
Total	\$ 148,953,292	Total	\$ 154,756,678	Total	\$ 190,477,003

NOTE 5 LOANS

Loans consist of the following:

	(Unaudited) June 30,	Years Ended	December 31,
	2013	2012	2011
Commercial real estate	\$434,616,482	\$419,667,312	\$ 370,383,885
Residential first mortgages	165,433,554	177,663,354	164,543,309
Construction and land development	29,119,080	31,818,782	36,744,865
Home equity and second mortgage	21,769,081	21,982,375	24,138,324
Commercial loans	84,992,780	88,157,606	101,968,056
Consumer loans	937,147	995,206	1,000,983
Commercial equipment	17,347,472	16,267,684	19,760,753
	754,215,596	756,552,319	718,540,175
Less:			
Deferred loan fees	930,439	664,610	796,359

Edgar Filing: TRI COUNTY FINANCIAL CORP /MD/ - Form S-1

Allowance for loan loss	8,033,553	8,246,957	7,655,041
	8,963,992	8,911,567	8,451,400
	\$745,251,604	\$747,640,752	\$710,088,775

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited), the Bank s allowance for loan losses totaled \$8,033,553, or 1.07% of loan balances, as compared to \$8,246,957 or 1.09% of loan balances at December 31, 2012 and \$7,655,041 or 1.07% of loan balances at December 31, 2011. Management s determination of the adequacy of the allowance is based on a periodic evaluation of the portfolio with consideration given to the overall loss experience, current economic conditions, size, growth and composition of the loan portfolio, financial condition of the borrowers and other relevant factors that, in management s judgment, warrant recognition in providing an adequate allowance.

At June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 and 2011, gross loans included \$1,437,828, \$1,454,757 and \$2,356,196, respectively, from the sale of OREO properties that the Bank financed during 2011 that did not qualify for full accrual sales treatment under ASC Topic 360-20-40 *Property Plant and Equipment Derecognition.* The Bank utilized the cost recovery method and deferred gain balances for these transactions were \$225,000 at June 30, 2013 (unaudited) and December 31, 2012 and \$410,268 at December 31, 2011, respectively.

Risk Characteristics of Portfolio Segments

The Company manages its credit products and exposure to credit losses (credit risk) by the following specific portfolio segments (classes), which are levels at which the Company develops and documents its allowance for loan loss methodology. These segments are:

Commercial Real Estate (CRE)

Commercial and other real estate projects include office buildings, retail locations, churches, other special purpose buildings and commercial construction. Commercial construction balances were below 5% of the CRE portfolio at June 30, 2013 (unaudited), December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. The Bank offers both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans under these product lines. The primary security on a commercial real estate loan is the real property and the leases that produce income for the real property. The Bank generally limits its exposure to a single borrower to 15% of the Bank s capital. Loans secured by commercial real estate are generally limited to 80% of the lower of the appraised value or sales price at origination and have an initial contractual loan payment period ranging from three to 20 years.

Loans secured by commercial real estate are larger and involve greater risks than one-to-four family residential mortgage loans. Because payments on loans secured by such properties are often dependent on the successful operation or management of the properties, repayment of such loans may be subject to a greater extent to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy.

Residential First Mortgages

Residential first mortgage loans made by the Bank are generally long term loans, amortized on a monthly basis, with principal and interest due each month. The initial contractual loan payment period for residential loans typically ranges from ten to 30 years. The Bank s experience indicates that real estate loans remain outstanding for significantly shorter time periods than their contractual terms. Borrowers may refinance or prepay loans at their option, without penalty. The Bank originates both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate residential first mortgages.

The annual and lifetime limitations on interest rate adjustments may limit the increases in interest rates on these loans. There are also unquantifiable credit risks resulting from potential increased costs to the borrower as a result of repricing of adjustable-rate mortgage loans. During periods of rising interest rates, the risk of default on adjustable-rate mortgage loans may increase due to the upward adjustment of interest cost to the borrower.

Construction and Land Development

The Bank offers loans for the construction of one-to-four family dwellings. Generally, these loans are secured by the real estate under construction as well as by guarantees of the principals involved. In addition, the Bank offers loans to acquire and develop land, as well as loans on undeveloped, subdivided lots for home building by individuals.

A decline in demand for new housing might adversely affect the ability of borrowers to repay these loans. Construction and land development loans are inherently riskier than providing financing on owner-occupied real estate. The Bank s risk of loss is affected by the accuracy of the initial estimate of the market value of the completed project as well as the accuracy of the cost estimates made to complete the project. In addition, the

F-24

volatility of the real estate market has made it increasingly difficult to ensure that the valuation of land associated with these loans is accurate. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and cost overruns. If the estimate of construction costs proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be required to advance funds beyond the amount originally committed to permit completion of the development. If the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, a project s value might be insufficient to assure full repayment. As a result of these factors, construction lending often involves the disbursement of substantial funds with repayment dependent, in part, on the success of the project rather than the ability of the borrower or guarantor to repay principal and interest. If the Bank forecloses on a project, there can be no assurance that the Bank will be able to recover all of the unpaid balance of, and accrued interest on, the loan as well as related foreclosure and holding costs.

Home Equity and Second Mortgage Loans

The Bank maintains a portfolio of home equity and second mortgage loans. These products contain a higher risk of default than residential first mortgages as in the event of foreclosure, the first mortgage would need to be paid off prior to collection of the second mortgage. This risk has been heightened as the market value of residential property has declined.

Commercial Loans

The Bank offers commercial loans to its business customers. The Bank offers a variety of commercial loan products including term loans and lines of credit. Such loans are generally made for terms of five years or less. The Bank offers both fixed-rate and adjustable-rate loans under these product lines. When making commercial business loans, the Bank considers the financial condition of the borrower, the borrower s payment history of both corporate and personal debt, the projected cash flows of the business, the viability of the industry in which the consumer operates, the value of the collateral, and the borrower s ability to service the debt from income. These loans are primarily secured by equipment, real property, accounts receivable, or other security as determined by the Bank.

Commercial loans are made on the basis of the borrower s ability to make repayment from the cash flows of the borrower s business. As a result, the availability of funds for the repayment of commercial loans may depend substantially on the success of the business itself.

Consumer Loans

The Bank has developed a number of programs to serve the needs of its customers with primary emphasis upon loans secured by automobiles, boats, recreational vehicles and trucks. The Bank also makes home improvement loans and offers both secured and unsecured personal lines of credit. Consumer loans entail greater risk from other loan types due to being secured by rapidly depreciating assets or the reliance on the borrower s continuing financial stability.

Commercial Equipment Loans

These loans consist primarily of fixed-rate, short-term loans collateralized by a commercial customer s equipment. When making commercial equipment loans, the Bank considers the same factors it considers when underwriting a commercial business loan. Commercial loans are of higher risk and typically are made on the basis of the borrower s ability to make repayment from the cash flow of the borrower s business. As a result, th